AGENDA
GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY
6:00 p.m. Monday, March 18, 2024

The Greene County Commission will meet at the Greene County Courthouse on Monday,
March 18, 2024, beginning at 6:00 p.m. in the Criminal Courtroom (Top Floor).

Call to Order

*Invocation — Commissioner Chase Murray
*Pledge to Flag — Commissioner Tim Smithson

Proclamations

A Proclamation for Vietham War Veterans Day on March 29th, 2024

A Joint Proclamation with the Town of Greeneville designating April 2024 as Child Abuse Protection Month
A Proclamation for National Donate Life Month April 2024

A Proclamation for Congenital Diaphragmatic Hernia Awareness Day on April 16th, 2024

A Proclamation for World Autism Month April 2024

A Proclamation for Parkinson’s Awareness Month April 2024

Public Hearing

Public hearing on Rezoning- Resolution AA

Approval of Prior Minutes

Reports

Election

Old Bus

Veterans Report

Financial Report from Board of Education
Reports from Solid Waste Department
Committee Minutes

of Notaries

iness

Resolutions

AA.

Consideration of A Resolution to Rezone Certain Territory Owned by Michael J Eyes From A-1, General
Agriculture District to B-3, Arterial Business District within the Unincorporated Territory of Greene County,
Tennessee |

Consideration of A Resolution to amend the Greene County Schools Budget (The General Purpose School
Fund) for changes in Revenues and Expenditures for the Fiscal Year 2023-2024

Consideration of A Resolution to amend the 2023-2024 Fiscal Year Greene County Schools General
Purpose Budget for Capital Outlay Projects (Exhibit A)

Consideration of A Resolution to Appropriate up to $3,310 for a Multi-Source Analysis Tool (MSAT) from the
Drug Task Force EShare Restricted Fund for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2024

Consideration of A Resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body to Appropriate $5,825 in Collections
from the Office of the State Chief Medical Examiner for Reports of Investigation for the Fiscal Year ending
June 30, 2024

Consideration of A Resolution to Appropriate $2,000 to purchase equipment for the K-9 unit from the Sheriff's
Department Restricted Fund for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2024

Consideration of A Resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body Appropriating $208 to the Jail for funds
received from Sale of Recycled Materials for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024



Greene County Legislative Body Meeting Agenda March 18, 2024

G. Consideration of A Resolution to Appropriate the Current Year's Opioid Settlement proceeds resulting from
the 2021 Opioid Abatement Council Act (Exhibit A and Exhibit B)

H. Consideration of A Resolution to Declare County Owned Property Surplus, Obsolete, or Unusable Pursuant
to T.C.A. § 5-14-108 (Exhibit A)

I.  Consideration of A Resolution to ask the General Assembly to Repeal or Modify the Provisions of T.C.A. §
41-2-152 as it relates to Electronic Monitoring for Work Release

J. Consideration of A Resolution to Amend the Greene County Zoning Resolution Site Plan Requirements
within Unincorporated Territory of Greene County, Tennessee

K. Consideration of A Resolution to Amend the Greene County Zoning Resolution Solar Farm/Solar Energy
Regulations within the Unincorporated Territory of Greene County, Tennessee

L. Consideration of A Resolution to Amend the Greene County Zoning Resolution Regulating Wind Energy
Facilities within the Unincorporated Territory of Greene County, Tennessee

M. Consideration of A Resolution to Amend the Greene County Zoning Resolution Regulating Data Centers and
Cryptocurrency Mining within the Unincorporated Territory of Greene County, Tennessee

Other Business

Adjournment

Closing Prayer — Commissioner Lisa Anderson

“*THE GREENE COUNTY COURTHOUSE, EXECUTIVE OFFICES AND
ANNEX HOLIDAY CLOSURES**

FRIDAY, MARCH 29, 2024, - GOOD FRIDAY HOLIDAY-— ANNEX & COURTHOUSE CLOSED
SATURDAY, MARCH 30, 2024,— COUNTY CLERK’S OFFICE CLOSED

**THE DEADLINE FOR SUBMISSION OF RESOLUTIONS FOR THE NEXT COMMISSION MEETING IS
THURSDAY, APRIL 4, 2024, AT 12:00 P.M. **

**THE NEXT COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING WILL BE MONDAY, APRIL 15, 2024**



GREENE COUNTY COMMISSION COMMITTEE MEETINGS

MARCH 2024

MONDAY, MARCH 18

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 20

MONDAY, MARCH 25
TUESDAY, MARCH 26
FRIDAY, MARCH 29
SATURDAY, MARCH 30

APRIL 2024

MONDAY, APRIL 1
WEDNESDAY, APRIL 3

TUESDAY, APRIL 9
TUESDAY, APRIL 9

MONDAY, APRIL 15
WEDNESDAY, APRIL 17
WEDNESDAY, APRIL 24
MONDAY, APRIL 29
TUESDAY, APRIL 30

MAY 2024

MONDAY, MAY 1
THURSDAY, MAY 2
THURSDAY, MAY 9

TUESDAY, MAY 14
TUESDAY, MAY 14

MONDAY, MAY 20
WEDNESDAY, MAY 22
TUESDAY, MAY 28

6:00 P.M.
8:30 AM.
8:30AM,
8:30 A.M.

3.30 P.M.
8:30 A.M.

1:00 P.M.
3:30 P.M.

6:00 P.M.
3:30 P.M.
8:30 AM.
3:30 P.M.
8:30 A.M.

8:30 AM.
6:00 P.M.
3:00 P.M.

1:00 P.M.
3:30 PM.

6:00 P.M.
8:30 A.M.
8:30 AM.

**THIS CALENDAR IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE**

COUNTY COMMISSION
INSURANCE COMMITTEE
RANGE COMMITTEE
ZONING APPEALS
HOLIDAY- GOOD FRIDAY
HOLIDAY

EDUCATION COMMITTEE
BUDGET & FINANCE

PLANNING COMMITTEE
911 BOARD

COUNTY COMMISSION
DEBRIS ORDINANCE
INSURANCE COMMITTEE
EDUCATION COMMITTEE
ZONING APPEALS

BUDGET & FINANCE
AGRICULTURE COMMITTEE
EMS BOARD

PLANNING COMMITTEE
911 BOARD

COUNTY COMMISSION
INSURANCE COMMITTEE
ZONING APPEALS

COURTHOUSE

ANNEX

RANGE

ANNEX

ANNEX & COURTHOUSE
COUNTY CLERKS OFFICE

CENTRAL SCHOOL OFFICE
ANNEX

ANNEX
ANNEX

COURTHOUSE
ANNEX-DOWNSTAIRS
ANNEX

CENTRAL SCHOOL OFFICE
ANNEX

ANNEX
UT EXTENSION OFFICE
ANNEX

ANNEX
ANNEX

COURTHOUSE
ANNEX
ANNEX



County of Greene

PROCLAMATION

By The Honorable County Mayor

WHEREAS, in somber reflection and remembrance, we continue the 13-year
Commemoration of the 50" Anniversary of the Vietnam War that began in 2012. Today and
every day, we honor the bravery and commitment, and give thanks to a generation of
Americans who valiantly fought in service of the country they love, while recognizing the
continuing impact on so many veterans of the Vietnam War, along with their families,
caregivers, and survivors; and,

WHEREAS, over 58,000 of the more than 3 million men and women who served in the
Vietnam War made the ultimate sacrifice, 1,295 of whom were Tennesseans and 22 were
irreplaceable Greene County native sons; and

WHEREAS, as Americans and Greene Countians, we will always remember and honor the
legacy of those who served our country, were wounded, or lost their lives in battle, knowing
we can never repay our debt of gratitude for the courage they demonstrated; and,

WHEREAS, many who served in the Vietham War remain listed as missing in action. Their
family members, friends, and fellow veterans continue to suffer a lifetime of anxiety due to
their status; and

WHEREAS, in 2008, the State of Tennessee enacted legislation to designate March 29b as
Vietnam War Veterans Day to honor and remember those who served our Country during
this 20 year-long conflict; and,

WHEREAS, Tennessee is proud to be called home by more than 160,000 Vietham-era
veterans; and

WHEREAS, Vietnam War Veterans Day is an opportunity to honor all Vietnam veterans and
their families recognizing the valuable contributions they continue to make through
leadership and wisdom; and

NOW, THEREFORE, |, Kevin C. Morrison, Mayor of Greene County, Tennessee, do hereby
proclaim March 29, 2024 as

Uietrarn Wer Vetevarns Day

in Greene County, Tennessee and highly encourage all citizens to join me in this sacred
observance. We steadfastly pledge our undying care and support to our Vietnam Veterans,
as we do for all of our veterans. We will continue to honor and acknowledge with the highest
gratitude, your service and sacrifice to the preservation of freedom now and forever.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto
set my hand and caused the official seal
of Greene County, Tennessee to be
affixed this eighteenth day of March 2024.

woin (1. Meoian—

Greene County Mayor

(9 Mandh 2024

Date




County of Greene and Town of Greeneville

PROCLAMATION

By The Honorable Mayors

WHEREAS, the well-being of every child is of utmost importance to our community and preventing

child abuse and neglect is a problem that depends on involvement among people throughout the
communities; and

WHEREAS, child abuse is a significant issue that affects the lives of countless children and families,
causing long-lasting physical, emotional, and psychological harm. Child maltreatment often occurs
when people find themselves in stressfut situations, without community resources, and they don’'t have
the appropriate coping skills; and

WHEREAS, often child abuse cases stem from situations and conditions that are preventable in an
engaged and supportive community, and it is our collective responsibility to protect our children and
create an environment where they can thrive and grow in safety and security; and

WHEREAS, child abuse and neglect not only directly harm children, but also increase the likelihood
of criminal behavior, substance abuse, and health problems as they grow into adulthood; and

WHEREAS, both Greene County and Greeneville stand firmly on the side of prevention of any type of
abuse and believe no child should endure verbal, emotional, or physical abuse for any reason; and

WHEREAS, effective child abuse prevention programs succeed because of partnerships created
among families, social service agencies, schools, faith communities, civic organizations, law
enforcement agencies, and the business community; and

WHEREAS, all citizens should become involved in supporting families in raising their children in a
safe, nurturing environment; and

WHEREAS, Greene County and Greenville recognize The Child Advocacy Center of the Third Judicial
District, CASA, and the Greeneville Exchange Club for their dedicated work in prevention of child
abuse in our community.

NOW, THEREFORE, we, Kevin C. Morrison, Mayor of Greene County, Tennessee and C. Cal Doty,
Mayor of Greeneville, Tennessee do hereby proclaim the month of April 2024 as

Clitd llse SLreveritiorn Marlh

and call upon all citizens, community agencies, faith groups, medical facilities, and businesses to
increase their participation in our efforts to support families, thereby preventing child abuse and neglect
and strengthening the communities in which we live.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have
Hereunto set our hands and caused
The official seal of Greene County
and the Town of Greeneville to be
affixed this eighteenth day of
March 2024.

e\rln C. Morison, Greene County Mayor

C. Cal Doty, Town of Greeneville Mayor

/9 Manch 2204

Date




County of Greene

PROCLAMATION

‘By The Honorable County Mayor

WHEREAS, Tennessee Donor Services (TDS) is a Donate Life agency and nonprofit
organization dedicated to saving and improving lives through organ, eye, and tissue
donation throughout Tennessee, and is one of 57 Organ Procurement Organizations
{(OPOs) throughout the nation; and

WHEREAS, each organ donor HERO can give the gift of life to eight people and each
tissue donor can improve another 75 lives by becoming an organ, eye, and tissue donor;
and

WHEREAS, more than 100,000 American men, women, and children—3,000 of whom are
Tennesseans—are waiting for lifesaving organ transplants; and

WHEREAS, during April, designated National Donate Life Month, and throughout the
year, we honor the compassion and generosity of registered donors, donor families, and
living donors, and recognize the commitment of medical professionals, researchers,
innovators, champions, and national partners who work firelessly to save and improve
lives through donation and transplantation; and

WHEREAS, the most effective way to address this health crisis is to educate and to
encourage Tennesseans to commit to registering their decision to be organ, eye, and
tissue donors in the Donate Life Tennessee Registry, DonateLifeTN.org, or at their local
Driver Services Center; and

NOW, THEREFORE, |, Kevin C. Morrison, Mayor of Greene County, do hereby proclaim
April 2024 as

in Greene County, Tennessee and encourage all citizens to join me and celebrate the lives
saved, honor the donors and their families, and inspire hope for those waiting for a
second chance at life.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto
set my hand and caused the official seal of
Greene County, Tennessee to be affixed
this eighteenth day of March 2024.

Greene County Mayor

/9 Maneh 2924

Date




County of Greene

PROCLAMATION

By The Honorable County Mayor

WHEREAS, one in every 2,500 pregnancies are diagnosed with a congenital diaphragmatic hernia
(CDHj); and

WHEREAS, Congenital Diaphragmatic Hernia occurs when a baby's diaphragm fails to fully form;
allowing abdominal organs into the chest cavity and preventing lung growth; and

WHEREAS, since 2000, it is estimated that over 700,000 babies have been born with CDH;
however, only 50 percent of those babies survived; and

WHEREAS, CDH is as common as Spina Bifida and Cystic Fibrosis; however, very few people
know about it or are aware of it; and

WHEREAS, more than 1,600 babies are born with CDH every year in the United States; and

WHEREAS, there are many people living in Tennessee who have been diagnosed with and have
survived their CDH, many families in Tennessee have endured the horrible pain and grief
associated with the loss of loved ones with CDH; and

WHEREAS, CDH International is a 501(c)3) nonprofit organization that was created to help
families affected by CDH; and

WHEREAS, those with CDH often endure multiple surgeries and possible medical
complications beyond their diagnosis that include heart defects, pulmonary complications, gastric
and intestinal problems, developmental delays, and may require respiratory and medicinal support
for years; and

WHEREAS, raising awareness of this congenital defect will help bring about acceptance and
support for those suffering with it and will help advocate for urgently needed medical research and
advances.

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Kevin C. Morrison, Mayor of Greene County, do hereby proclaim April 19,

Uwarverzess Doy

in Greene County, Tennessee and encourage all citizens to join me in this special observance of
education and awareness of this too often subdued lifelong medical condition and its impact on our
people and our community.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto
set my hand and caused the official seal
of Greene County, Tennessee to be
affixed this eighteenth day of March 2024.

Greene County Mayor

18 arned 2024

Date




County of Greene

PROCLAMATION

By The Honorable County Mayor

WHEREAS, Autism Spectrum Disorder (ASD) is a neurological disorder that can
significantly impair an individual's ability to learn healthy interactive behaviors and
understand verbal and nonverbal reciprocal communication; and

WHEREAS, ASDs affect young people and adults of every background, and millions of
American families know the weight of their impact as ASDs affect 1 in 36 children, while
more than 3 million individuals in the United States are affected; and

WHEREAS, although a cure has not been found, persons with Autism can be helped to
reach their greatest potential with accurate, early diagnosis and appropriate education; and

WHEREAS, this day serves as an opportunity to promote inclusivity, advocate for the rights
of individuals on the autism spectrum, and foster a more inclusive society; and

WHEREAS, great strides have been made in our understanding of the autism spectrum,
and today, children and adults with ASDs are leading independent and productive lives, and
while we celebrate the unique talents and qualities of individuals with Autism, barriers still
remain for these individuals and their families; and

WHEREAS, it is important to ensure persons living with ASDs can have the opportunity to
pursue their full measure of happiness and achieve their greatest potential; and

NOW, THEREFORE, |, Kevin C. Morrison, Mayor of Greene County, Tennessee, do hereby
proclaim April 2024 as,

Warld utisire Marthh

in Greene County, Tennessee and encourage all citizens to join me in this worthy
observance. | urge all residents to leam more about autism spectrum disorders by visiting
the Autism Speaks website at www.autismspeaks.org and to reach out to your friends and
neighbors living with or caring for someone with an autism spectrum disorder. Let us strive
to create a world where everyone is valued, respected, and included, regardless of their
neurodiversity. Live with kindness, Lead with kindness, and Learn with kindness.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto
set my hand and caused the official seal
of Greene County, Tennessee to be
affixed this eighteenth day of March 2024.

K (& B~

Greene County Mayor

/9 Meth 20ad

Date




County of Greene

PROCLAMATION

By The Honorable County Mayor

WHEREAS, Parkinson’s disease is the second most common neurodegenerative disease in the
United States, second only to Alzheimer’s, that affects nearly one million people in the United
States and more than ten million people worldwide, causing a range of physical and cognitive
symptoms; and

WHEREAS, symptoms of Parkinson’s vary from person to person and include tremor, slowness,
difficulty with balance, swallowing, chewing, speaking, rigidity, cognitive problems, dementia,
mood disorders, such as depression and anxiety, skin problems, and sleep disruption; and

WHEREAS, Parkinson’s can have a significant impact on the quality of life for individuals and
their families, requiring ongoing medical care, support, and resources; and

WHEREAS, although research suggests the cause of Parkinson’s disease is a combination of
genetic and environmental factors, the exact cause and progression of the disease is still
unknown; and

WHEREAS, there is no objective test for Parkinson's and the rate of misdiagnosis can be high,
raising awareness about this disease is crucial to promote early detection, proper treatment, and
understanding of the challenges faced by those living with the condition; and

WHEREAS, although there is no curg, treatment options vary and include medications, lifestyle
adjustments and surgery. While Parkinson's itself is not fatal, disease complications can be
serious. The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention rated complications from PD as the 14th
cause of death in the United States; and,

WHEREAS, Parkinson's Awareness Month provides an opportunity to educate the public,
healthcare professionals, and policymakers about the importance of continued research,
advocacy, and support for individuals affected by Parkinson’s; and

NOW, THEREFORE, |, Kevin C. Morrison, Mayor of Greene County, Tennessee, do hereby
proclaim April 2024 as

Tarlinsares Uwarveness Mardls

in Greene County, Tennessee and | encourage all citizens to join in raising awareness, supporting
research efforts, and providing assistance to individuals and families affected by Parkinson's
disease. Together, let us work towards a future where Parkinson's is better understood, effectively
treated, and ultimately cured.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set
my hand and caused the official seal of Greene
County, Tennessee to be affixed this eighteenth
day of March 2024.

B (b Wi

Greene County Mayor

(9 Mooy, o202t

Date




STATE OF TENNESSEE
COUNTY OF GREENE

GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY
FEBRUARY 20, 2024
6:00 P.M.

The Greene County Legislative Body was in session on February 20, 2024 at 6:00 p.m.
at the Greene County Courthouse in the Criminal Courtroom (Top Floor) in the Courthouse.

Mayor Morrison called the meeting to order to transact business that has lawfully come
before the Honorable Body. Commissioner Kathy Crawford gave the invocation. Commissioner
Teddy Lawing led the Pledge to the Flag.

Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer,
Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Quillen, Shelton,

Smithson, and Waddle were present. Commissioner White was absent. There were 20 - present

and 1 absent.



PROCLAMATION

A JOINT PROCLAMATION WITH THE TOWN OF GREENEVILLE
DECLARING FEBRUARY 26, 2024, AS ANNA GRACE PARLAPIANO DAY

Mayor Morrison announced that he and Cal Doty, Mayor of the Town of Greeneville,
has declared February 26, 2024, as Anna Grace Parlapiano Day.

“It is with great pride and admiration that we recognize the outstanding achievements
and contributions of Anna Grace Parlapiano. Anna graduated from West Greene High School
and is currently a Freshman Biology Major at ETSU. She was crowned Miss Greene County
Teen in 2022, was the First Runner Up in the Miss Tennessee Teen 2022 pageant and then
went on to win the Miss Nashville Teen title in 2023 and from there she was crowned Miss
Tennessee Teen 2023. Anna just recently finished in the top eleven out of fifty-one contestants,
a significant achievement, in the Miss America’s Teen 2024 pageant recently held in Orlanda,
Florida.”

PROCLAMATION

A PROCLAMATION DECLARING FEBRUARY 2024 AS CTE MONTH
(CAREER & TECHNICAL EDUCATION)

Mayor Morrison presented the Proclamation declaring February 2024 as CTE Month
to Billy Ripley. Career and Technical Education (CTE) refers to the rigorous academic,
technical, and employability skills or content that is taught through career-focused standards
and courses in grades K-12 and postsecondary institutions that prepare learners for advanced
educations, training, and employment if aligned occupations and careers.

We urge all Greene Countians to become familiar with the services and benefits
offered by the career and technical education programs offered a Chuckey Doak High School,
North Greene High School, South Greene High School, and West Greene High School and to
join together in celebrating and supporting Career and Technical Education and its positive
impact on our students, our workforce, and our society.

PROCLAMATION

A PROCLAMATION DECLARING SEVERE WEATHER AWARENESS DAY ON
FEBRUARY 24, 2024, AND SEVERE WEATHER AWARENESS WEEK
FEBRUARY 25 -MARCH 2, 2024

Mayor Morrison presented the Proclamation declaring February 24, 2024 as
Severe Weather Awareness Day and February 25 — March 2, 2024 as Severe Weather
Awareness Week to Heather Sipe.

In Greene County, we encourage all citizens to educate themselves and raise their
awareness on the dangers of server weather, develop a response and communications plan
for their families and household in the event of severe weather, and in general remain
vigilant and tuned in to media outlets and alerts for changes in the weather.



PROCLAMATION

A PROCLAMATION DECLARING MARCH 10, 2024,
AS GREENE COUNTY’S DAY OF HOPE

Mayor Morrison presented the Proclamation declaring March 10, 2024, as Greene
County’s Day of Hope to Cindy Wilhoit.

“We urge all Greene Countians to join together and reaffirm our individual, collective,
private, and public efforts to overcome and persevere against the societal plaques of
homelessness, substance addiction, mental health disorders, drug overdose, and suicide with
a firm resolve in HOPE that there is an expectation of a better tomorrow and in all the days
to come for all Greene Countians.”

PROCLAMATION

A PROCLAMATION DECLARING MARCH 21, 2024,
AS WORLD DOWN SYNDROME DAY

Mayor Morrison announced the Proclamation declaring March 21, 2024, as World Down
Syndrome Day.

“We urge all Greene Countians to join together in full support of all individuals with
Down Syndrome; and celebrate their unique abilities, strengths, and contributions , leading full
and fulfilling lives as equal, loving, valued, and contributing members of our community.”

PROCLAMATION

A PROCLAMATION DECLARING NATIONAL AGRICULTURAL DAY ON
MARCH 21, 2024, NATIONAL AGRICULTURAL WEEK, MARCH 17 —23, 2024,
AND UT EXTENSION INSTITUTE OF AGRICULTURE MONTH, MARCH 2024

Mayor Morrison presented the Proclamation declaring National Agricultural Day on
March 21, 2024, National Agricultural Wee, March 17 — 23, 2024, and UT Extension Intitute
of Agriculture Month, March 2024.

“In Greene County, Tennessee and ask that all citizens of Greene County join me in
thankfulness and congratulate all farmers and farm families for a job well done for their
contributions.”



PROCLAMATION

A PROCLAMATION DECLARING SUDDEN UNEXPLAINED DEATH IN
CHILDHOOD (SUDC) AWARENESS MONTH, MARCH 2024

Mayor Morrison announced the Proclamation declaring Sudden Unexplained Death

in Childhood (SUDC) Awareness Month, March 2024.

“In Greene County, we urge all Greene Countians to learn more SUDC and join
together in full support of all families that have gone through such an unthinkable loss, one
that is compounded exponentially when a child’s passing occurs without warning or identifiable

cause.”



PUBLIC HEARING

Timothy Vonglis, Greene County Seventh District Constable, asked that the Commission
choose to keep the office of constable in Greene County. He said that constables would take
more training if they had the opportunity. “If we were offered more training or were told
we had to have more training, each and every one of us would be happy to take it.”

Commissioner Murray called on Eric Reach, attorney and a trainer for the East Tennessee
Constables Association. He said that the benefits constables do perform in Greene County
and every county is serve and civil process. Constables have the ability to serve and civil
process to serve General Sessions Court warrants and eviction warrants all that comes through
this county. He said warrants have to be served and the Sheriff’s Department does not have
time to serve warrants with all the other responsibilities they have. He said Constables play
a vital role in this process.

Commissioner Murray called on Von Holt, a security guard, who spoke against
abolishing the Office of Constable in Greene County. She said the Constables are elected by the
citizens of Greene County and the citizens should have the right to vote on whether to keep
Constables.

Commissioner Parton called on Eddie Jennings, who spoke against abolishing the
Office of Constable in Greene County. He said the Constables were elected by the citizens of
Greene County and the citizens should have the right to vote by a referendum. He asked the
Commission to amend the Resolution to let the people decide whether they want Constables
in Greene County or not.

Commissioner Carpenter called on Vel LaRoche to speak in regards for more funding
for the Roby Adult Center for the next Fiscal Year.

Commissioner Clemmer called on Jacob Thompson, Secretary-Treasurer of the
Tennessee Constables Association to speak in regards to the need for more training
Constables. “We realize in order to preserve our office, we have to improve ourselves.”
He asked the Commission to help the Constables Association in getting more training
requirements for constables approve at the state level. “Help us to raise the training and
qualification standards for constables all across the state.”

Commissioner White joined the Commission Meeting at 6:35 p.m.



APPROVAL OF PRIOR MINUTES

A motion was made by Commissioner Crawford and seconded by Commissioner
Anderson to approve the prior minutes.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. Commissioners
Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford,
Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Quillen, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle,
and White voted yes. The vote was 21 — aye; 0 — nay; and 0 — absent. Mayor Morrison

announced the prior minutes were approved.



REPORTS
VETERAN’S REPORT
FINANCIAL REPORT FROM THE BOARD OF EDUCATION
REPORTS FROM SOLID WASTE DEPARTMENT
COMMITTEE MINUTES

A motion was made by Commissioner Carpenter and seconded by Commissioner
Anderson to approve the Veteran’s Report, Financial Report from Board of Education,
Reports from Solid Waste Department, and Committee Minutes.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. The following
vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter,
Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Quillen,

Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and White voted yes. The vote was 21 — aye; 0 — nay; and

0 —absent. The Commissioners voted in favor of the motion to approve the notaries.



ELECTION OF NOTARIES

Mayor Morrison read the names requesting to be notaries to be approve by the
Commission. A motion was made by Commissioner Murray and seconded by Commissioner
Carpenter to approve the notary list.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. The following
vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter,
Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Quillen,
Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and White voted yes. The vote was 21- aye; 0 —nay; and

0 — absent. The Commissioners voted in favor of the motion to approve the notaries.



RESOLUTION A: A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE GREENE COUNTY
SCHOOLS BUDGET FOR CHANGES IN REVENUES & EXPENDITURES FOR
THE FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 (GENERAL PURPOSE SCHOOL FUND)

A motion was made by Commissioner Carpenter and seconded by Commissioner
Commissioner Bible to approve a Resolution to amend the Greene County Schools Budget
for changes in Revenue and Expenditures for the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 (General Purpose
School Fund).

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. The following
vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter,
Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters,
Quillen, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and White voted yes. The vote was 21 — aye; 0 — nay;

and 0 — absent. The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION B: A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE
BODY AUTHORIZING SUBMISSION OF AN APPLICATION FOR A LITTER
AND TRASH COLLECTION GRANT FY 2024-2025 FROM THE
TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION AND
AUTHORIZING THE ACCEPTANCE OF SAID GRANT

A motion was made by Commissioner Smithson and seconded by Commissioner
Anderson to approve a Resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body authorizing
submission of an application for a Litter and Trash Collection Grant FY 2024-2025 from the
Tennessee Department of Transportation and authorizing the acceptance of said grant.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. The following
vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter,
Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Quillen,

Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and White voted yes. The vote was 21 — aye; 0 — nay; and 0 —

absent. The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION C: A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE GREENE COUNTY
PURCHASING DEPARTMENT’S INTERNAL CONTROL ASSESSMENT
COUPLED WITH ITS AMENDED POLICIES AND PROCEDURES (EXHIBIT A)
A motion was made by Commissioner Carpenter and seconded by Commissioner
Peters to approve a Resolution approving the Greene County Purchasing Department’s Internal
Control Assessment coupled with its Amended Policies and Procedures (Exhibit A).
County Attorney Roger Woolsey explained to the Commission of the correction

made on page 12 and 13 of the Policies and Procedures listed below:

XV1, WRITTEN POLICES AND PROCEDURES GOVERNING PURCHASES
AT PUBLICLY ADVERTISED AUCTIONS IN PERSON OR ONLINE

Greene County is authorized to purchase new or secondhand articles or equipment
or other materials, supplies, commodities, and equipment at any publicly advertised
auction in person or online pursuant to TCA 2-2-421 without the necessity of using the
public advertisement and competitive bidding process subject to the following policies and
procedures;

B. If the county purchases any materials, supplies, commodities or equipment at a
publicly advertised auction pursuant to subsection (a), then the purchase official shall
report the following information to the governing body of the county making such
purchase:

1. A description of the material, supplies, commodities or equipment that was
purchased;

2. The auction where such items were purchased.
3. The purchase price of such items; and
4. The vendor of such materials, supplies, commodities or equipment.

A motion was made by Commissioner Peters and seconded by Commissioner
Lawing to amend the Resolution to include the correction to the Written Policies and

Procedures governing purchases at publicly advertised auctions in person or online.



Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads,. The following
vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter,
Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Peters, Quillen, Shelton,
Smithson, and White voted yes. Commissioners Parton and Waddle voted no.

The vote was 19 — aye; 2 — nay; and 0 — absent. The motion to amend the Resolution was
approved.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. The following
vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter,
Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Peters, Quillen,
Shelton, Smithson, and White vote yes. Commissioners Parton and Waddle voted no.

The vote was 19 — aye; 2 — nay; and 0 — absent. The motion to approve the amended
Resolution passed.

Commissioner Murray asked question concerning the purchasing bid of $25,000 instead
of $10,000.

Purchasing Director, Krystal Justis, explained the reasoning of keeping the purchasing
bid at $25,000 instead of $10,000.



RESOLUTION D: A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE COUNTY
LEGISLATIVE BODY APPROPRIATING $1,170 TO THE DRUG RECOVERY
COURT FOR FUNDS RECEIVED AS CONTRIBUTIONS FOR RECOVERY
COURT GRADUATES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

A motion was made by Commissioner Crawford and seconded by Commissioner
Bible to approve a Resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body appropriating $1,170
to the Drug Recovery Court for funds received as contributions for Recovery Court Graduates
for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. The following
vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter,
Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Quillen,

Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and White voted yes. The vote was 21 — aye; 0 — nay; and

0 — absent. The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION E: A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE
BODY APPROPRIATING $917 TO THE SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT FOR FUNDS
RECEIVED AS CONTRIBUTIONS AND SALE OF RECYCLED MATERIALS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2024
A motion was made by Commissioner Carpenter and seconded by Commissioner
Anderson to approve the Resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body appropriating
$917 to the Sheriff’s Department for funds received as contributions and sale of recycled
materials for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024.
Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. The following
vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter,
Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters,

Quillen, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and White voted yes. The vote was 21 — aye; 0 — nay;

and 0 — absent. The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION F: A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE COUNTY
LEGISLATIVE BODY TO APPROPRIATE $61,000 IN COLLECTIONS
FROM THE TITLE AND REGISTRATION FEE SET BY T.C.A 55-6-104
FOR THE ADDITION OF ONE FULL-TIME CLERICAL POSITION FOR
THE FISCAL YEAR
A motion was made by Commissioner Crawford and seconded by Commissioner
Quillen to approve a Resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body to appropriate
$61,000 in collections from the Title and Registration Fee set by T.C.A. 55-6-104 for
the addition of one full-time clerical position for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2024.
Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. The following
vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter,
Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Quillen,

Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and White voted yes. The vote was 21 — aye; 0 — nay; 0 — absent.

The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION G: A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE COUNTY
LEGISLATIVE BODY TO APPROPRIATE $386,450 FROM THE SOLID
WASTE FUND - #116 UNASSIGNED FUND BALANCE FOR THE
PURCHASE OF EQUIPMENT AND INCREASED LABOR COSTS
FOR THE FYE JUNE 30, 2024

A motion was made by Commissioner Crawford and seconded by Commissioner
Carpenter to approve a Resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body to appropriate
$386,450 from the Solid Waste Fund - #116 Unassigned Fund Balance for the purchase
of equipment and increased labor costs for the FYE June 30, 2024.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. The following
vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter,
Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters,
Quillen, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and White voted yes. The vote was 21 — aye; 0 — nay;

0 — absent. The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION H: A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE COUNTY
LEGISLATIVE BODY TO RE-APPROPRIATE $259,000 FROM THE
HIGHWAY FUND - #131 ASPHALT PLANT OPERATIONS TO CAPITAL
OUTLAY FOR THE PURCHASE OF AN ASPHALT PAVER FOR THE
FYE JUNE 30, 2024
A motion was made by Commissioner Shelton and seconded by Commissioner
Murray to approve a Resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body to Re-Appropriate
$259,000 from the Highway Fund - #131 Asphalt Plant Operations to Capital Outlay for
the purchase of an Asphalt Paver for the FYE June 30, 2024.
Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. The following
vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter,
Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters,

Quillen, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and White voted yes. The vote was 21 — aye; 0 — nay;

0 — absent. The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTIONI: A RESOLUTION TO ABOLISH THE OFFICE OF
CONSTABLE IN GREENE COUNTY, TENNESEE (2"° READING)

A motion was made by Commissioner Bowers and seconded by Commissioner
Arrowood to approve a Resolution to abolish the Office of Constable in Greene County,
Tennessee (2™ Reading).

Commissioner Cobble said he did not think the Commission should pursue abolishing
Constables elected by the community.

A motion was made by Commissioner Parton and seconded by Commissioner Murray
to amend the Resolution to put the matter of abolishing Constables on a referendum to be voted
on “by the people”.

County Attorney Roger Woolsey said that the state law only gives the County
Commission the ability to abolish the Office of Constable, and that it cannot be put to a
referendum.

Mayor Morrison stated. “The call to amend the Resolution to put the matter of abolishing
Constables on a referendum to be voted on “by the people” is considered out of order and
the motion to amend the Resolution is lost.”

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. The following
vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bowers, Carpenter, Crawford, Kiker,
Lawing, Peters, Quillen, Shelton, Waddle, and White voted yes. Commissioners Bible,
Burkey, Clemmer, Cobble, Dabbs, Gunter, Murray, Parton, and Smithson voted no.

The vote was 12 — aye; 9 —nay; and 0 — absent. The motion to approve the Resolution

failed since it was not a 2/3 majority vote.



ADJOURNMENT

A motion was made by Commissioner Bible and seconded by Commissioner
Murray to adjourn meeting.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. The following
vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter,
Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Quillen,
Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and White voted yes. The vote 21 — aye; 0 — nay; and 0 — absent.
The motion to adjourn the Commission Meeting passed.

Commissioner Jan Kiker gave the Closing Prayer.

“THE DEADLING FOR SUBMISSION OF RESOLUTIONS FOR THE
NEXT COMMISSION MEETING IS

THURSDAY, MARCH 7, 2024, AT 12:00 P.M.”

“THE NEXT COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING WILL BE MONDAY, MARCH 18, 2024”



STATE OF TENNESSEE
GREENE COUNTY VETERANS SERVICE OFFICE
101 LONGVIEW DRIVE
GREENEVILLE, TN 37745
(423) 798-1707

March 7, 2024

Monthly report for February 2024

Electronic claims submitted: 157

Mailed claims, documents, etc.: 82

Telephone calls: 285

Walk-ins: 82

Appointments: 78

Referrals to other agencies: 35

Veteran's Organization’s Meetings

Veterans of Foreign Wars Post 1990

2. Americap Legion Post 64

3. Disabled American Veterans Chapter 42
4. Elbert Kinser Detachment Marine Corp League

 © 0 &6 o o o

=

Sincerely,
e RGrld

Sonja Forbes
Director/VSO



¥20¢ 1s1¢ Aenuer
1Joday |eloueul

s|ooyos AJuno) susaln)



000 '$'d'd <= -SBEIT-THI

(b8'982'T) Aunuuy d)jeA - - HBETT-WT
£5'T85°T Jeyy - = -TgEIT-THI
000 SUSIDNPRQ Lo NPRID < = 0BETT-THI
00°0 Aujiqesiq sjqesn < = DLETT-WHT
000 yeuqsniy - = -99ETZ-THT
00°0 WN00DY SGUKES \3jedH = = -SOETZ-THT
0070 SSBUYI [EOILD DJqesn = = HOETTTHT
000 WOTAN 3[qesn - - LETT-THT
00°0 2N |oA 21qensp - = -I9ETT-T
000 SBIAGT PUY Sjuslys|ues = = =09£YZ-1vT
00%0 UWIPCOM ISP - - -LSETTIRT
00°0 3y sRULIey JASSAUUBL - - -SSETT-IVT
00°0 Joue) 2Aqesn - £SETZ-THT
00°0 Sul 3y Uuely sIRI0H - - ISEITTHL
00°0 JewRq slyausqduwiod - = -ISETTTHT
00'0 Sjyauag dwie) - - -DSETZT-THT
00°0 Aem pRun - - SPETTIPT
seasl SUT W3[ESH 0095U0D - = -BPETT-IPT
00'0 USpLOY 3jqesn = = -OBETZ-THT
B8Y°LBL'TT 251 - buipuads xal4 - ©eQ POPS - = SHETTTVT
896 SuJ sJaydes) jeuonen R < 14 43
00°0 SUL APt ueapauy - -EVETT-THT
(021 a)n atqesn - - THETT-THT
80°9LE°L Su] RPEIY 0 49 = = -TRETZ-TIHT
00°0 edLRwesues| - - OPEIZ-THT
8b'95T 4QEIS PLGAH JWBURINDY < - TELITTHT
89'€90°2 159 16219 H10P - - -TEETTTHT
{0£95'6) SUORNGLQUOD WIWDINFY - - OEETT-THT
000 uogONpaQ 3P F9A0I0W - - -SZETT-THT
00'0 xe] And3s (e1os - - QIETTTHT
00'0 piedufy puy oYUM XeL uoou] - - -QIETC-THT
(68°€99°0bS) ajqeded syunaooy - - 0OTIZ-THI
€£°98£°060°02T SIUNOSIY JO SMOLRNO PALIAJIA PUe SIBsSY  [&)0L
€£798€°060°07T s9ssY 3oL
8S°LT9'¥5L'T 2UZ SIA 0L JOJ DAIISAY 61 PBY) Bx3 - - -09HT-THT
STTIT (P86 {10.0u0)) 49 JUBLND - SBUMIPUBdX] = = ~00SKT-THT
zTer'ans (1onuoD) ssouesqunou] paiepinbitun - - -00ZPT-IHT
68'967°0ST'S9 SINUSAYY PRIRWINST - = -Q0IPT-THT
(00°206'25T) xey Auadold 2/ges)|ou 404 3ouemolly < = -OISIT-TH1
00°LST'8TE'S 3|qeAroay saxe ) Apadald - - -00STI-THI
000 Spung SIRO waug ang - = -OBKIT-THT
000 SILBLILWIBAOS) JBYID Wold 3ng - = -0EPTI-THT
(-4} SlqeAjeIsY SWIN0IoY -~ -OTPTT-THD
£9°988°675'91 3ISTUL LI YsED < = -OPTTI-THY
98°100'9 jueg uf ysep < = -0ETIT-T#I
Poueieq E_Hn_gﬂ Junoxy JSqUWNN JUNADY

[o0pP$ asoding |eBusD T 2 pung

2 40 § dbey pZoz Aenuer pund qns § pung
Wd 822 ¥202/9/7  dwil/aeq pung-qns pue pung Aq 3ao4s acueieg Aq 393ys ussen tAq pageas)
piojmen) ejhex s uogeEINpy Jo pirog AJUN0Y U pauyRQ 09 PweN Aeydwoy




jooys asodung [esouldn R $jo) punj

00°¢
(££°98£°060°0ZT) IvuejRg pund PUR ‘S30IN0SAY JO SMOU] PALIR)RQ ‘SPRIGEIT 19I0L
(£0°6£5°6TL°0T) sopinb3 |moy
{00°000'002) ZbT 01 ueo] - paudisseun - TPT- -0006£-THT
(ve2cezvl’s) paubisseun - - -D006E-THT
(68°8vT'04L2) weibold (00Y>S PIPUSN - S5 JSUJ-UON JO UOREIIQ 104 paubissy - dS3- -0LLPE-THT
(£9°5ba'T8Y) SARUBOUT JUBWRIRSY - UOEDNp3 104 pRubssy - Ay -S5LPE-THT
(99°128'16) $5200ng 0 sabpLig - uoneonp3 104 paubissy - OIT~ -SS5LbE-TbT
(S1°109'861) uogeanp3 o4 paubissy = - -SS/bE-Tb1
(v1'661'6) RPpET] J3VIED - UORDILSUL 104 PIPLISTY - V1> -09SHE-THT
(sb'£99'201'2) 263, JOUd - STOUBIGUINIUT - - -0ZTRE-THT
(zezev'ens) 23 JUBLIND - SEOLRIGUINDUT - - -OTTPETHT
{oz-208'0s8'60T) sepjiiqen ||olL
00°0 anueAay alqe)eAsul)/poussg Y10 = = -0666Z-THT
(00°2z8°2LT) saxe | Apadoud wanbuyaq paLeed - - -CHEET-THT
(00°Z64'p66'S) saxe) Auadald 3L paLajea - - -OUEET-THT
(00°000's£) (1ou0D) Spuny JBRG wouy SIjsuel] - - -OTS8Z-THY
(6S'b16'62'£8) {|oQuo)) sanuaAsy - - -00S8T-THL
{68°962'0S1°59) (jo1u0D) suogeudosddy - - -00IBZ-THT
S0°TZ6'bT 29SSBUUL JO 23S 0L 3G - - -QESTZ-THPT
{00-000°052} SpuUNy SSYI0 01 InQ - - -00STZ-THT
000 PRIy < TEETZIHT
Vuejeg uondiisaqg Junoooy J2quIng Junaaoy
1005 asading [eRuURD THT : pund
240 7 abed YZoT laenuer pund gns g pury
Wd 8Z:T +20T/8fz  aunlfajeq puni-qng pue puny Aq 3Pays souejeg Aq @9ys ouesy :Aq pageary
puopmer) ejhey 5N uonINP3 jo pJeoq AUno) ausauy PAUYRQ D91 aweN Rejdwa)



TETZGTESE) Y80 69 P 809 6Pa 190 169 £ 1) OOOOEZEZL T TOT OO UOE ZLZ' T INNIASY TVJO T BIALI0 110l  O0UPP
[GLEXT %8L6C 0L Lpr ST (0£Z559) 00000722 000 0000072 SaniaAsy (6201 J9i0 066hy
(61°282'62C) %bZ'ek £1S7C85°S8L (EV LTH'PLS) 00°'000°09€°T 000 00°000°09€°T SYI9 g suoqnqLquo) 0LSbb
(00°G) %%£E'89 00°S6 {00°502) 00°00¢€ 000 00°00€ [ENPPU] WOIJ PRISA0OSY ssbellieq 09SHt
{00'8¢0°'T) %ST'06T (00°€08°T) (00°£08°€) 00°000°C 000 00°000°2 JuaWAIND3 jO 3jes 0ESHy
00’0 Jebpng ON 000 000 00’0 000 000 ypan) 0121844
(9/°928'G1} %0¢"0¢ 09'1S1°2C1 (0+"8¥8°2S) 00°000°SLT 000 00°000°SLT SpUnjay SNOSUERHBOSIN (VAR 4
000 %6079t 2ELT9°T (89°2Z8E'T) 00°000°¢ 000 00°000°E S|eusie pspAIay Jo sjes 114824
(05" LF5°9) %3B88°LT1 {05°¢sT°L) (0S°2ST°Lb) 00°000°0F 000 00'000°0Y s{ejuay feses’ (/74574
(8£°€S£°00T) %EE60E (5£°62€799¢€) {SL6ZE THS) 00°000°SLT 000 00°000°SLT paujex 153U 1198 4
TOF TIPS 6) ToOL BE 0SSP0 202 L0 BL¥F ELL) TUFZS UPE 000 OO FLEOVE  S3JIAHIS LNJSEND 304 53D8VAD IWI0L UOUER
000 %000 00°000°T 00'Q 00°000°1 000 0000071 940 punodbpey (Ui 91 [X:17%7Z
(0¥’ THS6) %Ib'8S 9112’8 ($820€81T) 00'$25°202 00’0 00H25°20¢ PIYD-S994 S0IAIRS AjUNuIwe) 185Ek
000 Yol 'CT 201869 (£9'68T°01) 00'000°08 00’0 00°000°08 SI00YIS |2NPIAIPUT W0 SJ31R09Y (174374
00°0 %466 PSETOSH (91°986'P) 00°000°0S 00’0 00°000°0S SWIANSAS SOyl uonepoasuel ) TeSer
000 %000 00°000°'T 000 00°000°T 000 00°000°T SOUIYDE[Y DUIpUDA #1234
000 %000 00°000'9 000 0070009 000 00'000°'9 APupsd Jo 9jes J2i183 4
TSEEEL) TSt LV OEIPF T 0880t O0005 € [ ) L

(SBSET) %Gt v 0C1EE 1 0850 1) GO005C 000 00°005¢

TOP 679659 1) Tol0 85 PLPOELTECT (9L G6L ZUDB)  ODUOZBEB®Y 00U TGO U0 BE8 1

000 0S5 LT [ XS 00°0Z) 00°00% 000 00 00F Saxe] |eD0] Alcynies Jaulp 0eEOY
000 %00°0 00°000°02 000 00°000°02 00°0 00°000'0T Xe] 9six3 jueg 0ZEOh
000 %ET'8 85°985°p (TP TR 00°000°S 00°0 00°000's Xel juuqg XiW SLZ0b
(££°060°298) %L6'T9 99'$£9°080°¢ (PE°GZE6T0'S) 00°000°001°8 000 00°000°001°8 Xe| s9jes uondQ edx0] 0120
00'0 %T10°PT 79°L6V'12 (8€°20S°E) 00°000'ST 000 00°000°SZ 1BYI0 sexe} 4o Nal u) suswiAed €910
(86°6992°£1) %69 £8°7L6'6L (LT°£20°081) 00°000°09C 000 00°000°09¢ AYIan |edo saxe] Jo nalq uj sjuswaied 9T10b
{§6°G0€) %69°SE SE'8SBE (99 THPTT) 00°000°9 000 00°000°9 YAL SaXe] 0O nal ul sjuaiued T910b
000 %00°0 00°00T°'1 000 00°001°T 000 00°00T°T soxe] an-3id 0ST0b
(LT+18°L) %399'+S 9b°¢LY'6C (¥S°£T5°9E) 00°000°59 000 00°000°s9 Ajjeudd B 15913u] ob10b
(YT'E6E°L) %be Sk 09Ty (65°6LE°bE) 00°000'9L 000 00°000'9L 2D WNDID 0c10b
(29°2) %61 £9°'181 (Le8b) 00°00¢ 000 00°00¢ ADjannjueg uoRde||eD 3V S0y
{ZT'SLLPT) %ET L9 v.'6L6'8S (92°0¢0°TZT) 00°000°08T 000 007000081 YA 10Ud-SUOIDII0D) SS9snd ] 0210t
{SC°T05°6E1) %b9°2S S1°850'688°C (bS'TP6'0TTE) 000000019 000 00°000'00T°9 Xe| AJ3d0Jd Jusun) 0TT0V
ANUIAIY JUIILND) pazieay pazieaauny pazijeay aLA pajewnisy |ejoL SJUIWPUIWY 353 [euIbLIO

% |OOYDS ISOAIN esUID) 16T : pund
240 T 2beq $T0T Asenuer pund gns Aq
JUBLWNRIS BNUBASY
Wd ST:Z $202/9/¢C sawiL/aedq pUNL-qns AQ SINUIADY J0 JudWEIS 297 :Aq payeas)

pIomern) ejaey

o8N

uonexnpg jo pieog Ajuno) auadln

pauyaq DO JWEN dlejdwa



TIZS6v 812 T) Ttl 25 UECEE OB ZL G vIGvBCIE] 6B UGLUGTSY  GBGLUCIEE  UUZ9C 8L9 10 TFT [pung 103 [E300
00 TolD OV D00000P  (OUOUDGE) U0 000 52 000 00000 52 SEJUN0S §3H10 IVIOL 00069
000 %000 00°000°sL 00°0 00°000°SZ 000 00°000°sL SIsjsuer] buifelsdo 0086
000 J2bpng oN (00°000°SE) (00°000°9€) 000 000 000 AIAQIIY dueINSUT 00.6%
TOG FLS EYJ BT UL BV BUC JEL S IeZ93)  UOOEGLBF 000 OO UEG ZB1 INIWNEIA0D vE3033 W10l CO0ZP
000 Ta00 0 00700007 000 00000707 00 00000 0T MBS 152105 089LF
(9€'10T’9) %9Z'9v 28'p60°0¢€ (81°506°52) 00'000°9S 00’0 00°000°95 Juswssingquiay D10Y [0, 2744
bS'eLg's) %SE9C 99'€1198 (P£'91R0E) 00°0£6911 00'0 00°0£6"911 &S yonoly] jesspad Bya0 06S.b
000 %000 00°000°S 000 00'000°'s o] 00°000°S paddedjpuey 3y3 §0 uofesnpl [24Vid
TEEIGT 18O D) ToUB 95 ZLEIZP0I0C  (Z1TB9Stel Zl)] 6B LPEBL6ZP  696ZUOCZIEE  UUEIE 909 VP FISSINNTGL 30 IIVIS WWVIOL UU09F
000 %00°0 00°04T°E 000 00°0LT°E 00°0 00°04T°E Sje15 97535 Joqio 0865F
00'0 %000 89°GE9°EVC 000 89'0£9°€HC 89'9£9°EVT 000 uess AJUNIAS joOYdS dqQnd 0869
(SL'ELT'8ST) %eL'8 91°049°204'C (SLEL1'8SC) 16'€48°096°C T16'€P8'096°C 000 WSI-|euoReIoA Jai0 06L9¢
(96'€HE'0E} %60°'09 £7°9£6°02T (££°£90°28T) 00'000°€0€ 000 00°000°€0€ Spund uonednp3 ajels Ao 0659
000 %00°0 00'000'TE 000 00°000°'1€ 000 00°000°1€E uof1eDnn3 sisAUQ 0S99y
000 12Dbpng ON (£0°008°v2) (£0°008'vZ) 00°0 000 000 dappeT Isale) 01939
000 %00°C TTTEIT 000 TUEIT’ETT TT°E9T°ETT 000 daid peds S1SSH
(S9°26£°61T) %E9'EE 0S°291°T10°1 (69°99£°C1S) 6T°62S€2S"T 61°98¢'t 00°EPT'61S°T A=dd S S1S99b
(L6°SBL'ELT'Y) %6£'19 ZI°SER'E0S 9T (88°¥91°9%¢'9C) 00°000°0SL°¢Yy 00’0 00°000°0SL°2y JU3pMS Ul JU3UGSIAU] 93sSauUlR | 01S9Y
BNUSAIY JuUaLIN) pazeey pozjjeaiun pazijesy ali pajew}sy [e10l SUBWIpUAWY 153 |euibLO
% {00YIS BSONg [RJaUas) T rpund
T 30 ¢ 30ed $Z0z AMenuer pund gns Aq
JUDWISINS DNUBADY
Wd ST:Z $202/9/2 PwL/9eg PuUnd-qns Aq SanNuaAaY Jo Jusnels 291 iAq pajessd
piomen) ejae)y HET) uoReodnp3 §o pieog AJUNOY) FUIAY pauyag DO JWeN ANejawat



%ER'E (ve 0£6°e66) 8/°6€8°EE 88'62L'S 000 (00°00S€€0’T) (00000981} (00°00s'£v8) juswdinbg uopruisug JenBay  TTL
Wbk (ZE'89rT) T€°S0€ LEVETHTT L1'066 (00°800’652) 009 (00°800°652) sabieyd RO 668
%I10°82-  (S0°0TZ'ob) 00°0 (soo1T'01) 000 (00°001°9€) 00°0 (00°001'9€) sfeusiely puy saiddns 2o 664
%8TBET  0S'2L5'11T 000 0522261 000 (0005208 00 {(00'052'08} alemyos 1LY
%09'891  ZHTOEY 0L 12T eL6Ls'te 00°££9°C (00°000°0S) 000 (00°000°0S) punog - sjooqxdL  6bb
%00°0 (00'000's) 00°0 000 00°0 {00°000’s) 000 (00°000°S) Suands3 - sjooqel  0£b
%95°s9  (S9°780'6D) £6'TET°Z Z2r'S82°16 £6'9L1 (00'005°Z4T) 000 (0000S‘THT) so)ddng (euowpngsur 62
%0085 (00°094°2€) 00°000°6T 00°062'92 00'0 (00°00082) 000 {00°000'82) SIDINRS POYDeRUO] BP0 66E
%96'8C  {BE'TVTET) 000 19°'(SE°S £6°95¢ (00°005'81) 000 {00°005'81) 1dinb3-sacatag tedoy puy soueusiuiel  9EE
%00'00T  00'TL6'E 00’0 00'2L6'€ 0052 00’0 00°0 000 Sapuaby ajeAud iim spenuo)  ZTE
w8y  (96°95L'SE) 00°0 YO'EHTYE 1£'67L'9 {00°000°02) 000 {00°000'02) UORRZIIqeIS PUGAH - JuswIgY /17
%aT'Th  (SL'POV'ZLT) 000 STLETHTL LB LEV'ET {(00°209'70€) 000 (00°209'T0E) aledipal) BAOIdWI  CTZ
%119 (91'556'6) 00°0 $S'#H0'0T 00°0 {00"000'97} 000 (00°000'92) uogesuadwo) uawAodwaury  0TZ
%ILET  (00'ELL'PE) 000 00°£25°S 00'0S0°T (00°00€"0p) 000 (00"00g‘0p) suemsu] [usg 80T
%6v'8s  (60'L98'bSH'T) 000 16'SH€°050C 06'879'V0E (00°€T2"505°€) 00°0 (oo'€T2's05°s) duensuT [P £0C
%I (09°09K°7) 000 0b¢SEE 9878k (o0g18°s) 000 (00°818'S) aueinsuI 3y 902
%ZS'st  (£6'067°€62) 000 078799 99°04£'seT (00'€z1'95¢1) 000 (00"s21'95p'T) Wwaweiey s H0Z
%090y (LT'E10°99L) 000 £8'€65'€TS PELI6'Y6 (00'209'682°T) 000 (00°209'682°1) Aunass |epes  T0T
%6958  (£Z'0£0'ST) 00'0 £7°696'68 85'PLH'TT (00°000°501) 000 {(00'000'507) siayes psqns paynad-uoN 86T
%S9bL  (TTrLLT) 00'0 85'252°CS £9'156°L (00'000°0) 000 (00°000°0L) SI9Yoes] SIMOsqnS peuned  S61
%Lt (b9°92¥'9TL) 000 9£'E65'EET (¢19°£96'65) (00°020’058) 000 (007020058} sabepp g sauejes 1BLRO 681
%S8'ee  (SLET0'b18) 00'0 STHLH9TH 8TpEL'SS (00'88Y"0£2'1) 000 {00'88b'0£2'T) sjuegsissy jeuoneonpl €97
%9Lvz  (00°SET'SH) 000 00°558'p1 000 (00°000°09) 000 (00°000°09) SPenue) papuapy seppe] ey LZT
%SH'ST  (01'€LT'LE) 00°0 06°92L'TT 8E£°GHS'T (00°000°05) 000 (00°000'05) weibouq seppetssauel  LTT
%5626 (b8'E0ETTHIT) 00'0 9T'20¢£'8Eb'8 £6'2/8'W9'T (005096586 1) 00°0 {00°909'658°61) siayoea)  GTT
001TL
ax3 souejeq saouelqINOU]  sainypuadx3  saInypuRdx3 1e6png SuWpuswWy junowy 39bpng uonRdidsaQ JUNCIDY  JBSQUINN JUNOIDY
bpng pasequnduaupn Buipuesing 2jkeg-03-4edA eg-oi-yjuon popuawy 19bpng
JO %

jooyds Isodingd |eiausn YT D pund

1 40 T 3bed $T0T Aenuer
Wd £2:Z $702/9/2 sBwl /ajeq pung Aq fqQ Aq Alewiwng sadmipuadxy jo Juswels 291 :Aq paeas)
piogmer) ejhey H9s5n uoneonp3 Jo pieog AJunod auaalg peulRq D91 PweN 3jejdwa]L



00ETL

%obzy (0S°818°8ZS‘T)  OL'E06’S T6'PPS'SS8'T L8 LTL'TTE (rv-26T’068Y)  (TL°E9T'ETT) (00'vET’LLT'D) weiboud uopjesnp3 jeiddds  0OZTL €30l
%859 (¥s'69¢°¢) 000 9b'0€T 00’0 {00°005°€) (00°00S'€) 00°0 wowdinbg uogeanpy |eads  G¢Z
%6Lvr  (LLT98'Y) 99'1£9'T 89°6Z0°C 00°0 (11°£92°8) (trers'y) (00'052'€} sjeusiely puy ss(iddns syl 661
%1656  (29°'€6S) POZECY PE'VLY'G SOE9 (00°005°¥T) 000 (00°005'%1) safddng jeuononasu]  6Th
%000 (00"009) 00°0 00°C 00°0 (00 005) 00'0 (00°00S) 1dinb3-sa0nRs 1eday puy soueusjuiely  9EE
%000 {00'008) 00'0 00'0 000 (00°005) 000 {00°00S) funss] puy uonenieAl  Z2€
%6966  (0Z°6€T) 000 08°092'9L 000 (00°000°2¢) 000 {00°000°L) sapusby 2jeAud Lpim spenua) 1€
%09k  (86'TIS'V) 000 20°88bE »9'0K9 (00°0008) 00'0 {00'000°8) uonezyiges PUgAH - usuRunsy  L1T
%8y’ (20619'82) 000 86°S51°LT 6T'bST'E (00°SLL'Sk) {00°084) (00°566'v) aleaipay RAouz  ZTT
%00°0 {00'sze’e) 00°0 00°0 000 (00°52€"0) (00°sz) (00'0s2'27) uonesuadwo) wawhodwaun  0TZ
%L9p (00°2£9'S) 000 00°8£2 00'8¢1 (00°056°S) (00°0S¥) (00°005'S) 2ueinsyr [|uag 80T
%68°TS  (Lp'9BE'bBT) 000 £5°08£°90€ L1948V (00°£91°169) (00'006'2h) (00°292'8v5) aouesnsyl jeoipaly  £0T
%eg6e  (bEvea) 00°0 99°65b 26'59 {00'psT'T) (00'sp) (00'601°1) dueinsur 3y 90T
%sLge  (SHeRZ'EeLT) 00'0 55'762'88 £TTIT9T {00"185°192) (00001'S) (00°18b'952) wewapsy s +0C
%z5'se  (PI°E61'92T) 00°0 98'705'69 18°SZ6°CT (00°969'56T) (00°00€'€) (00'96€°26T) Aundas epos 10C
%08'90¢  8T'9Lb'PT 000 8T'9L+°7C S2'E69'2 (00°000°2) 000 (00°000°2) SIPYDed) HMASINS payruad-uoN 861
%ITv.  {6268T'T) 000 1L01L’e ST'S09 (00°000°S) 000 (00°000°s) SIPEI | NSNS PpIYIMAD  S6T
%902 {06'b£6'£52) 00°0 orepL'1zt £T°TE9'TC (00122648 00'0 (00'12£'648) 1sibojotped yosads TLT
%be'6E  (26°569°TL0) 000 BO'EY6'6LT 7L'890°ET (00'6£915b) (00°005°25) (00°6£1'66€) sjuesissy (euoneonpl €91
%96'SE  (bETIT'PL) 000 99'619'TH §2'996'S (00'1E£'STT) 000 (o0'18L'sTT) s18ydea) punogawoy  8CT
%eeee (00°999°T) 000 0gsee’t 99'99Z (00'000') 000 {00"000'v) weiboid soppe Jsasey  LTT
%0TTr  (00°TET00£'T) 000 00°€90°T16 00'65Z'081 (00°s62°112°2) 000 (00's62'11T°0) slipeal 97T
00CTL
%IT'er (08'6L5°90P'LT) L B66'9S B 9SS‘6ST'ET 0Z"ESY'STT'T (oo-seT’eev’os) (o0o'c00’98T) (00'SET'£E10E) weibold vopnisul Jejnboy 00ITZ 0L
%00'00T  00°0Z9'6S 000 00°0Z9'6S 00°0 000 000 000 Jwewdinby B0 067
00TTL
ax3 souejed ssduelquIndul  sadnjpuadxy  ssumpuadig 9bpng SjU3pUBWY  Junowy yabpng uondiasaq UNO2Y  JaqUINN JUNCODY
jo6png pasequmuaun Bupuesing ageQq-03-1e2A  9IR@-03-HIUOKW papuawy 396png
JO %

jooyas asodind jerauan T pungd

b1 4o T abeg #2707 Aenuer
Wd 222 $202/9/2 1wl fareq pund Aq [q0 Aq Alewwns saunypusdx3 Jo JuswWes 91 i1Aq pojesu)
pagyme) eiie) uesn uogednpd Jo pieog Aunod susaun pauyeg D91 eweN srejdwal



%000 (oo'szz) 000 000 00°0 (00's22) 000 (00°sZ2) soueinsul jequsa 802
%ee'ss  (08'€Z8'T) 000 02°'195°01 00°S9'T (00°'SBH'TT) 000 {00"s8v'ZT) aouelnsu] [eipaw  £0Z
%za 18 (00'%) 000 00°8T o'z (o0zd) 00°0 {00°z2) asueansur N 902
%60°cs  (9¥'L9b"S) 00°0 $5'£8T°9 61296 (00's59"11) 000 (00°SS9'TT} wewaigy ms  H0T
%eb'19  (ISEV6D 000 66004 'Y 8E'6€L (00'v¥9°7) 00'0 (00 b9°2) Aunos jepos  T0Z
%9y (09°L4v'9g) 00°0 0r'$50'92 80'TIZ'S (00°ce5°29) 000 (00°€£529) sobem g souejes oo 68T
%69ss  (0008€'£T) 000 00°00£°€Z 00°09T'€ (00°080°1H) 00'0 (00°080°TH) jeuuosIdd |edpspy 9T
%6726 (€9°€08T7) 00°0 LE°EET6T 16°39T'% (00°2€6'05) 00°0 (00°££6%09) Jopaugfiosmesdns  SOT
01I2L
%ED'TE (ETTSY'SOL'E) V6LVE'SLT YL TL6'88Y'T 0£'80Y'L0E (re'T082LE's)  (16'vr9'9r9’r)  (00°2ZST°922°7) weibord UoiEINp] [RUORRIOA  DOETL [=joL
%00'vT  (2T'8L5TLTT) 00°005°25T 0S'TES'YS 66611 (2£°609°8Lb°T) (22°6SE"VoV'T) {00°0S2'b1) wswdinb3 uomonasu jeuonesop  QEL
%00°0 (o0 ££1’2n) 00°0 00'0 000 (00'241°T0) 000 o241 ssbleyy PO 665
%b6'0T  (90°989°0E9) 6£°907 S6°00€'LL 000 (0B'¢61°802) (08's61°589) (00'000°€2) sieusiey puy sayddns ;sipo 661
%00°0 (00°000°97) 000 00°0 00°0 {00°000'92) (00°000'9Z} 00'0 aemyos T/
%ys8T  {0£°8TZ'6ET) ST'TH9'ST 854509 192 {€0°b16°021) (£0'b16°28) (00°000°88) solddns jeuomdnnsuy - 6¢
%000 (00'000°T) 000 000 00’0 (00°000'T) ] {00'000'1) adinb3-sadiases Jeday puy soueuauely  SEE
%S8'SyT 06 TIE'EHT 00’0 06°S¥8'SSH SLPLLEST {00'v€S'CIE) 80°0 (00'beszre) SWa3ISAS [0OIS S0 YiM spenuod  TIE
%Zp'IT  (£8'07€'61) 000 €1°68b°C [9°EEY {00°008'12) 00°0 {00°008'12) uonez|qe)s PUgAH - JudweMRd  LTZ
%p0'c  (ST'ZITIE) 00'0 9°TE'6 $8°629'T {LLv55'0) (LL7vTs’'y) {00"0£0°9€) aueipaly Jododwy  C1T
%000 (o0"002°c) 000 00°0 000 {00'002°c) 000 (00-c0z’s) vonesusdwoy waswAodwauny  0TZ
%000 (00°009°8) 000 00'0 000 (00'0098) {007052) (007058°2) ouednsul [ewsq  80Z
%ee/E (£9°9SE°T6T) 000 £€'/46'ETT 8L6TH LT (00'vEE’S0¢) {00°295'5€) (00°2££'692) Souelnsu [ £0C
%9zeY (586911} 000 ST'8.T 11792 (00'H€'T) (0002) 00bLT'T) soueansul a1 90T
%SH'EZ  (TT'STT'8ST) 00'0 P bER S 9z°205'8 (59'65902) {59'€08°22) {00°9%£ €81) wawaigey s H0T
%EE'RZ  (29°258°€6) 00’0 82'660°LE 15°86€° (06°256'0ET) (xata4y) {00°0vS'8TT) Aumeg epos  T0T
%£6'e9  (0Z0TH'S) 00°0 0E'685'6 00'1£6 (00°000°ST) 000 (00°000°s7) siBUpea) IMASqns PIYD-uoN 86T
%SL0z  (84'906°6) 000 75°€6SC 05'661 (00"00s'zT) 0070 {60'005°21) SIsyoed ) SIMNSANS paypiey  G6T
%00°0 o Tsp°LT) 000 00'0 000 (H0'1SK"LT) F0'1SHLT) 00°0 sobem  saueles B0 68T
%9sEr  (SZ'0927991) 000 SLTPE'SLT SZ'0S5v¢ (00°€09'v62) (00°£09'¥62) 00°0 jpuuosiag soueping €21
%91y (S0°0SL'T) 000 S6'6YT'T 66'65C {00°000'€) 000 (00°000°) wesboid Joppe ey L1T
%esee  (99°2£5°050°T) 000 PEOrE' TS YO'SET'EE {00'v8Y'709°T) 000 (co'¥8v'209'1) sayoesl 91T
00ETL
ax3 2ouejeg ssouRiqunduy  saunypusdxy  ssunypuadxy Jebpng SuBWpUdWY  junowy yab6png uondidsag JuNoodyY  43GUINN JUNVIoY
wbpng paRqumuaun Guipueising eq-03-1294 D3eq-0)-YJUo papuauwy 126png
30 %

jooyds asoding |e1auas vt :pund

T jo € 3bed $z0C Adenuer
Wd £T°T ¥202/9/T wil /aed pund Aq [qO Aq AJeWiwng saumpuadxy JO JU3WNEIS 291 1Aq poressy
plojmen) ejie)y 9SN uoyedNpy jo pleog AJuno) aussin pauyaq D97 awepN ejdway



%6b'ZT  (STTZS'ZSY) 000 SL°8Lb'TT SL'S6b'Y (00°000°08T) 000 (c0°00008T) sabep g soLejes 1o 681
%2929 (01°69192) 000 06'999'pS 00°188'9 (00°918'08) 000 (0091808} suepusiy  ¥91
%0tk (29'785°b09) 000 8E'H00'6ER 9T'OVE'VL (00°£8Sep0’T) (00°000'7) (00°285'TH0'T) [puuosiag dueping €21
%000 {00°000T) 000 00°0 00°0 (00°000) 000 {00'000°T) weiboid soppet o) LTT
OETZL
%8v'6L {8S°ZVB69T) TTIYE'0T 0£°SOV L9 09°996'99 (00'vs9'z28) 00°0 {o0'vs9’czs) 0zZIZL @01
(29t 15'199°1ST P E50'E 20°219'bST 00’0 (0070009} 000 (00'000'9) juswdinby yyesH SEL
%8s’y (29°068'S) £E'SHS S0°8b9°¢ 000 (o0'v80°0T) 00°0 (00'v80°01) sobieyy B0 665
%00'0 (00'00S'T) goo 00°0 00'0 (¢o00s'T) 000 (00°005'D) Ww3wWdojaARQ JeIS/oIRS-UT IS
%962 (08°28¢2'8) 6b°£08'T 148041 00°0ST (007008'TT) 000 (000083 1) sieusiely puy saijddng .2l0  66F
%ob¥e  (ZT'STY) 00"9€9°C 8L 8 00°0 (00 005'2) 00°0 (00°005°2) sonddng Eoipaly puy sbrug  £TH
%00°0 (00'051'9) 00°0 000 000 (00°0S1'9) 000 (00°051'9) SSOIARS pavenua) PIC  66E
%bseg  (91°66€°T) T6se'T 9°Epe's 70'859 (00'zos's) 00°0 (00°z0s8) ARl SSE
%000 (00'002) 000 000 000 (00'004) 000 (00002) sabiey) [esod  8PE
%y6v9  (06'655) Y9 L 98'88S 00'9L (00°965'7) 000 (00°965°T) uogunwwo)  L0€
%6LPs  (0b'09S°E) 00°0 09$1€v 70°609 (00°s£8°2) 000 (00's28°2) sleipapy Jododuy 71T
%00°0 (00°0St) 00'0 000 000 {00"05#) 00'0 (00°0st) vonesuadwion wswAoldwauny  0TZ
we6'0z  {00°00£'T) 00'0 00'0SY 00°00€ (00°051°2) 000 (00'0s1°D) duensul pusa 80T
%0159 (06'€40°£S) 000 01°88€'901 ¥8'L0EET {00°2y'€97) 00’0 {00°zEp’€9T) souesnsul [eoipaty  £0T
%L (HT16) 000 9/°£91 9€'1Z (00'652) 000 (00'650) uensur 3N 907
%(9¢s  {LySe91Y) 000 £5°I8¥'62 LP'8ST'Y {00°£11°15) 000 (00" LT1'1S) uewaaey ms  HOZ
%8LYS  {9€°9¢Z'ST) 000 #9'8H'81 10°409°C (00°5£9°€E) 000 {00'529°¢E) Aumag lepos 10T
%81'68  {05'9€L'T) 000 05'646'6 008 (06 o1L'1T) 00'0 (oo'otZ'1T) sabem, B sapeles o 68T
%ib'ss  (TLpe'est) 000 82'$90'06¢ 8T'vTL'8E (00 2T+ b} 000 {eo'zrperd) jsuuossed [eapay  TET
%00°0€  (0T'SIS'TH) 000 08'026°LT 09'€£6'S (00°9¢£°69) 000 (0095265} Jopaugfiosiwedns  SOT
SIOWAIRS Yjea OTTIZL
%879 (T0°€1Z’98) 00°0 66'S0P'SHT FEVLB'ST (00°6T9°T€Z) 00'0 (00°6T19'T£Z) 0T1TL B0l
%00°0 (00001} 000 00°0 00°0 (00°00T) 00°0 {(0o°o0T) sabreyy BYPO 665
%000 (00°002) 0070 000 000 (00°002} 000 {00°002) sjeR1RW puy s2ddng BLIo 661
%SP'ZOT  0L°050°T 000 0L'058'eh 000 {00"008'eh) 000 {00"008°z¥) SSRGS PAPRNUOD B0 66€
%819 (1£'889) 00°0 62°660°T 6'2L1 (00°88£'T) 0070 (00'88£'1) stesipaly ;RAoidwz 1T
%00°0 (o00sD) 00°0 000 000 (oo0sT) 000 {00'0sT) vonesuadwo) juswAoiduweun  0TZ
otTTeL
g ouejeg saoueiqunduyl  saunjpuadxy  ssunppuadxy Rhpng SUBWIPUBWY  junowy 396png uondmsag JUNOMY  JIGUINN JUN0DY
uww_ﬂ.“.m pajoqumouadun Buipuesing JPeg-0j-1ed Ied-oj-yjuop papuswy 12bpng

[00Y3s 9sodingd [easudy) TPT  : pung

1 40 b abed +20Z Atenuer
Wd £2:Z $202/9/T sy fayeq pund Aq (O Af AtRWWINS SSINIPUSEXT JO JUBWRIAS 291 Aq pojeadd
plogmen ejie)) uesn uogeanpy j0 peog AJuno) ausaun pauyaq 797 oweN Syejdwa)



%z79s  (¢8'6EL'ETT) 00°0 81°£T68ST SH'6ZETT (00°299'282) 000 (00°£99'287) 20uelnsuf jeRIpR  L0Z
%9b'6S  (85°76T) 00°0 fags:i4 ¥E'8E (00'SZ¥) 00°0 (00'szp) aueinsul 31 90T
%IL8L  (VE'E09'9T) 000 99°67€'86 17°680'01 (00'626"2T) 000 (00°626'v2T) wawaugey AXs  YOT
%se'zs  (€9'529'87) 00°0 41°588°bL ob'185'L {00'T15’€0T) 000 (0o°T¥S‘E0T) Aunoeg jepos  T0Z
%w9ovs  (L£'962°T) 000 €T'€0L'T £5'800 (00000s) 00°0 {00'000°s) sIBYDES) aIMASGNS paynian-UoN 86T
%BI°LTT IS 00°0 PEHS'T S.'86% (000007} 000 {00000'2) sieydea | aymusqns paynsely  S6T
%¥6'2Z  (86°€€8'90T) 000 20°S6L'TE L1°662'S (00'679'8€T) 000 {00°629'8ET) sebep, 3 ssuejes 2n0 681
%00'00T  00°00S'T8Y 000 00°00518b 00°0 000 000 000 QuawAed snuog 88T
%S1'08  (0£069°LT) 000 049591 S5'V08C (00°Lt€'0Y) 000 (oo"2be’ar) siuesissy evoneonpl €91
%£9Ls  (00°6£5°9T) 000 00'$85'TC 0T II0'e (00°€97°6) 000 (00°€91°6€) (Puuossd @Ry 791
%pZ'Ls  (P6THO'96T} 00°0 90°04¥'79¢ €€'IST'9E (00°'215'85%) 000 (00°Z15°85Y) jouUDSIRd BIPal uoeonps  LET
%S6'9¢  (0T'596'£LS} 000 08°€ZL'8EE 9L rL L9 (00'689'976) 000 (00'689°976) suepeiq 621
%005t (§0°052°8) 000 S6'66T'1 666%C (co'000°s} 000 {00'000°S) weiboig s3ppe LD LTT
%ee'ss  (90°€60°02) 000 +6'921'86 8101 (00°zez'eot) 00°0 (00'zZT'891) Jopaug/ioswiedng  SOT
o1TeL
sLy'vy  (08°£9Z'T86) €S'6LE'ET L9°TLS TIL VETLY'FIT (00'0zZ'£92'T)  (00°000'9T) {o00zT154°T) 0ETZL 1101
BIETZ VLYY 00°0 T LE9'bY 000 (00'002) 000 (00002} wswdinbz J2p0 064
%L29e  {0T°bTE'E) £5°€8€ LE7208'T 00'8€ (0000T’s) 000 {00'002’s) sobseyy PO 668
%99z (95°1£°T1) 00'966"¢€ HeT 000 (00°005°ST) (00°000°¢T) (00°005°1) wewdoppaaq yers/eomass-ur  HZS
%610 (S59'6¢8) 00'0 S£'000°T 00°0 (00°058°2) 000 (00'058°2) sleuieW puy s3iddns o0 661
%beLT  (69°520°€6) 000 SEPLE'ST 0002 (00 00b'21T) 000 {00°00°ZTT) SSOIAISS papenuUO) IAGID 66§
%ec'es  (00°000'TT) 00°000°61 000 000 (00"000°0€) 000 {00°000°0€) fupsa) puy uoneneay €
%95E9  {66°016) 000 10'685'T £1°78¢ (00°005°27) 00’0 {00'005°2) uoreziiqels pugAn - Juswaindy  LTT
%Issr  (Zh'€18') 000 85°€6L'9 55°002°1 (00'£09°p1) 000 (00°£09°%T) aseapoly Jedodwa 21T
%00'0 (00°005) 000 00°0 000 (00°005) 0o¢ (00-008) ucpesuadwo) uawdoidwaupy  OTC
%6T'Y (00'05£°€) 000 00°0ST 00°0ST (0000s’e) oo (00'005°€) uensu] juag 80T
%668,  (£5'628°82) 00'0 £4°0LS'PO0T 89°S/P'ST {00°001"€ET) 000 (00-00%'€ET) oueinsuf jeipopW 0T
%62'ce  (z2's01) 000 82°C81 0TSz (00°887) 00°0 (00'382) avesnsur 1 907
%006  (6£'056'£E) 000 TTT9Y'9E ¥E'08ED (0o'€TH'vL) ooo (o0eTH'vL) JowRIPY NS HOT
%S9 (bSOTH'EE) 000 9b'8P0'6T 6EEET'S (00"65%'29) 000 (00'65¥°29) Aumag edos  T0T
%00°0 (co'000'2} 000 000 00°0 {00'000°2) 000 (0o0'000°2) sies| 3pASENS payaD-uoN 86T
%00°0 (00°000'2) 00°0 00'0 000 (00'000°7) 000 (00'000°2) sieySeaL AmAsqns payun  S6T
0ETLL
ax3 souejeg ssouelquIndul  sainypuadxz  soamyipuadxy 1896png sjudWpURWY  jJunoluy 326png uondsag Junoldy  JAGUINN JUnoddy
jobpng pasequnouaun  Buipueysyng 2jeq-03-1e3A  33eq-03-YJuon papuswy yabpng
10 %

[ooyds asodund jesouan ™I :pund

T Jo G abed vzocz Aenuer
Wd £2:Z ¥Z0Z/9/2 sty /aeg pung Aq [GO Aq AJewwing saunjipuadxy Jo juswnelrs 291 :Aq pa3eald
piojmer) ejAey t1esn uorednp3 jo pieog Ajuno) audaus) pouaq D1 BweN ejdwdL



%000 (00°0s5) 00'0 000 co0 {00°088) 000 (00°0SS) SjuswiAed v1Igs/sed1  OEC
%Ep6T  (STSPS'E) 000 SLHS8 00'0 (00°00t"p) 00°0 (00°00+'4) sapusby JqNd RO PIMm spequed  OTE
%0008  (00°00€) 8'rbL £1'SSY 39 (00°005'T) 0070 {00°008'1) uonpesunuue)y  L0E
%00'00T  15°449 00°0 19449 96'ChT 000 000 000 uoneziiqels pugAy - usuiRy L1
%ze'ss  (€L908°T) 000 LT9bS’E 19°919 {00'€S€°9) 000 (00°E5£°9) a)eipaly Ao ZTT
%eger  (STHIT) 00'0 SL'SE 000 (00'0sT) 000 (0or0sT) uonesuadwo) juswAoidwaun  OTZ
%9¢e9e  (00°5TS) 00'0 00°00€ 00’0 (00'sze) 000 (00°528) souesnsuy jusa 807
%169,  (0L'bESET) 00°0 0£°£0b'Sk 0€'290°L (00°8€0°65) 000 (00°g£0'65) souensu] j@Ipe 20T
%ST'v9  (0Z'9€) 000 08'%9 ob'1T (oo to1) 00°0 (00'TOT) asueinsu 3y S0Z
%OE'ES  (bRIVT'LT) 000 91°589'61 §9'108°E (00°7€6'9€) 0070 (00'2e6'9E) Jewaunay 165 0T
%e8'ss  (56°666'TT) 000 S0'E9T'ST €4'9€9'C (00°£91°22) 00°0 (00°€91°22) Aundag leos 10T
%6.89  (9€7€05°SE) 000 $9'1HT'8L 00'885'€T (00'spL'ETT) 000 (00°SPL'ETT) sobep g souejes D0 681
%96'¢8  (96'8%T't) 000 +0'586'91 2L'896'C (00°b£9'61) 000 {00'b£9’61) (s)uepnss 19T
%0005 (20°£9¢'tE) 000 86'99€'vE egLeL's {00'+£L'89) 00°0 (00'beL'B9) |uuosIad BwIssassy  GET
%9597 (S8'SL6'9LT) 000 ST'TSS'0L £6°0EV'T (00°220°L50) 00'0 (00°220°Lp0) [PuUosIad (eoIB0jodASYd  bET
%0005 (00°005'T) 000 00'005'T 00°00€ (00°000°¢) 00°0 {00°000"€) weiboug soppe Jsare)  LTT
%eegs  (0S°ZSI'6E) 000 0S'ET8YS 05'0£8°Z (00°996°¢6} 000 {00°996°€6) Jopaug/rosiaedng  SOT
oTezL
%EG'TL {(S9'T6E'9L9) 6T'8bL /LT 9T T9L'S0L'S 6L°6%6°LLT (00Z06'60t°T) 000 (00'206°60¥°7) 0TTTL 1|0l
%00'0 {007000'T) 00’0 000 00'0 (00°000°T) 0070 {00"000°T) wawdinby ;BA0  06Z
%00°0 {00"00S) 00°0 000 000 (00"009) 00°0 (00°005) safuey)y 2RO 665
%00'0 (00"000°s) 000 00'0 000 (00"000's) 00°0 (00°000°5) uawdopasg geisfoonasur  HCS
%ITOIT  64°0C0‘T §v'9/8 pEPPT'OT 06'582 (00"000'01) 000 {00°000'01) S[eusie) puy salddng JtaQ 660
%678 (007298} 000 00°€E9'EZ 00°0 (00°005'82) 000 {00"00S'87) eIpoi/syoog Ateiqry  CEV
%L0'TLE  BT'099°0V IE'EEE'ET £8'92E'TE £CEEE’E (00°00Q’ST) 000 (00°000'ST)} SSOWIPS pIpRNUOD 120 66E
%eE0y8  (z€°76L'€) 000 89°256'6T 89°€6E'T (0005£'€D) 000 (o0052'c2) @reil  SSE
%00'0 (o0'001) 000 00’0 000 (00°00T) 000 (00001} Jdinb3-s301135 neday puy soueunuely  9EE
%000 (00°000°S) 000 000 00°0 (00 000's) 00'0 (00°000"s) sweynsuo)  80E
%65°56  (00°00€) €b'8ES’E £5'196'C 70'96b (00008'9) 00°0 (00'008'9) uopewnunwe)y  LOE
%SCEPT  08'EEL 00°0 08°ESH'T 8L (co000°T) 00°0 (00°000'T) uogeziqels PUGAH - JuswainRy 12
%bb'es  (€8°62b'9) 000 LUsLL'Lt SL6LL'T (00°'802'%0) 00°0 (06'802'42) aleowpay Jakojdwy 712
%000 (00°006) 000 000 00'0 (00'006) 00’0 (00°006) uonesuadwo) wawAoidwaun 012
%00's2  {00°052'70) 00°0 00052 00°00¢ (00'000°€) 000 (00 000'E) duesnsy] [Qusq 807
01ZZL
ax3 soueeg saduelqunduz  saunyipuadxy  sasnjipuadx3 1obpng SJUBIPUBWY Junoury Jo6png uondiIsag JUROOY  ISGUINN JUNCIDY
uww_“.\_au pasequmouaun Buipunsing 9)e@-03-Jea) 31Eq-03-HIUOW paspuawy 396png

100§ asodingd je1auan IPT :pund

T Jo 9 abed yzoz Menuer
Wd 22T vZ0T/oft 2wl f3req punj Aq [q0 Ag Asewnwung sainjipuadx3 jo Juswsiels 291 Aq pajedld
ploiver) eiAey H - | uonEMPp3 JO pleog AJuna) sulalg pauyag D91 =Pwe) aejdua)



%289  (bb'625'987) 00°0 95'0£6'997 e’ Ly (00°005°€5t) 000 (00°005°cSK) oueInsul e3pew £0T
%eeze  (TressT) 000 88'9b 9€°0ZT (00°010'7) 000 (0070102} dueinsuf ayn 902
%6rs6  (08'8L8) a0'o 0Z'80§ 09'2L (00°£88) 00°0 (00°£88) Wy 3115 POZ
%9T'8E  (8£'798'C1) 000 27'8€6'L 9b'LE (00'108'02) 00°'0 (00'108'02) Aunzss fepes 102
%ivee  (00°006'9T) 00’0 000007 00'0 (60°000°22) 000 (00°000'£2) S934 S15qUIBJY BPJWWO) puy preog 16T
%Sh'Ly  (THEVY'LST) 000 85°0SE'THT S509£'8T (00°000°00€) 000 (00°000'00¢€) Aed Ayaobuol 981
%eees (69 Tp5’e} 000 TE'856'Y ££'80L {00'005'8) 00°0 (0000s'®) pieog 0) Aewises  8TT
01EZL
%Zs'LL {SS°S6E'6P) 00°0 St rOE‘0LT 09'L12'L (00"00£°6127) 00°0 (00°00£°617) 0SZZL 1oL
%6e'6s  (56'88€'6E) 000 SO'TI9LS 000 (60°000°26) 000 {(00°000'26) aemyos  1Lb
%5299 (00'STE’E) 000 00'5£9'9 000 (00°000°01) 000 {oo-coo‘or) Gungey  OLb
%0%6  (09°189'9} 00'0 0b'810'50T 092122 (00'00£21T) 000 {0o-00z'z1T) Aupoauue) pwsul  0SE
08ZZL
%esst (0L°€TT'T8) 00°0 0E'+08°LY Ly LEl’s (00'916'8PT) (o0-000'22) (00-816°1Z1) weibaid uogeonp3 [eUOREOA  QETZL (0L
%000 {00°000'£0) 00'0 000 000 (00°000°£2) {(00°000"22) 000 wewdinbg oo 06£
%000 {00°005S) 000 000 00’0 (00°00s's) 000 (00°005°) pAell  SSE
%b08s  (64°4£5) 000 12'66L 3 244 (00°2L6'T) 000 (00°2££°T) QIeIpaly ;RAodw  ¢TL
%000 (00vE) 000 000 000 (00'vE) 000 (00've) uonesuaduo) Juswihoidwsun 01T
%00°0 {00°05T) 000 000 00'0 {o0'0st) 000 (oo0sT) soueinsy] jeuaq 807
%18'6s  (00°€20'E) 000 00°66b' 00'299 (oo'zzs'd) 000 (00°225'L) oueinsu] [ipaN 0T
%0009  (09°9) 00'0 ov'8 0Tl (oop1) 00°0 (00'¥T) souesnsul N 90T
wsz'es  (€1700L°7) 000 £8'99L'E £0'0¥S {00'£5v'9) 00°0 (00°£9+'9) weuway aes  HOT
%085 (89°044'2) 000 ELTHE LT68Y {00'888'S) 000 (00'888°s) Aunoes jepos  TOC
%0005 {00°00S) 000 00°00S 00001 (00°000°T) 000 {00"000'T) weibeg 1appe 221e3  LTT
%ee'gs  (0s'zsT'ee) 00°0 0S°ET8bS 0S'0£8°2 (00°996°€6) 00°0 {00°956°€6) Jopaunigfiosipedns  SOT
OETTL
%99'1S (06'T8L'TVE) 18°£59'8 62'845°9SE S8'TOE'T9 (00°810'204) 000 (00°810°204) 0zTZL [P0L
%00'sT  (B6'PLT'D) 60'0 20°SZE 00°0 (00°005'2) 000 (00°005'2) sableyy oo 665
%61'8ZT  €9¥6E 000 €9V6L'T 00°2Zk (00°00v'T) 00°0 (00 00¥'1) wowdopaea yes/oomesul  bZs
%9585  (66°255'%) TL'PE9T 0€°£08’E 82'609'1 (00'000°TT) 000 (00'000'1T) sfeuagey puy sanddns B0 66
%9279 SS'0BE'Y €T8LT'S 2E20L'L S6'12¢ (00°000'8) 000 (00°0008) [oaesr  SGE
%0508 (10'56T) 000 66'K08 66'¥S (00°000°T) 00°0 (00°000°T) Jdinb3-saniuss sleday puy soueusuiely  9EE
0TTTL
g ouejeg sesuelqundug  saunjpuadx3  saungpuadxy 3a6png sjuswpuswy junouwry J26png uondpsag JUNOJDY  JIqUINN JUNOIOY

uwm_”w.ou pasdgumousun Buppumsing  ¥jeq-03-1ed\  IeQ-03-HAUoKW pspuswy yebpng

Jo
looyds asodangd |eidusd IbT :pund
T Jo £ abeq ¥zoz Aenuer

Wd £2: ¥20T/9/ awiL) fejeq pund Aq (40 Aq Aletiwng SaUNJIpU3dAxXy Jo JuU3WIeIs 291 1Aq pogeaa)d

plamer ephey HE)]

UOREINP3 JO piecg AJUno) auan

pauysg Do tswey jejdwa )



%009 (ST'H8H°06T) TLE65°0T £1'955'SLT 69701 ‘SE (00°vE99LP) 000 (00'¥E9°9LY) 0ZEZL B0l
%00°0 (oor009) 000 000 00°0 (00°009) 00’0 {00°009) wdinb3 uonenswpy  T0Z
%00°'T (00°S6b} oo 00'S 000 {00°009) 00°0 {00"00%) sabley) 2o 665
%9y (€9088°2) 8E'9ET'T 00'€8€ 20'201 (00"005’s) 00'0 {00°005°S) ssjjddng 20140 SEP
%ILLIT  00°0KTT L0°0€TY £6'600'% 60°€0L (00°000°2) 000 {00'000°0) $eOIURS PIENUC) BIA0  66E
WwIUEy  BT'SLT'T 00'sL 9L'6b9'T 00'0 (00'000'y) 00°0 {00°000") pARlL  GSE
%80°sZ  (857€66'S) 0T 66 [4ard 1IN ¥6'61 (coo00's) 00'0 (00°000'8) sobieys jmsod  SVE
%000 (e0°00€) 00'0 000 00°0 (ao00g} 000 (00°00¢) adinb3-s901uas sieday puy dueudue  SEE
%SE'68  {00°506) 000 00°565°2 000 (00°005'8) 00'0 (00°005'8) sdjysisqueii puy sen@  OCE
%LLTOT  9T°E69 1S°6S0°T S9'EES'HT TIE98'T (00°000'S2) 000 (o0-c00'se) uopeunwwo) L0E
%98'pL  (00°09L'T) 95°866'T wWve'e ¥+'969'C (00'0002) 000 (00°000°¢) BuisniaApy  Z0E
%8vs  {bb'1£0'2) 00°0 95'69b°T L6'THE (00°105%) 00°0 (00105t} a1e2ipaly Johojdwz  ZTT
%000 (o0'0opD) 00'0 00°0 000 (00'0b1) 000 (00°0bT) vonesusdwo) uswhoduwun 01T
%00'sz  {00°0Sb) 0070 00°0ST 000 (00°009) 000 (00'009) souesnsu] [Rag 80T
%088y  (60°856'97) 00°0 16'969'SZ b9 09H'E (00°s59°2S) 00'0 (00°559°25) soueansuy jeapSl 202
%€E0'ss  {(80°5T) 000 T6'TE o't (cogs) 00'0 (00°85) souesnsul a7 902
%LT8s (Y ERH'E) c0'0 95'£8T°ET 9£'658'T (00'1£9'C2) 000 (00'1£9'20) Wwewaaey s H0T
%iYS  (89°589'8) 00’0 Zb'655°0T BITOV'T (00'spZ’e1) 000 (00'sbZ'6T) Aundsg lepos  T0Z
%1085  (00°0ZZBT) aoo 00'9£1'sZ 08'95£'€ {00°96¢ct) 000 {00°96£°cr) [PuuossRg [eousp 29T
%ee'8s  {€6'PbSKS) 00'0 LO'€9E'9L 10°606°0T {00'806°0ET) 000 (00°806°0ET) (Shuesissy €01
%ee'gs  (1£°80£795) 000 69°T6E'6L L9THETT {00°00T'9ET) 000 {00°00T'9ET) JeoyQ aagensIrwpy/epwo Aunoy  TOT
ozeTL

Y%zLsy  (T6°1E£9'ST9) SL9LS‘S £E'¥0L'88S S"809'TTT {DOET6'6TZ'T)  00°0 {00°€E16'6TT'T) 0I£ZL 1|01
%sz'09  (10°08T°E) ST'E66'T $£'928'T 69°£12 (00°0008) 00°0 (00"000°8) sabieyn PO 665
%zL'0b  (SHOTHZ) 000 S5°680°S g {5 (00°005°ZY) 000 (600052t} 31 - sweonddy J0 uonebnsaaug jpuwy  €€5
%0b'6S  (Zb'P6L1ZT) 000 85°602'841 L6'TIY'TE (00°000°00€) 000 {00"000°00€) uosssiwae) seonl 0TS
%9629  (00°00S°Z} 000 00°0ST'¥ 000 (0005£'9) 000 (00°052£'9) SSO{AISS PEPRQUO) BB 66€
%{5'80T  20'68T'T 05'€85'C TS T0LET pLTRO'T (00°c00'sT) 00°0 {00-000sT) jeARlL  GSE
%b9'/S  (bE£'065°0T) 000 99°60b'¥T 00°21L (00°00052) 000 {00°000'sZ} saoinag (eBe7  TEE
%6195 (00'SZ¥'Y) 000 00'S9°S 00°00C (o0"001’0T1) 000 {oooot‘or} sdiysiaqua puy song  02E
%00°0ZT  00°000'S 000 00°000°0€ 000 (00°000°527) 000 (00°000°52} SRS WPy SOE
%ELSy  (Lb'T65°T) 00'0 €S°ELT'T 8L'STh (00°598) 00'0 (00°598°%) alepaly Jodoidwz  ZTZ
0IETL

ax3y aouejeg soueIquniug  ssunypuadxy  ssunjipusdxyz 3abpng SjudlpUBLLY  junowy Jebpng uondidSa@ UNOOOY  JOQUUNY JUNOIOY

P6png  passqunouduf  Gupueising  93eQ-03-iROA  33eQ-03-YIUuoK papuawy 3obpng

3O %

jooyps asoding jesauan TPT [ pund
1 jo 8 abed vyeoz Menuec
Wd £T:T ¥202/9/2 BPwiL/sedq pund Aq [q0 Aq Adewung s3JNJpUIdXF JO JUDWANEAS 291 Aq pajeas)
piomer) ejiey HEL) ] uonesnpy jo pieog Ajuno)) ausald paulys@ D91 PweN ajejdwal



%6519 {ELOLT'VT) 000 IS'BTLTT 88966'C (00°688'9€E) 0070 (00°688'9€) oY Nes 0T
%b0'8s  (6v°19€'6) 000 15°1S6'ZT 9vL9T (00€1€'22) 00°0 (00'€1£°22) Aunsag jepos 10T
%S6°09  (66'STE'SIT) 000 10°2H9'v81 0L°90E+T (00°85620€) 000 (00'856°20¢) fuuostad jeoueD 791
%loes  (85622'87) 000 SH'E91'gE 9b'880°S (00°8£6'99) 000 (00'8£699) sopeygfesiuadng SOT
01STL
%zs'vs (S6°8TT'TL68'T)  EVTET'ZE T79°8ZP'9ET'T S9°6LL'STE (00'06£°091'Y) 000 (00°06£'09T ") 0THZL =900
"609'T 00'b67'0€ 000 00'v61'ZE 000 (00°000°0) 000 (000002} justudinb3 uogensiwpy 102
%000z {00°008) 6o 00700 00°0 {00"000°T) 000 (00'000'7) ssbuey) oo 665
%/9'90T  00'00b 06°0L£'S 0T°620°T 00°08% (0070009 000 (00°000°9) s|eusiely puy saiddng Jayi0  66%
%0000T  (0£'0) £6'880'9Z ££°016'8T £€'608'C (00°000°sk) 00°0 (00°000'st)} SABS papenuo) BP0 66E
%000 {00005°2) 000 0070 00'0 (o000s°2) 000 {00°005°7) pARI]  SSE
%000 {00°000°T) 009 00'0 000 (00°000'T) 000 (00°000°T) 1dinb3-5331095 aieday puy dusUAUIER  9EE
%S89t (££°€28'90) 95249 TTH08'bT 8'G26'T (00°000°TH) 00°0 (00°000°2H) uogeounwwio)  L0E
%0001 TH'BLS 000 '8L9 LOETT 000 000 000 UOREZIIGEIS PUQAH - JRwWwRINSY  £1T
%8705 (9Z°91H'12) 00'0 165912 6°£90°E (00°9£0°Ew) 00'0 (00'9£0°ch) aleoipaly JRAojdwz  CTT
%00'0 (00"00S} 00°0 000 09°0 (00°00S) 000 (00°00S) uonesuadwe) JudwAioldwaun 012
%bz /1 {00002'L) 00'0 000051 00°009 (00°002'8) 000 (00°00£'8) soueinsug jeuag 80T
%8595 (2L°€61°£92) 000 8C'161'8YE 8y 179'sh (00°8£79T9) 00°'0 (00'98€’S19) oueinsul |2oIpa 20T
%0009 (bOOVE) 00'0 96605 or'Ls (00°058) 00'0 (00°058} duesnsut 3N 90T
%S1'ZS  (3L'TO0TT) 000 29°LLE°0TT [ TAVASEEE (00"0¢8°0£2) 00'0 (00'0b8'0ET) awauny a|s  HOC
%80°0s  (16'T¥6'16) 000 60'SHZ'T6 £9°2£0°€T (00°281°¥8T) 000 (00°£81°v8T) Aunoss lepos 10T
%01 (6T°2€0°vY) 000 18°296°St €8'925'9 (00°000°06) 000 (00°¢00'06) sobem B sauejes Pupo 68T
%9b0s  (£2'p62'S9E) Q0’0 £L485°TLE 10'STI'9b (00°6b£78EL) 000 (00'6¥£°8€2) (Yumpnas 191
%628k  (9T'HO0'ZER) 00'0 pLTTE'COY 67°SEZ'L9 (00'9£p'5£8) 000 (00°9b’s£8) sedpuud wesissy  6ET
%8207 (SH'SbS'S) Q00 SSHSP'T 167062 (00°000"L) 00'0 (00°000°2) weibold sopper ooty  L1T
%Iz'8s  (9T'281'9vS) 000 vl YL 09L 78°/2£9'801 (00°£Z6'90€°T) 00°0 {00°2z6'00¢'T) siedpund  H0T
a8 244
ax3y ouejeg sueIquInduz  ssInjpuadxy  saumipueadxy 1°6png sjuBwWpuUswWy junotuy }36png uoRdidsag JUNOJDY . 1BqUUNN JUNCDY
126png pasaqumuaun  Bulpueising 2)e-0}-1e9A 3JeQ-03-Yjuow popuawy
JO %

jooyas Isoding [elauan IFT  : pund

b1 40 6 abed 20z Aenuer
Wd £2:2 +202/9/C saun] /ajeq puny Aq [qO Ag Atewwng SaInIpuadxg JO JUINELS 291 :Aq poajess)
piojmen) ejiey asn uozeonp3 Jo pieog AJUno) duU3dID pauyaq Do aweN ajejdwal



%05'9s  (£5°209'69) 00'0 Lb'T6E06 £9'600°0Z (00°000°091) 00’0 {00000'09T) Tomas puy B1em  VSb
%08 (€6°£29'sT) 00°0 20'9LE'P9 1S°€TL'62 (00'000°08) 00°0 (00°00008) seg leimeN  bEb
%68y  (12°£90°029} 000 6L°TE6'V6S 0£0£+'66 (00"000'sT2'T) 000 (00°000'S12'T) Apuea STV
%999 {L1'888'LE) 69729 pT68K 1L 65°+20'C (00'000411) 000 (00°000'+TT) sayddng jeiposny 0T
%80°EET  Z8'19¢°6 00°9TE"p1 8'S¥6'2T 00'018'¢ (00°000'87) 000 (00'000'82) S20MUSS PIPLQUOD PRO  H6E
%b6'ss  (£5'289'T) 000 £V LIET 05°6£0'T {00°000'%) 000 (00°000%) ARl SSE
%0008 {00°000'7) POPET'T 96'598 000 {00'000's) 000 (00°000°S) 1dinb3-s310J55 Jieday puy soueusluely  9EE
%0000  L£'0T 00°0 201 00°0 000 00°0 000 uonezi|igels PUGAH - JuswaImRy  LTZ
%8p'ss  (08'7£5°8) 000 0Z°'0£9°0T SE'SSE'T (00°Z91'6T) 000 (00'z91'6T) aseolpaly s2hojdwz  ZTZ
%000 (00°005'0) 00'0 00°0 000 (00°005'2) 000 (00'008') uogesuadwo) uswhoiduaun  0TZ
%009 (00°00L'p) 000 00°00€ 00°'0ST (00°000°5) 00°0 {00°000°S) soueansu] feueq  80C
%EDTL  {BE'EET68) 00'0 TIELLBIT £L°6L1'0€ (00°£00"80€) 000 (00°£00'80¢€) aouensul [eipSN L0T
%896 (SO'ELS) 00°0 S6'9L€ 0905 (00°056) 000 (00'056) aueinsur 3y 90¢
%8EYe  (80°TH6'6E) 000 26'681°TL £V LELS (co'zeTeIn) 000 (oo'zer'arn) wawainsy &S HOT
%979 (v6°896'92) 00'0 90 THH'SE 20°S6L'S (00"01K'2Y) 000 {00'01'2L) Auross [epos 10T
%ITLL  (TL6€0'€T) 000 8T'E09°LL 09'5758'01 {00'€p9°001) 000 {o0°epg'o0T) sabieps g sauejes BRG 68T
%Z5'sS  {89°0S0°cHS) 00'0 TE8LLLLY 66'025'98 (00'6z8'022'1) 00°0 (00'628'02Z'1) [ouucssad jelpoisny 991
019ZL
%st'gs (9eor6'ovt) 8S°EST'Y 90"LVT SEE PI6E9 VY (00°'tZZ’08S) €000 (00'TZZ 08S) 01STZ oL
%0L¥E  (00°6SET) 00'THO'T 00'0 000 (00°000°€) 000 {00'000°c) swdinb3 uonegsiuiwpy  T0L
%ET'E98  9TIIRE 00°0 9T'9TE D 9€'6Z (06°005) 000 {00-005) sobiey) B0 66S
%000 (00005°T) 000 00'0 00'0 (00°005'T) 00°0 (00°005°T) sjeuately puy sayddns a0 66%
%00's9  (00°00£) 75'99¢ 8b'1€0"T bLTHE (00°000°2) 000 (00°000°2} ssyddng a0 SEY
%0FT1L  (00vEL'T) 90'¥H8°T $6°1ZH'T 00'99Z {00°000"9) 000 (00°000"9) sayddng Buisssoosd elea  TI
%89'9¢  (00°6£5'02) 00'0 00°1261T 00°ZsY (00°005CE) 000 (60°005°2€) SI2AMIBS papenuo) IBRO  66€
%000 (00°005"p) 00°0 000 000 (00°00S't) 000 (007005} A3l SSE
%000 (00°'000°T) 00°0 000 00'0 {(00°000°1) 000 (00°000°T) idinb3-seojates seday puy ouRuIRK  9EE
%00°0 {(o0’019°1) 00°0 00°0 00'0 (00°019'D) 000 (00°0191) sdiysequisy puy sana  OCE
%50'8S  (90°681'0) 000 ¥6'870°¢ $9'T6€ (00°812'S) 00'0 (00°812'S) aiedjpa Pfoidwa  TTE
%00'0 (00'0bT) 000 000 60’0 (o0'ob1) 00°0 (ooob1) uonesuadwio) JuswAoidwaun  0TC
%6Z'pT  (00°006) 000 00°0ST 000 (00°0s0°7) 00'0 (00°050°1) aaueinsu] jausd 80T
%8b'6s  (09°£8Z'LE) 000 0b°02L'5 pS'b88'8 (00"+00'26) 000 (00'$0026) aouelnsu] [ipaly  L0T
%6.08  (Ob'61) 00°0 09°18 oz’ot (00101} 00'0 (00'TOT) souensur yn - 90T
0TSZL
axg 3dueieg seduRIQWROUZ  saunjipuadxy  saunypuadxgy 136png Sjuswpuawy  junowy abpng uondPsSag JUNCIIY  IBQUUINN JUNCIDY
196png pasaqunoudsun Gulpuesing  83e@-03-IEIA  33eg-03-UIUoW papuawy Jabpng
%
2 jooyds asoding jesausn IPT : pund
1 40 0T obed vZoT Aenue
Wd £2°2 +202/S8/T saunl/ajeq Pung Aq [qQ Aq AJewuns SSIMIPUIAXT JO JUIWANERS 291 :Aq pojeau)

piopmer) efAe)

a9sn

uoREeINP3 JO paeod AJUNOD PUSIID

pauyad 197 :eweN edwal



%05 (62096°(S) 000 ST'TL0'6S SY'6IT'6 (00"2g0’211) 000 (00°2e0’£11) Aunoag eos  T0Z
%esLe  (£8'046'78) 000 £1°0SH'2LT S9°0€S'8T (00" 1Z4'5ST) 000 (00°126'952) sabem @ souejes o0 68T
%6k (PBPSKZIL) 000 9T'6£0°50Z 0£°50£°021 (00'v6%"LTH'T) 000 {00 veb" 210 1) sisaugsng 9%l
%6TvS  (08'956°06T) 000 0Z'+b2 991 433 Varad {00°10£°20€) 00’0 (00'10£°£05) (shwepan T
0TLZL
%OTTF (0S'PL6°LES) 25°860°T6 09'v09'c6Y TLTES'SL (89 ¢z9'TTv’t)  (89°9€9°EHT) {00'10°64T1'T) (g Jo VUeUNUIR  OZIZL 101
%000 (89'9£9'cv0) 000 000 000 (89°9€9°€47) (89°9£9'€47) 00°0 wewdnby oo 064
%000 (00°05L'p) 00°0 000 000 (00°05'p) 000 (00°0s£'y) uowdinby sdueusjuwew LT
%STTE  (££'10586) 06'288'9 ££'S19'S 00°00T°y (00000711} 000 {00°000°TTT) sebiey) RO 665
%OE'00T  S6'6L 9% 1Z6VT 6+'859°L 09°59% (00°005°22) 00°0 (00°005°T2) sfeuiel puy sauddng O 66b
%wee6e  {00'00T6) Ery 8,'95b°S £6°959°C {(00"000°sT) 000 (00°000°ST) Sueq Asuipely puy wawdinby - 8Th
%IS'EIT  00°Z65'P ZE96'L 86'829°0¢ 81°694'9 {00°000°v€) 000 (00°000°vE) SIAIRS pAPRNUs) 0 B6E
%000 (00°005) 000 000 000 {00°005) 000 (00°005) [eARIL  SSE
%10'€L  (TU'Z6V°ET) 0T HIT'6T 6/'88¢€'¢ 95'6/b (00°00005) 000 (0000005} sdinb3-sa01at9s Jleday puy soueusUe  9EE
%E0'S9  {€8°9v6'69) 08'900°0€ LE'PP0'00T 85°SLY'ET (00°000°00T) 000 (00°000°002} JipIing-sao1auas Jieday puy soueuuiely  SEE
%00°001T 000 11'¥66 68'S00" S0'9b9 (00"000°S) 00°0 (00°000°S) MmIag Apunel  6ZE
%EPTZ  (00°00F) LSTUL X744 00'8€ (000011} 00'0 (o0'00b'T) uogeounwwo)  /0€
%e09y  (L£7728°F) 00°0 £9°097°¢ 86'vLb (00°c80°2) 000 {0080’} oreipaly s2hodwy €12
%00°0 (00°08%) 000 000 000 (00°08¢) 00°0 (0008¢) uofiesuedwo) uswAodwaun  0TZ
%606 {00008’} 000 00°0ST 000 (00°055°T) 000 (G0'059'1) uensuy ewsg 802
%98'bs  (0€°ZI8'9p) 000 0£'988°95 90°0£1°L {00°669°€0T) 00°0 (00°6659°€0T) oueinsy] [eaipoy  L0T
%sLsy (00728} 00°0 0082 09'6 {00°091) 00°0 (00°091) aouensur 3y 90T
%oTy  (LL90v'92) 000 €2E99'ET 1s2re (0089005} 000 (00°890°0%) Wwewaugay A=As 0T
%9,y {(66ZhP'6T) 000 10°2p6'ET 88'0£0°C {(00°s8e’eE) 000 (pos8e’EE) Aunas [epos 10T
%6b'6E  (8EHHT'YIT) 00’0 29'08p°2LT 8'SITET (00's2£'9¢EY) 00°0 (00°522'9€¥%) [suuosiad dueuRuey /9T
%5899  (09'6££'ZT) 000 0b'996'+T 8’1919 {009rE’LE) 00°0 (00'9pE'L£) jouuosiad |eauep 29T
%69°¢S  (SOPHYLD) 000 S6'0STLE Sb'ES6'y (00'S6€°¥9) 000 (00°56¢€v9) Jopsuq/rosiandng  SOT
0Z92L
%06'2S (€9 TETOIY'T)  BT'SSI'TT 60°9t/8'986°T T6'VT6'ETE (00'cco’sot’e)  00'0 (00°€£9'89%'E) 01974 110l
Y%LEI9T  6T'TER'S 000 6T'TER'PT £S'vEYET (00"000°sT) 000 (oo'000'sT) walidinb uonessdo uely 077
%00'T8  (¢0°061) §5°28S gLt 008 (00°000°1) 000 (00°000'1) ssbreyy B0 665
%LTSET  L9EILD 00’0 L9°€9L°TT 000 (ao'000's) 00°0 (00"000°s) sjeusgely puy saddng B0 668
019ZL
ax3 vuejeq seoueiquMOU3  saimyjpusdx3y  ssuripuadxy 16png sjuswpuswy  junowy 3a6png uondpsag JUNOISY  JOGLUNN JUA00Y
196png pasequimusun  GuipusIng 3eQg-03-ied)  Neq-0l-yuon papusuiy 1eb6png
3O %

jooyds asoding [e43uan) ™I :pung

$1 Jo 11 abed vzoz AMenueg
Wd £2:2 20Z/9/ 2wyl /area pung Aq [qQ Aq Alewung SauNPpuUBIXF JO JUSLIDINS 1 tAq pajeas)
plojme)) ejhey L uoQeanp3 Jo pieog AJUno) JUdJLD pauysg D97 @weN e dwa)



%000 (00°5£) 000 000 00'0 (00rsz) 00°0 {00's2) uonesuadwo) uawdodwaun 012
%00°0 {00°00¢) 000 000 000 (00"00¢£) 000 (00°00%) sovesnsul jeuag 802
%078 (2LLEQ'6T) 000 82°092°CT Bb'EI9'T (00'860°ZE) 000 (00°860°2€) soueInsul (RpsiN £OZ
%5559 (66'6) 000 1061 (4 (00°62) 000 (00'67) auemnsur 3y 907
%96vb  (bT°LL9°E) 000 98'€00'E P'65E (00°1899) 000 (00°189'9) Wawamay avms 0T
%bsee  {(LT6'T) 000 ££'108°T ST'£91 (00°8Lb'V) 000 (00°'8L1'v) Aunoss epos 102
%860  (¥8'916'2b) 00’0 97°'90£"67 7L'90S'E (0o'€ze'ze) 000 (oogz'e) safep g seueles 18p0 68T
[1)8:1 44
%Z9'pS  (6¥'60Z°TTL'T)  I¥'960°08 0T°S8°100°Z L9°S6S'L0E (oo't8T’p6L’e)  (00°00T°F) (00°'186'68L'F) 0TLZL [&10L
%8S'61T  95°79LT 00°902"s 95'955'S 00°0 (00°000'6) 00°0 {00'000°6) weludinbg uogeyodsuert 627
%eg b8 (99°285°L) $5'8S0°2 08'8SE'SE 68°70b'T (00°000°05) 000 (00°000°0S} sobieyy PRO 665
%6esy  (¥1°6186) SZ'T0g’s 19'6LE'T 000 (00°005'2Y) 00°0 (00°005°£T) Sleudlely puy sayddns a0 66¢
%€6'26 (0T’ TETbT) 12'995°9C 69'T80°65T 15°899'2€ (00'6£2°66T) 000 {006.££'66T) Sued apiyaA €SP
%00°00T 000 75°866'ST 8+°100°61 8v'789'0T {00°000'sH) 00'0 (00 000°sH) sogn) puy sanl 05t
%00°00T  00°0 8219 WwsEY' L1 9L°€LS {00°000°8T) 000 {00'000°87) sjueouqn]  £EH
%S9ty (SZ2'092°6€) 00°0 SL'6EL'SE (15K {00'000's2) 000 (00°000°50) aulosen  SZv
%59'69  (97'699°T) 9T°TIS’T 85°61€'C 108 {00°005's) 00'0 (00"005°s) sol|ddng obeien  $ZH
%196 (T+'€91°608) 000 65'9€0°S£T $T'681'H (00°002'v8%) (00°00Z°t) (00°"000°08%) Pnd jsselg  2Tp
%0005 (00°002) 00°00¢ 0o'0 00°0 (00'00S) 00°0 (00"008) S30IAJSS PAIORAUCD B0 66E
%6b'9z (8971960} 000 zE'882'1 81'25¢C (gor0s2’9) 000 (ooosz's) jprell  SSE
%0070 (00°00g) 000 000 000 (0000€) 00°0 {00°00¢€) sy 16E
%bS's8  (00'¢60°7) 000 00°€0b'ZT 00°9€T'C (00°005'%T) 000 (00005'PT) SIDIARRS [BWUBQ PUY [2Ipad  ObE
%0005 (00'000°%) T£'868'E £9°10T 000 (00°000'8) 000 (000008} PIYRA-S0IIBS 1eddy puy Bdueuduey  BEE
%00°00T 000 00'8T0T 00°786' 6L°8EY (00°000's) 00°0 (00°000°S) 2owJas Apunel 67
%9/°801  00'6TC b1'249T 98'TH0’T 661E (0070050} 000 (00°005°T) uoneswnwwoy  Z0E
%00°001 9p'8 00°0 S8 00°0 000 000 000 uonez||igels pUgAH - Jewauey  LTT
%b@'1S  (ZH'0E8’ET) 00°0 95°888'+T SE90E‘T (00'612'82) 000 (00°61£'80) aepap Piojdug 212
%00°0 (00'002°s) 000 000 000 (00°002°¢) 00°0 (00-00z'c} uonesuadiro) wawloidwauny  OTZ
%sT'6f  {00°00L'S) 000 00°0SE°T 00°00€ (00°050°0) 00°0 (00°050°L) soueinsuT teyusa 80T
%8565  (£9'865'012) 000 £E°98b'0TE 9L T (00'580°125) 00'0 {00°580°12ZS) uelnsuf jepaly  L0Z
%19'zh  (£0°€b8) 60'0 £6'S29 0954 (00'69¢°T) 00°0 (00'69+'1) souensur a1 90T
%6125 (65°66126) 000 I4°186°00T 89'8£6'ST (00°18¢'cH1) 000 (00°18b'c6T) Wwauwamay Aels  $0Z
oTLTL
ax3 souejeg saduelquiduy  sainjipuadxy  sainjipudx3 126png sjuBlupURWY jJunowy Jabpng uondiasag JUNoIY  JBGUNN JUNODY
uwMﬂNm pasaqumuaun bupueasino qeq-03-Jeds  JNRJG-0)-YIJUoW papusuy jebpng

jooyos asading [esauan PT  : puny

¥1 4o 71 2bed vzoz AMenuer
Wd £T:T $Toe/ofz Pwil/ageq pung Aq [qQ Aq AlewWnS saJnjipuadx3 JO LIRS 291 :Aq pajeasd
plojmes) ejiey 598N uonesnp3 jo pieog AJuno) ausaln pauyag DO PwepN ajejdws)



%9826  (28'761°T) 00°6¥T 61°£SE'ST 00°'0 (10°86997) (10°8641) (00°05Z’sT) uBdopABQ YRAS/ANMBS-UT  HTS
%05'56  (867080°2) PO'SETvE 86'€L6'6 (2743 (00'062'9p) (00°068'%) (00°00%TH) seusjely puy saiddns Jstp0 661
%z9'7e  (§9°208°0T) 88979 Ib'83Y YT 0£'09S (00°006'82) {00°005'S) (0000¥'€2} s3yddng [euononnsul  6ZF
%00°00T 000 S9'T80°T SE'8T6 10°26 (00°000°7) (00°0002) 000 so|ddns pood  TTH
%09 (SCEST'L) 000 v8'16L'CT 99'L0E'T (61°526°6T) (66°10£) (0z'sL9'6T) ARl 9SE
%00'00T 000 00°000°0Z 000 00'0 (00°000°02) 000 {00°000'00) sjueynsuc)  80€
%00°0 (00°00%) 000 000 00'0 {00°00%) (co'00v) 00°0 uonedunWWwoe)  Z0§
%00'00T  88°4L €00 88'LL 901 00'0 00'0 00'0 UOREZIHGEIS PHOAH - JuswRIgdy  £1T
%L2'8S  (b'L96'S) 000 $Z'905’8 IHP10'T (12€Lr'vT) {00°spb'y) (12°820°0T) aeoipajy ;BAoduy 712
%000 (00°005) a0'0 00°0 000 {00°005) (007005} 00°0 uogesuadwo) wawAoidwaun  0TC
%00°00T €8T 000 €8Ty 000 00°0 000 00°0 soueinsuy juRq 807
%easz  (90'9¥9'877) 00’0 66'26L'9L SEEVETT (S0'b20€) 88'Zb£'067 (€6'987865) oueinsuy LIPS £0Z
%00'00T  OT'% 00'0 ot 600 000 000 00'0 @duensur 3N 90T
%8s (LT6v0'TE) 00°0 6L°EP9'TH 8L T6E"S (90°c69°cL) (88°116'9) {81°18£/99) walwamay sws 0T
%szze  (§L/50'T70) 000 §7'99£°9¢€ S6'TEE" (86°cZH'8S) (00798¢°sT) (86°2£0°¢h) Aundss |epos 10T
%19'Z9  (8T7ESTSE) 000 ZLTBY'S6S STELT'TL (00'S10°8b6) (00°09'6T2) (00°555'822) sabep, g sauejles B0 68T
%IS0b  (10°bT6'8) 000 66°50'9 €49 (00'000°ST) (00°000'ST) 00'0 |PUUCSRd [eouspy 29T
00EEL
%TL6E  (S£88%'0L) 00'0 ST TY'oY $E°€89°S {00°1£6°9TT) 00°0 (00°1£6'9TT) 0T8ZL |e10L
%b5'EE  (62°669) 000 12°15¢ SI'8E (00°Lp0'T) 00°0 (00°260°1) amdipaly Jhodws 212
0182,
axgy Ioueleg saouBIqWNOU]  SaJmypuadxy saunjipudxy 126png uswpuswy junowy }abpng uofididsaq JUNCO0Y JoquUInp JUROIDY
396png pasqumusun Buipueysing  3)eq-03-IedA  3RE-03-YJuoy papuswy P6png
30 %

Jooyos asoding |Riauss) IPT :pungd

$1 4o €7 abeq vzoz Aenuer
Wd /22 #202/9/T awiy/ajeq pung Aq [0 Aq Aseunung s3snjiputixy Jo Juswalels 291 tAq pojeasd
piojmel) ejiey HE2T)] uonesnp3 jo pieog Ajung) ausaln pauyag Do eweN ejdwdg



%9s'9y  {(Z6T90'989VE) TLTTT'LIY STITTLY8'6T 8EOTT'STLY (68'962°0sT’s9) (68°6T0°TZE'E)  (00°29Z'3Z8°19) 34 pung 104 [e30L
%99 (T6'T790'989°vE) TLTTT'LIY ST'ITTZ¥8'6T  BE9TT'STLY (68'96T’0sT'S9) (68'6Z0'TTE'E)  (00°£97’8T8'TI) (e301
%os'9b  (T6T90°989°vE) TLTLT'LIY STITTLYE'6T  SEITT'OVLY (68'962°0S1'S9) (68'6Z0'TTE'E)  (00°29Z'8T8'19) 2101
%z'8T  (66'887'0L) 00'0 T0'0TL'ST (£2°88S'8E) (00°666'S8) {00'666°08) {00°000°s) 00T9Z 1ejoL
%00°00T  {07'950°T) 000 (07'950°1) (£z'885'8¢E) 000 00'0 00°0 juRwdinby oo 064
%0402 {6£TET'H9) 00°0 12'992°9T 00'0 (00'666'08) {00°666'08) 00’0 siuawoarosdw] Gupung  £0Z
%00°0 {00'000°S) 000 000 00’0 (00°000°S) oo'e (00"000°s) spauyuy  POE

00T9L
%Lrsy (60'9£8°598) 00°0 0T"£69'L59 ST'SEL'LET (6r'67s's2s'T)  (6T°98EY) (00°EPT’615'T) 00tEL 10301
%58 €C  (1Z'8L4'D) 000 86'SLL 00’0 (6T'¥52°C) (61°bSTE) 000 sa)|ddns (euomonnsur 62t
%0 (09°0ET°E0T) 00'0 Or'61I1°0L ST'bH 0E {00°0ST'sLT) (00°2L€TT) (00"8£8°191) sapusby JIgnd BYIO Wim spequo) - 1€
%zeg9  {0Z'08€) 000 08'618 96'€9T {00002'1) 000 (00°002°1) uogezliqels PUGAH - awaigRy  L1C
%oy  (Creey’s) 000 88'0£9°S 7€'650'T {00°001°vT) 007001 {(00°00Z'pT) ateipaly Jokoidwz 212
%00'00T 000 000 o0 000 00'0 00°0b8 (00°0v8) uopesuadwa) juswAoidwaun  0TZ
%It 00°052°€) 000 00°0ST 00'0ST {0000b'c) 000 (00"00v°€) soueinsu] [muag  80Z
w%bg'es  (95'bbS96) 000 vb'SST80T $5'998°91 {00°00£407) 00°0 (00°00£+07) ouesnsuy jedipa 0T
%8L'Ss  (1£°€bT) 000 6C°18T ov'stT (00°5¢€} 000 (o0°sze) uensur 3N 902
%979 {62'8K0'bS) 000 12182°0¢ 26'ELL’S (c0°008"+8) 00002 (00°00558) wewamsy a|s 02
%SE'0r  (6T'TSR'SE) 00'0 18°L¥T'4T 9z'2LSy (00"001°09) 007005 (00°00909) Aunoas epos 102
%erel.  (S¥SEE’T) 00°0 STH99°E 05°99 (00°000°S) 000 (00°000) SIaYea} SINSANS PRYIMSIUON 86T
%b8 0T (20'85b'F) 00°0 86'T¥S 00'0 (00°000’s) 00°0 (00000'5) siayes) aynsqns paye)  S6T
%I0'Zy  (80°09£'£89) 000 26'6€T1S 08°590°L (00°000°607) 000 {(00"000’601} siejsissy jeuonesnpy €91
%e0'ty  (01'¥89'88Y) 00°0 06°SO¥'8YE 81°¢69'69 (o0"0sT'2E8) 00°001°8 (00°052'5+8) siaypest 911
%2088 (91'THE'6) 000 ¥8'806°C1 TUHHR'T (00°0s¢'70) 000 (00°052'22) sopalg/rosiaedng  SOT
00vEL
%9295 (££°5v6'769) 96°8EY'09 £9°8ET’'6V8 L0°9PT'L6 (00'€2S°T09'T)  00°0 (00°£TS‘209°7) ooesL ol
%5¢9s  (95'bETCT) 6EbHET S0'1sT'LT LOELE (00'01£'05) {00°005"vT) (00°072'9%) sebiey) BPO 665
00EEL
g Fouejeq soueIqUIMDUI  saumpuadxy  saunypuadxy 396png SusWpUdWY  Junowy 1a6png uopd|psag JUnoddy  JBQIUNN JURCIOY

uwwﬂww pasequnoudun  Buipueising  83ed-03-ieaA  9ed-03-UIuoK pspusawy 1e6png
looyos asoding |essuss IPT [ pund

b1 j0 T abed vzor Aenuer

Wd £Z:Z $202/9/T 2w /ejeq punj Aq [qO Aq AJewwns saumpuadxg Jo JuaLIR}S 291 1Aq pjeas)
plomeID ejhe)y SN uoneaNnp3 jo pieog AJUno) aussadn pauysq@ D91 :dwey sejdwal



syaloud jesspad [00YS

TYT sjRol pund

00°0
(Lv'66L'SEY'LZ) sIoueleg puny pue ‘saunosay JO SMOYUT Pailajeg ‘sanIiger]  [&oL
(3L°96L'9LY'Y) saqinby  |eoyL
(S£°€50°005°T) poubisseun 0006€
0E'6L1°916 uogesnpy 104 pIPLISAY SSSPE
(v £82°9vT'T) 183 Joud - SIURIGUINOLT 0TTHE
(2£°5£9'9b9°2) 1B9A YU - SOURIQUIDUT 1447
{9%'200656'T2) soniqery (&0l
{¢E9g€'991 L) {108uoy) senUAARY 0058
{52'509°8TL'ST) (10u0)) suoneudoaddy 00782
000 PRWHIY T6£T12
08107 SaNQ UoNePOSSY 16€TC
000 Ajunuuy diea PRETZ
(00°09} sUoRINP3Q Lo UPSID 08ETC
000 Ajjiqesig 2jqesn 0LETZ
00 Hreunsai) -1 14
000 Junoooy sbupres yyeaH §9£TZ
00°0 SSAUIT 1e2ALD Jqesn $OETZ
00°0 I0TAN 2iqesn T9EVL
0001 I oA 3fgensn 19E1Z
00°0 SAIAT] PUY SUBWYSILIZD) \1:13 £4
00°0ST 3y SBULIEY S05SIULS) SSETZ
Ly 190U A\qesh 353 €4
000 SUJ )11 uuely 30I0H TSENT
fa:4:1) tequad uojuedwod 18612
(z5°202) syauRg dwe) 0S€1Z
000 Aem pagiun (224
00°0 WSOy Sidesn eI
05'2€S JSv1 - Gupusds xey - ejea PIfRS SPETT
8569 SU[ SIYPEIL [RUOGEN ETZ
(19'22) 3y agesn THETT
(e1°¢60°01) SUL Jaydea) 03 45 THETZ
(€999} 11915 PLGAH JUBWANSY TEETT
000 A9 38319 HTOb TEETT
{96°596) SUOONGIOUDT WARINSY 0€ETE
00°¢ uoiPNpaG 4edIpal dakodg SZET2
00°0 xe| A3uross [epos 0ZETZ
000 piedun puy PRYERIM Xe1 SWodUT [1] ¢4 ¢4
(8="9p5e9) djqeded sunooy a0T1Z
LT'66L'SEY LT SBIIN0STY JO SMOJJINQ PLIYDd PUR SIISSY {2901
LV'66L'SEV' LT Sessy j@oL
1£°09p"€SH U3 SIA Jolg Jo4 3ARSIY oL pbyy dx3 0051
0Z'€0Y'SELL (j0queD) Je3A WaUND - SaIMIpUSt 00SbT
7ESE'9H9T (loquon} ssoueIqUINOUZ pagepInbliun 00Zk1
5T°S09'81L°T SeNUBARY patewnsy 00THE
SEBIE SJUBUILIDACY JD\RO WoL and 0SbIT
96'1¥9°€88 SH/STUL LM 45D oF1IT
(ee1s2'D) Sjueq ul ysed OETTT
aouejeg buipuz uoidudsaqg JuUNcaOYy JIQUWNNIUNOIDY
splold [Rieped jooups Y pund

140 | efied
Wd 61:€ 202/9/2
pioymen) ejiey

s /xeq

+20Z Aenuer
POZHRWWNG JYS duRjRY
uopie2np3 Jo preog Ajunas eusels)

pozewwny
333US 20Uejeg PauYaq J91

tAq pageasd
ey Hejdwa)



S0TTS'994°T

(99°T92'259'T)  %6S'SY 88'892°'ZSS’'8 (Lg°9g€'991°L) ST'S09'BTL’ST 0Z'E60°TS6'ZT jelol
£0°£80°SS

00°0 %000 09'6ZH'TET 00°0 09'62b'1€Z LSTHEILT a1es Y6noayL |121apad JBYI0 065% [423
000

(98'259'8¢) %L0°16 16°162°E (98°259°8€) LYYy LTy eig Py Ueld SNDSSY URIIDWY Yol 00
000

00°0 %00°00T 00°C {9£'560'2T) 9/'560'ZT 9275601 UL 1Y Ueld SNJSDY LEJRWY [ 74 106
000

(8T'6LEVTT'T) %I+'6b ST'HEE'380°S (HHrocT’0L6'Y) 0£°046'8S0'01 0L'0/¥'850°01 juels Py ueld snIssy Uedlpwy IOvLt £€6
00°Z1L'6S

(9T'6b6'1¢) %L8'ES 62955951 {0z'ses’zat) 6Y'T6E'6E 6v'6£9'64C wswdoPAaq Jold JAMOYUISIT 681Lp 002
(65'810'1)

(S8'E05'Pb) %66°0Z 95" LLb 191 (58°£05'bY) T 186°11C 00°000°€1Z ucgeonp3 |einy 8b1ip 00s
000

00°0 %000 99°£28'8€E 00°0 99'£78'8¢ 99'/78'8E uonisinboy abenbue ys||bug SbTLY 10€
L1°190°8Y

(zsrzrL's) %80°9T 80'698'TL (60°29€'s2) LUTET'LE 00°0LT'6% SjueId) J00Y25a1d UoReonp3 jerds SYILy 016
SH'SSS9LE

(6T'110'2£2) %80°ZY 09°612'Lb2'1 (58'162°906) SHITS'EST'C 00°956'9££'T 01 suels ~ uoResnp3 (erds £bILY 006
66'b11'827°C

(zeorg'oeT) %EY'SE £8'606°€Lb°T (06'€09°£26) €LETSTONT PLBEE'ELT NP3 {8307 OL SIURID T IMLL 122924 01T
000

Cladza)] %69'¥b 60°ES8'TL (zv'p58'8s) 16°204'T€T 1S°£0L'1€T 01 Sjuel9 iseq - NP3 (EUODEIOA 1€y 008
00°0

000 %00°00T 00°0 00°0 00°0 000 sypa.D aunypusdx3 08Ti 001

SNUIANY JUBUND pazijeay pazijeasun pazijeay QLA pajewiys3 oL KSuawWpuswy uondinsaa uojppung pung-qns

% /153 jeuibuQ
spalold [e13pay [ooyIs THPT : pund

£ Jo z abey pzoz Aenuer paziewwns

Wd Z€:2 ¥202/9/C wyL/ajeq PRZIBPWIWINS SONUIASH JO JUAIAIS JUBLWNENS BNUHBY :Aq pajeasd

PIOJMBIY) BJARY 1osn uoiyeInp3 jo pieog Ajuno) auaxun pauyaqg D91 :aweN jejdwal



%680 (6b'622'SE) 000 160LEPT 60°990't (00°009'65} 00°166 (00°165°09) Aurosg |epos 10T
%001 (0b£92°0T) 00°0 01"06Z'T 05'99 (05°£50°21) 000 (05°£50°2T} SIPeIL YMIsSqnS payned-uoN 861
%8C9.  (SE°962T) 000 S569T° 0£'159 (06°59+'S) 000 (06°59%°S) SRRl 3Esqns payss  S6T
%00°¢ {60009'2) 00’0 000 00°0 (00009'0) 000 (007009'7) sobep 8 saueles 2o 68T
%ozey  (21°s6b'9s) 000 98'95¢'TH 9L T1E’9 (00°258°£6) 00°0 (00°z58’26) sibojoped yeads  TLT
%ETHy  (bS'S/8'2ZE) 000 9b'€00°65Z 6€'9TZ'EE (00°6/8'985) (00'6£L'bLD) (00°001°21€) sjueisissy jevoneonpy €97
%Ig0b  (99°6£9'SST) 000 YE'6Zb'90T 86°Lbe'LT (00°690°797) 000 (00°690°792) sioyes) 91T
weifold uonednps jerads  00ZTL
%07°8S (T9'E0L'0LT'T) T8VLL'VPP TS SLT'YOL'T 98°06£°096 (86°c59'6Tt's)  (Tv'£es’sto’y)  (95°99LE6L°E) weibosd uogonysur 1enBoy  0OTTL IR30L
%8688 (87'€£8'/b1) ¥9°£80'€6€E 80°6£6008 8Ly el (00°006 THE'T) (00-000'06) (00°006'152'T) juawdinb3 uomdnasul Jenbey  TZL
%0591  (00°0SL'TH) 00°0 0070528 00°0 {00°000°05) 00°005 (007005'0S) sjeayely puy sanddns 2lp0 66
%16 (08 TLPEE) 00702591 07°800°0bE IR 2245} (00°000°06€) (o0 000061 (00°000'002) aemyos T
%b6€0  (VS'EC6'E9D) 81°/91'sE 9rLnL'eey B9'LVE'OE (8'808'1€L) (gTzsess) (5z2°955'¢59) sayddng |euomonosul  6Ch
%7898 {62'1T6'L) 000 12'S6T°CS L1°668'2C (05911°09) (92'291'82} (b£8b6'1€E) SITIAIFS papRenuo) 120 66€
%000 {00°000'%) 000 000 00'0 (00'000°p) (00°000'Y) 00'0 PRUYIBD-UON - SIYD| gns Jod sPawD  OLE
%00°0 (00°000'9) 000 000 00°0 (00°0009} (00°000'9) 000 PaLRIT) - SIYDR3) QNS Jod SPAUD  69E
%00°00T 000 000 00°0 000 000 00°0 000 uonezyqels pugAH - uswamy  L1¢
%08'0¢  (87'8v0'v7) 000 TLT0L0T LT85T (00°052'b€) (£0°668'€T) {g6'058°02) 2Jeapaiy hojduy  CTZ
%z (00°00S'h) 000 00°00£°T 000 (00°002°9) (00002'7) {(c0’00sy) uopesusdwio) JswAoidwaun  0TZ
%IE'S (00°00€’s) 00°0 00°00€ 00'0ST (00°009°s) (00°009'2) (c0"000°e) oueinsul [BUq 80T
%s'8F  (887LSTHET) 00°0 U LpLb8T 06'8L1'LT (00°000°6£€) (00°806'081) (00°Z60°86T) soueunsuy [oIpa  £0Z
%els (TTSEY) 000 8LbIE 9E'T (00°055) {00°052) (00°00¢) oueinsur YN 90
%86'87  (19°99T'cCT) 000 6c°g62'0s 8LSLLL (007095°€£1) (z8'189'12) (ar'8z8'101) JeuRIsy s H0T
%8708 (£5'ST0S6) 00°0 oL TE £b°652°9 (00-00€'0€T) (86°666°€S) (z5°00£'28) Aumos epos 102
%0000T  0S°99 00°0 05°99 00°0 00°0 000 000 sidydes) sgnsqns paunJad-uoN 86T
%00'00T 000 00'0 000 00°0 00°0 ¥6°998°pY (b6'998'5T) SIRPEdL NMNSANS paYIe)y  S6T
%€9'sz  (0b'b00'8sH) 000 09'¢98°(ST 26'6bT'LT (00°698'519) 00'+07'S0T (00°€£0'122) sabiep, g sauejes RO 68T
%L (L1'T99'1ED) 000 £8°£EE°£0T SSTSH'TT {00°000°6€b) (00°000°6S) (00°000°08€) sjuesissy jeuogeonpy €91
%9466 (80'SES'6Z9) 000 26'¥9b'STh 0v'100°8L (00°000's+0'T) (00°000'996) (00°000'62) siayoeal  9T1
weibolg uonanisuy Jeinbay  00TTL
ax3y 3ouejeg ssouRIqNoug  sainjjpuadxg  seanjipuadxy yebpng sjuaWpUaWyY  Junowy 3ebpng uondiysag JUNOIOY  SGWINN JUNCIOY
uwom_”wn pamsqundusufy  Buipuesing  3jeQ@-03-189A  31Q-03-YIUOKW papuawy 12bpng
0

spafougd jesapad jooyds ZbT : pund

S Jo 1 abeyg vzoz Menueg
Wd bE:Z $202/9/2 PwL/aeq pung Aq [q0 Aq AJewitng S3INJPUSAX JO JURWNRELS 91 :Aq paressd
ploymer) ejde) i9sn uopeonps jo pieog AQUNOD SUSILD pauysqg D91 PweN edwa)



%9669  (Z0'H00’E) 000 86'566'9 00°0 (00°000°01) 000 (00°0000T) Jswdofeasq yes/aomas-ur - IS
%889z (1Z'90T'0v) 19°61L'2T 61'£50C 4824t (10°e86'yS) (00°000'Sp) (30°€86'6) SleLiels puy saNddng Jatho 66
%000 (00°008) 00°0 000 000 (00'008) 00°0 (00°008) SS0IARS PIPERULD A0 66E
%6¥0 (00°156'6} 000 00°6% 000 {00°000°01) 000 (oo-000°01} ARl SSE
%Ip'9l  (9p'9ZZ°c) 000 PSEE9 €6'T9 {00°098°€) (00"002°€) (00"091) aspaly pioiduy  CTT
%00°0 (00 001) 000 000 000 (ooooT) {(00"00T) 000 uonesuadiiod Wwewiodwaupn  OTZ
%00'sz  (00°0SH) 00°0 00°0ST 000 (00 009) {00°009} 00’0 oueinsuf |esq 807
%ee9z  (06'8L9°T€E) 00°0 0T IZETT 08'959'T (00°000'Er) (00°000°ed) 000 soueansup [eipaW 20T
%peHT  (09°08) 00’0 o8 ozt (00°65) (00°6%) 000 Idueinsul 1 90T
%bb8T  (S57650°pT) 00°0 Sp'081°E LN 143 (00052'LT) (00°0S0°2T) (00°002) WwouRumRy a|ms  $0T
%8581 (£60£8°1T) 000 20'604'T £8'49C (00°085'¥T) (00 0ETvT) (oo-0sy) Aunmes epos 102
%bg'8s  (05°986'S) 000 00°01£'2 00°0 (05°962'92) (o0r0se'ze} (05°9r5’s) sabem B souejes BLRO 68T
%0070 {00°005"95} 000 000 000 {00'005"95) {00°005°9S) 000 jPuUUOsIDd [eABojodAsyd  HTT
%191 (ST'H08°C2T) 000 S8'G69'€T LIGELY (0000S"9bT) (00°00S'9P1} 000 Puucssad 2duepiny  £71
voddng Jusprs DY 0ETTL
%S59'8% (66°L0°T0T) TT'SEV'ET TE'8L0°E8 +8'SH8's {(15°162'861) 000 (15°16£'86T) wesboud uonesnpy [GUORRIOA  DOETL tEI0L
%86’z (50°0€2'9S) 000 86762691 00’0 Wo'ps9'ss) 000 (»0'vS9'cL) uawdinbg uoonnsuy [euoneson  0EL
ws9es  (€9°662'ch) £9'8£€°0F YeSve'LE 00°€80°L (00'b8r'16) 00°0 (00'v8¥'16} sjeusely puy saiddng opo - 66%
%16°€6  (01°8400) 8£°967'E 66'80€'8Z ¥8°29L'T {£1'€59'€E) 00°0 (evgso’es) - soiddng |euoponnsul  6ZF
welbold uopedNpy [EUOREIOA  OOETL
%8T'vy (Z8°606'€L6) 00°60T 9E'TE90LL ST'VBT'EET (sr0s9'vb2’t)  {££1TL¢TH) (18'8€6'6ZE°T) weubaid uoeonpy fepads  00TTL X901
%IET6  (99°€50T) 00°60T bE'LS6°0T 61'1er (o0"0z1°Z1) (0z'sse’s) {08'49£'9) juswdinbg uonesnps lepeds  G¢Z
%EH'S (yTea0’sT) 000 $6°098 8€'0/ (81°'$98'ST) (zr19r'pl) (10°€04'1) sjeuRiey puyY solddns 1RO 661
%szer  (50°S8Z'07) 00°0 55°2e8'T 9T°L¥e't (o9 L1180} {co"05Z'02} (09°298'2) sa|ddng jeuopongsul 62
%000 (c0"052) 000 Q000 00°0 (00'052) 00'0 (007052} SIAISG papenuo) taQ  66€
9%00°00T 000 00'0 00'059°€T 000 (00'0S9'€T) 000 {00°059'€T) 1dinb3-sa01s58 J1eday puy 3ouBLAURN  9EE
%E0'8E  (S'026'S8T) 000 SS6L0'PTT ObEE6'TE (00°000'00€) {00°000°00T1) (00"000°002) SaPUaby 23eAUd Ym Spequo)y  ITE
%oETy  (E6°001°Q) 00'0 £5°669°S 87°9%6 (00°008°c1) 60'v9Z (00°¥90'¥T) aiedpay phodwa  ZTC
%z0'Zy  (80°859) 000 69 €00 (oo'seT’Y) 00°0 (00°SET'T) uonesuadwo) uswiAoidwaun  OTC
%wzzoz  (00°086'T) 000 00°05£ 000 (oor01£) 00°0ST'T (00°098°p) oueinsy] @uag 80T
%bTLG  (LE'SOE'ETT) 00°0 €9'691ST 8PEE'DT (00000'592) {00°000°s) {00'000'092) aouRInsul (AP L0C
%00'19 (L) 000 £5°4LT oTLe (00°55%) 00°€T {(00'gsp) auensurayn 907
%zy'tp  (15°762'9€) 000 6V'2ELTE 0€°LLE°S (0052069} 00'9T+'C (00" 1Hb'1L) juawunay Aels  HOC
weiboid uoljesnpa jepads  00ZTL
o Vuejeg ssoumiquIndul  ssunjpuadxy  saunypuadxy Je6png SJuslUpUBWY  Junowy 32b6png uondidsa JUNO3DY  JIQUNN JUNODY
uww_ﬁ.n paraquniuaun Bupueising  9je@-03-1E3X  9ed-01-YIUOW papuday 396png

spalold [es3pad jooyds TYT :pund

S Jo Z abed +Z0T AMenuec
Wd bE:Z $20Z/9/ au) /ajeq puni Aq [qQ Aq Alewnwung sainjjpuadxy jo Juswajels 91 tAq pagess)
plogmelD ejiey asn uoneonp3 Jo pieog AJUno) U3 pouRag Do owepN jejdwag



%000 (o0001) 00°0 000 00°0 {00-001) (0008} (00°08) Jchnb3-s0IAISS Jleday puy SoueuAUIBW  9EE
%b5'1S  (00°S£0°62) 000 00'SZ6°0E 00°006°t (00°000°09) 00'0 (00°000°09} sapusby djeald WM spenvo)  CTE
%80'TH  (9£STH'T) 000 7/ R 76'80€ (00°007'%) 00°£0€'T {00 20¥'s) sy Jokoiduy  ZTT
%00°0 (cozeT) 000 000 000 {00L£T) 00°0S (007281) uopesuadwo) JuswAojdusun  OTC
%Ig'9t  (00'STS) 000 00°00€ 000 (0o's18) 00°0ST (00'596) ouemsut |gusa 80T
%Ir'Zs  (¥S898'1T) 00°0 ' TET'6T LETIT'Y (00°000'1S) 00°00£°8T (00°002’69) soueinsul [edipal  Z0C
%E6'9S  (9vbE) Qo0 ¥S'St 0e'9 {00°08) 00°bT (00¥6) ssuemsur ] 90Z
%L Ty (STLOPET) 000 SLTE9'6 61 TEL'T (00001'52) 00°£04'6 (00°208°2) wewamnd ;s 0T
%sT'y  (zr'sez’on) 00°0 851072 £6'02€'T (00°005°£T} 00°0T9'S (oo°0T1°€7) Awnoss epos  10Z
%eeor  (ST'696'Lb) 000 SL°90b'ZE ST'ZI0'9 (o0"9££'08) 000 (00'9££°08) safiep 13 sobejes oo 681
%be'bs  (00°€L9°LT) 000 00'255'12 09°E£8'C (00's2Z’s€) 00°0 (00°szz'6g) (Shmanss 191
%erey  (ST01S'76) 000 SBHLE'69 LE'PLY'ET (oos88’09T) 00'0 (00°588°09T) [Puuostad eoIpdly - TET
weiboid uopesnp3 ejRds  0ZTZL
wro'vy  (bSYZa'TIS) 98°80T'TE QT'CSLTLE 9T LEY'SY {09°s89°¥16) {10°619°6Z¢E) (65990°58S) weibolg uogonnsuy lejnbdd  0TZTL (€01
%000 (00'000°S) 00°0 000 00°0 {(00°000°s) (00°000"%) (00'000°1) wawdinbg 8o 06/
%6L°0 (sz£11'102) 000 00°009°T 000 (sT'£1£'200) (00°000'102) {sT'£12'T) sobeyd 2RO 665
%98'2L  (gL0ze'eE) 11'SL8'6T Tb'SS5'69 £0°LTL'ST (oz'152°221) (Ib°182°LS) (58'691'59) wawdopasg yes/eomas-ul 25
%eove  (6b°780°TE} SLEETTT §2'5€2's 26'T6¥ (6b'155°LY) (00°296'CT) (6+°685v2) sieuagely puy s3ddns 2o 66¢
%00'0 (09'scg'oT) 000 000 000 (09-52£"91) (09's¢g’at) 000 PoYRITD - SJaydeal qns Jod spau)  69€
W6T0Z  {(£8'44L°0T) 00’0 £1°52L°T 0E'SIT (00°00S'€T) (00°005'T) {00"000'¢T) PARLL  SSE
%06'vs  (58°S0L'T) 00'0 ST'H6Z'E LE°TTE (00°000"9) (00°00S) (00°005°5) amepaj RAodwy  CTL
%000 {00°067) 000 000 000 (00°062) 00'0 (00°062) uonesuadwio) JuswAodwaun  0TT
%005z (00°0Sb) 00'0 00°0ST 00'0 (00°009) 000 (00°009) aouesnsu] [ewaa 807
%1ses  (bE9sy'se) 000 99'EbT8T 89°E0L'E (00°009°¢S) 00°0 {00°009"cS) soueinsut (eapR £0C
%gb'0  (LL6T) 000 £T°0E 6Tp (00°08) 000 (00°05) aouesnsul 7 90T
%€E2'TS  (967L2b'p1) 00°0 $0'7LL'ST PISEY'T (00°002'0£) 00°0 (0o-002°0¢) wawaRy s H0C
%9975 (10°L¥S'6) 000 66'Z00°ET LTL9T'T (00°055'22) (00°000°T) {00°08512) Aunoss epos 10T
%8695  {EC'EPRTZI) 000 £99ST'SLT 86'405'HT (00°000°262) (0000052} (00°000'2£2) sobem g sauejes i0 68T
%0z'1¢  (00°0bS'TT) 000 00°09e°8T 00'8bbT (00"000'0¢) 000 {0o'000°0€) (s)veppss 19T
%bT8s  (VEELL'LT) 00°0 99°92£'8€ 8€'2€5'S (00°005'99) 000 (0000599} sopanigfiosivedng SO
welbold uopanysuy seinbay 0TTTL
%ITTT (Z£'869'00€) T9'6TLCT 8S°0TT'EL 6£°00T°L (15°8Z5'98¢€) {00°68€'6VE) (1S°6ETLE) yoddns JuepmiS JIBIR0 0ETZL (w0l
yoddng Juopms Y0 0ETTL
ax3y ouejeqg saouRIqUINDUg  sanjipuadx3y saimpuadxy bpng Ssjuswipusiuy junowy }36png uondidsag JUnoddy  JSGUNYN JuUnodloy
«ww_“.\_n pasaqumousun  Bulpueysing djeQ-03-JeeA  33e@-031-WUOKW pepuawy 3o6png
(]

spsfold [edapag |00YIS TPT :pund

5 Jo £ obed zoz Atenuer
Wd v€:Z $T0Z/9/¢ Pwyl/a3eq pund Aq {40 Aq AleWWNS 59IMIPUDAX] JO Juswlels 291 iAq pajeasd
paoJMELD) BIARY asn uonednp3 jo pieog AJUno) auadlH pauleq DO :eweN ejdwal



%00°00T  Z0°0 00'0 10°0 90°0 00°0 00°0 000 aouesnsur yYn 907
%Ep'6T  (bb7006'D) 000 95°669 PEYS (00'009°€) 000 (00°009°€) Wowamay s 0T
%8TEl  {b6'606'T) 00°0 90°06¢ e (000027} 00°0 (00°002°2) Aundss lepos  T0Z
%86l (§6°915°(D) 00°0 €0's28°9 $0'0£S (00°ZHe'PE) 000 {00eTre'vE) sisAug sng  9b1
uoneyodsuell QOTLZZ
%00°00T L8810 00°0 18°840°C 00°0 00°0 00'0 00°0 jued Jo wopesado  OT9ZTL =301
%00°00T 6527 000 6522 00°0 000 000 000 weopa Rioduz 71T
%00°00T  00°8TT 000 00°8T1 000 000 00'0 0070 Auroes jepos 10T
%00°00T  8Z'€06T oo §2°€06'T 0070 00°0 000 000 puuosiad [eipagsnD 99T
jueld Jo uoneradg  OT9ZL
%6509 (9E°vEL'LT) 00°0 +9°§9Z°£C TZ'L09'E (o0'000°sY) 000 {00°000's¥) ABojouysa}  OSTTL lex0L
%00°0 (007000'T) 000 000 000 (00"000'T) 000 (00°000'1) loAeiL  GSE
%seTz  (LZ'1L6) 00'0 €L°€9C SO'SE (00'SETD) 00'c (00'se2’1) aseoipaly soholdwy  ZT1T
%00°0 (00°00T1) 000 000 000 (00'001) 000 (a0-0o1) uopesuadwo) uawdodurun  0TC
%00°0 (o001} 00’0 00°0 000 (00 0sT) 00°0 (oo-0s1) 2oueinsuf jegueq 807
%ep'ed  (00'9HH'T) 00°0 00'¥55°S 00'€3L (00'000'8) 000 (00°000°8} souensul |papa  Z0T
%00v3  (0F'S) 000 09'6 0zl (00'sT) 000 {00'sT) adueinsur a3y 9L
%£§°se  (§9°119) 000 SE'888'1 8£°1ST (00°00s'2) 000 (00°005°2) wawaIRRy s YOT
%6e9s  (6T°2z8) 000 I TA% ! 88'6%1 (00°000°2) 00°0 {00'0002) AQumoes jepos 0T
%IFTS  (SLLL8'1T) 00°0 sTTH'8T 0£956Z (00°000"0¢£) 000 (00°000"0€) [PUUsIRd J3Idwo) jeuoionnsul - 8ET
ABojouypsy 0STZL
%902z (E€'881°T) 000 29°'118 00°0 {00°000°c) 00’0 (00°000°€) wezbold uoneanpd |euonedon  0ETTL w0l
%902z (€£'881'T) 000 {97118 000 (00°000°€) 000 (00'000'€) Juswidopasq yers/eomes-ul - ¥ZS
weiboigd uoigeanpl [EUONEIOA  0ETTL
%S0y  (1¥9°'66£'S8T) 00'0 95°886'bTT 9£°80L'SE {0z'88£'015) (5Z2°506°6) ($6°788°00S) weibold uoedonpl [Rpeds  0ZZZL 1«0l
%1z (08bb1'0b) 000 SL°26E°TT 000 (65°2£5"15) (08'pb1'0) (s£'Z6€1T) Wwswdinby BRC 062
%009,  (20°882) 00°0 86116 00°661 {007002'T) 000 (co'00z'T} sableyy s0 665
%201 80°THI 00°0 £L%LT'S 00°0 (s9ZeT's) S5 ISST (0z°¥89°9) dwdopAsg yeis/eaiaps-ul  HIs
%011 {10°Ehb) 00°0 6695 00’0 (00°005) 000 (00'005) s|eusiep puy saiddng 190 661
%000 (o0000°2) 00'0 000 oo'o (0oro00’D) (000529} (00°052) $30|AU9S papenUe) o0 66E
%eL'€9  (90'206'7) 000 $6'260°S £E°61E (00°0008) 000 (00°000'8) PARy  GSE
%000 {oo-001) 00’0 00°0 00'0 (00°00T) {00°0S) (0o05) sabley) |@sod  BYE
weifoid uoeonpy (erads  0TTTL
aq souejeg sodueIquInNDuz  SaInMpuadx3y saangipuadxy Jab6png SJuUBWIpURWY  Junowy JR6png uondpsag JUNOIIY  IBGUINN JUNROIDY
R6png pasequnousun  BuipuesIng 33e@-03-1e9A  I)RQ-03-YIUOW papuswy 196png
JO %

spafoad [esapad [ooyds TYT :pund

S Jo § abed ¥ToT Aenueg
Wd $£:Z ¥202/9/2 2wyl /ageq pund Aq (g0 Aq Arewiwng seanjIpuadxg jo Julwlels 91 ‘Aq pmeas)
piojmes) eiAe) asn uoneInpy jo peod AJUNo) 3usBLYH pauyed DO PweN ejdwa]



9%90°99 (SE'9EE'SEE’'S)  TE'SEI'IPIT 8S°€E9'9EL'L TLTLLG9E'T (sz'so9‘sTz'st) (s0°ZTs99.7)  (DTE60°ZTS6'CT) 444 1pung Jog |50L
%0099 {SE'9ce’see’s)  TESEYIN'L BS'EE9'9EL'L TLTLLB9E'T (G2°'509°8TL'ST) (S0°ZTS'992°T)  (OT£60°ZS6°ZT) 1=0L
%90'99 (SE'9E€’SEE’s)  TE'SEI'IPI'Z 8S'EE9°9EL°L TLTLL'69E'T (sz°'so9'sT'st) (so'zr5'99s7)  (0T'E60'TSE'CT) =01
%000 (00°'000°9TT) ao'o 000 00'0 (00'000°9TT) (o0-000'TE) (00°000'v8) NQ sajsurll  OOT66 &Rl
%00'0 (00"000’01T) 00'0 00’0 000 (00°000°9T1) (00°000°2€) (00°000v8) 1500 P3apul  HOS
mnQ sivysuell  00T66
%gs8s (c0'0zs'812) T8LBTVPT'T ST'69TTEY'E Z20'C6L'SET (00°££T’s6T'9) ©0'0 (00°LLZ'S62°9) Aeping jeyde) Jeinbsy 0079Z (@101
%6T'S6  (£5'S9€'CTT) 6Z°E65'619'T 81°589'p69' 75'T5p's8 {00 H9°2T5"Y) 000 {00'+49°£25'7) Juswdinbg uonessdo jueld 024
%Ip'T2  (0SbSE'SDS) £5°469'S L6°€85'LEL 05°0bE'0S (00'€e£9’294'T) 000 (00°€£9°29£°1) uogonasuod Buiping 904
Aepng jezide) senbay 00T9L
%Iz'ss (£S'8TL'LE) 00°¢ 0L'T0S’9P 78'80T’6E (£T°0ET'v8) (00"000’s) {£T0eT'6L) uonepodsues)  0TZTZ 1|01
%00°00T 000 000 LT'885'8E LT'885'BE {¢T885'8¢) 00'0 (£2'885'8¢) Wwawdinby uoneyodsuesy 627
%000 (00°000's) 00°0 00°0 000 (00'000°S) {00°000°S) 000 sobsey) 2O 665
w6l (1£°708) 00'0 69°86 69°L (00°00S) 000 {(00°00S) auedipayy sakodwy 71T
uoneyodsuell OTLZL
axg duejeg saoueiqunoul  sednyipusdxy  saimipuadxy 126png SJUBWpUIWY  junowy WHpng uondPsaq JUN0DY  JSGIUNN JUNOIDY

jobpng pasequinousun BuipusINQ  3jeQ-03-ied) ARA-0I-YIuoKW papusawy 6png

3O %
spsfold jerapay [ooyds THT i pund
S Jo § abed $z0z Aenuer

Wd ¥£:2 $202/9/2 Pwyy fageqg punj Aq {go Aq Alewiwung sa:nypusdxy Jo JudwiRs 291 :Aq pajeasd
piopmend ejie 195N uoResnps jo pieog AJUNO) 2UIBID pauyag Do eweN ARejdwat



00°0 RuUSIAE]) ([RRUe]) £3 49 S0, puny

(+9-2v9°10T'6) 20uejeq punyj pue ‘SSoInosdY JO SMOYUT PALISIRG ‘SSRIIGErT 0L
(ps 88T CHT'E) spmby jeoL
(£L°0¥6°6£8'2) 135 SUJ-UON 3O uonIad( Jod PRIy - ~0LSE-EhT
{68°SET'0LT} 1EDA IOl - SSOURIQUINOUT = = -OTYPEEMT
{z6'110°261) 1834 JUBLIND - SIoURILINDUZ - - -OTTbE-EvT
(0T'vS¥'¥56°s) Sp(Iger 1oL
(82°£95'182°T) {lonuoD) sanuaAsy - - -pOS8T-EHL
(o060T'2LLY) {jonuaD) suogeudosddy - - -00T8Z-E¥]
000 Aupgesiq ajqesn = - -0LETT-EHT
0o Y1 104 3ensn - - -TSETT-EHT
000 [=usq uoluedwod - - -TSETT-EFT
00'0 341 3fqesn - - -THETT-ELT
00’0 Sup BYIL3L 00 1S . - IPETT-EHT
00°0 SUORNQIILOD WAWIMY = - DEETT-E4T
0070 uoponpaq uedipaly seAojdwy - - -GZETZ-EHT
0070 Xel Aross |epos - - -0ZETZT-EHT
000 predury puy pIBLLRIM XB] 3WooU] - - -DIETZT-EPY
{28'189) ajqeARd DUNCODY - - -DOTTZ-EHT
Y9 TF'TOT'6 SPOINOSPY JO SMOLANO P24343Q PUE NISSY  [RQOL
¥9°79°50T’6 sjessy [e301
68'889'09€ U3 SUA ol JoJ 3AIaSaY 0) pBYD dxa = = -009bT-E¥1
S1°229'996'T (toquo) Jeap uaun) - sunypuadxy = = ~00SbT-EPT
T6'TT0'L6T ((e1u00) sauesqwnou3 payepinbiun - - -002bT-EbT
00'602°2LT'Y SSNUAASY pareuIRs3 - - -00THI-EKT
00'0 SPUnd JBG Watd ang = = -ObbTT-EHT
00°0 SWIUIITA0D) JSURQ Wold 3ng - = -OEKTT-EFD
000 3[qeAja33Y SIUNGDY - = OTHTI-EbT
69°0T6'€05'7 3FISNIL YIM Used - = -ObTIT-EbT
66'661'T yueg uf ysed - = OETII-ET
souejeg uonduIsaqg WUNOY RQWNN JUNcY
eye) [enua) €pT = pung
1 jo T 3bed $70Z7 Aenuer Ppung qns g pundg
Wd 82:€ bZ0T/ofT  ewnL/aqeqG puni-qns pue pund Aq js=ys soueieg Aq 333YS ouesed :Aq pageaJn

piopmer) ejiey uIsn uogeanp3 o preog Ajuno) ausaun psuysg 07 PweN Rejdwa )l



(r0°960°SPS) %0LTY TLSYI'06ET (8T'E9S'TBL'T) 00°60Z°2LTY 000 00°60T°TLT Y £PT :pung Jo4 |Ej0L
D00 a0 0 000 000 000 000 000 SHIISNVEL DNILVEId0 1VI0DL O006Y
000 Jebpng ON 000 000 000 o0 000 1 bUmEs P
TITEEetIe] WSt eF IS OIZBIS T (SPPeLPiv L] OO IIPEe6C 000 OO TIPEEE T TNIWNHEIA0D TVHIG3d TVI0L OOOLY
LEZ'00L7ST) %0L°18 2 i ! F=UI0 - vash 11/
(b TES'GET) %ST'E9 9¢"82£'022 (b9 £82°8££) 00°910'665 000 00'970°665 15epiEaIg €TTLb
00°0 %00°0 00°CZET0E 00°0 00'7ZE'T0€ 000 00°ZZE'70E ssnIpowwo) yasn fanvi4
(] &2V ¥49) %{£9°'TS 05°1€0°886 (0S°T81'950°T) 00°EIZPP0C 000 00°€ETTHOT {oung-puoIss |48 ¥id
OO U500 0 00 US8 2E 000 D0 0SS CE 000 DO 0BG 28 TISSINNIL 30 J1V1S TW10L 0009%
000 7000 D0 088 2L 000 00088 ¢t 000 00088 ¢& SIS P00 00055 02557
TZTooTel %%Ge99B8IZ (CC 808 0L \eC 898 1) 0000 T 000 TOO00' T IMNIAIY VOO T 93A10 TVIOL DO0PY
000 J2bprig ON GT09E) \ST°09¢e) 00’0 e00 000 SpUrysy st QLT
(£ 091°61) %I80STL (80°805°0/) (80°805TZ) 00°000°T 000 000001 pawles 3satalu] (1188474
] s.d 4V 1
[aY1) SolBEL £6'604 B0 00°'£9C° 00 000 EDETY ETs
000 %S81°ST 00'S8Y°EET (00°+¥8°€T) 00°62€°£ST 000 00°6CL°LST isepiealg woly swoduj €CSEY
00°0 Y%t € SLE86°'S9 (SZ°ES0°0T) 00'1H5°S8 000 00°'TH5'S8 SYNpy-sjusuAed youmj Y4ita4
000 %6761 SLPELTOR (SZ°0S0°001) 00'S8L°T0S 000 00982108 URIp|IYD-sjuswAed yaur Tesey
BNUDAIY JuUBLIN) pazijesaun pazijeay dLA pajewnsy [ej0L SJUaWpulWyY 353 [eulbL1Q

euaysje) [enus) £p1 : pung

T Jo T sbed YT0Z AMenuer pung gns Agq

JUBWIIRIS INUSADY
Wd 2Z:€ +202/9/2 Bunt/a3eq PUNJ-qNS AG SINUIAIY JO JUBWEIS 291 iAq pagess)
piojmen) eiAR) 9sn) uoeINPJ JO preog AJuno) SuIBIH pauyag D97 :uieN Jejdway



%98'1Ss  (€6'¥ZS‘800°C)  Z6°TTO'Z6T STTT9'996°T TE9T0'TLL (0os0Z’zLT’Y) 000 (00°60Z'LLT'Y) 374 4 :pung 104 |€30L
%98'Is (€6't£5'800'T)  T6'TTIO'L6T STZT9'996°T TE°9T0'TLT (oo'soT’zzT'Y) 000 {00°602°ZLTY) Jeon
%99'1s (E6'¥ZS'800°T) TSTTOL6T STTT9'996°T TE'9TO'TLZ (o0'60Z°2LT'Y)  00'0 {00°60Z°TLT V) =01
%99'Ts (E6'V/S'800°Z)  Z6°TTO'L6T STTT9'996°T TE9TO'TLT (00'60TzLT'Y) 000 (00°60Z°ZLT’Y) MBS pOOd  00TEL |e30L
%85'08  (0T°06E'vH) 07'SSL 14T 0£'STHCT 0070 {00°128'820) 000 (00"7£5'8¢22) wawdinbz aamms poed  0TL
%0L'89T 0TIy co'0 (ITar LAY 15°S0€ (00°000'9) 000 (0000079} sableyy AUI0 665
%00°00T  1€2 000 1€ 00'0 000 00°0 000 uotsstuswio) sgawsrul - 0TS
%00°0 (00'864'2T) 00'0 000 00°0 (00°86£'21) 000 (00'86¢TT) S{eLRIel puy salddng B0 661
%000 (oo zzs'108) 000 00'0 00'0 (00°zZe'10€) 00’0 (00°Zes’108) seppowwo) - epsn - 69
%00°0 (00"000'¢) 000 000 000 (00°000°¢) 00°C {00°000°€) salddng eo0  SEY
%Iy'es  (LZ'SET9£8T) 000 €L°TTT'9L8'T £9°0£2'697 {00°85T°T15'¢) 00’0 (00'8s2’Z15'E) SRS PAPRNUO) PO 66E
%LS'26  (bEVL) 0070 99°'5Z6 000 (o0"000°1) 00'0 (060°000°1) [@ARl)  GSE
%SLbe  {087T792) 00°000'T 0528’ 00'0 (00°000's) 00°0 {00°000") Swuo4 puy Aouones ‘buguud  6bE
%000 {00°000'€) 00'0 00°0 00°0 {00°000°S) 000 {00°000°€) ssfielp [e1lsod  8bE
%582 00°000°0T L9852’V 8T'ELL'0T 90'€8E {00°000'5€) 00°0 (00°000’s€) 1dinb3-sa01a195 nedsy puy soueusjue  9EE
%se'se  (8T°788'Y) 00°0 2LLHR'T 79'pLT (00°005°9) 000 (00°0059) vogeownuwwo)  Z0E
%EP'S9  (ZE'PIT) 00'0 89°50b 96°ch (00°029) 000 (00°0z9) sleoipay RAodwz 7T
%00°¢ (00'0g) 000 00°0 000 (00"0€) 00'0 (00°0¢£) uonesuadwio) wawAodwaun  0TZ
%00'00T 000 00°0 00°0ST 00°0 (00'0ST) 000 (000sT) soueinsuf puag 80T
%659  (2I'SET'E) 000 88'$90°9 00°€TL (00"002’s) 000 (00°002°6) souesnsuy [eapaw £0Z
%00%9  (0v'S) 00'0 096 oY (o0s1} 000 (0o°s1) souesnsur 3y 902
%96'TL  {09°8LT°T) 000 ob¥I0’e 06'ETE (00°€0Z'p) 000 (00'c02'v) WswRueY 3|s  HOT
%b2'89  {6£°£08) 0070 19'bEL'T 66481 (oo'zvs'z) 000 (002vs'0) Aunes epog  TOZ
%L6'TL  (ZUVEY'TT) 00’0 88'505°67 0P'790°E (00°000'1H) 000 (00°00019) |PuUcsIag [eouep 791

00TEL
a3 aouejeg sooueiqundUl  saunypuadxy  saanjpuadxy 1ebpng SJUIWPUSBWY  Junowy Ja6png uondpsaq JUNOVY  JSQUINN JUNCDY

ebpng pasaqunouaun  Bulpuersing 2)eqG-01-iB3) Aeq-03-RUOK papuauty 190png

30 %
euagaje) |enuad €PT :pund
T Jo T abed oz AMenuer

Wd 92:€ $202/9/Z Bwll/aeg pund Aq [qO Aq Aeuwsung sa4nlipuadxy Jo Jusw=ne3s 7 :Aq pareand
plomen) elAey 1198 uoneanpg jo pieog AJuno) UIALH pauyag Do :aweN 3jejdwa)



000 spefosd je3ide) uonesnp3 w is|e0) puny
(86°780°LSL ET) 3duejed pund pue ‘sadInosay JO SMOUUL PALRJA] ‘SAIIlIqeTT (€0l
(££'68%°852°€) sapynby j=0a
0056257591 paubtsseur) 196png - - -DOD6E-ZLT
(69'8€6°210°T) pauBisseun - = -DOOBE-LLT
(00'118°5£8) sos0ding IO o4 popinsay = = -0BSE-LLT
(00°000°000°ST) 310 - spafoud Ede) o4 panssy = AUD -S8SYE-LLT
(61°£68'282°T) dedA 10lld - SI0URIQUINOUT B 74 ¢ 174
(sg'1p6'201) DA RN - SIOURIGLINDUT - - OTTHE-£LT
(ST'E65'86¢°07) soplilgen] =®oel
(00°668°0t) soxe) Auadold uanbuljaq puRysq - -SY662-£L1
(00'€79°955°'T) saxel Auadald WaLND paimPeQ - -Or66Z-LLT
{sz'979'L86) {loQuaD) sanusAY = - -D0S8T-LLT
{00'SbPET6'¢T) (1onuo)) suaneudosddy - = -00TgT-LL1
000 JqeAed sIUNoDY - = -00TTT-LL1
S6T80°LSLET SI0UNOSY JO SMOLAND PILIBI0A PUE KIDSSY  |2301
86'780°LSL'ET 0ISEY (301
£9°E09'S9Y'T U3 SUA Joud 104 dArasay o) pByD dx3 - - -D09bT-LLT
Ob°650'E5 {1049u03) 1834 UALND - sEIMIPUA] = - -00SHT-£L1
S8 Iv6°L0T (1oRU0D) SsouriqIOUT pIIepInbijun - - -00ZPT-2L1
00'059°Z8€°T SINUAADY pewns3 - - -0OTHI-LLT
[(¥ripds] xe). Apadasd 3/qe1pa||oduf Jod IUBMONY = - -OTSTI-LLT
00'¥86'0€9°T 3|qeARIRY SIXe | Auadoly - - -00STT-LL1
000 SJUSWILLIRADD JSUI0 W4 anQ = -0EPIT-LLT
000 3|qeAR0dYy SWNoXoy = OTPIT-£L1
PO'LLEPET'ET 3)SI), LM YyseD - = OPTITLT
ueirq uoRdinsag JUnoy JIGUINN JUNCY
spafosd Ruded uopedsnpl LLT 1 puny
T jo 1 abed 0T Menuer pund gns 13 pung
Wd 6S:€ b202/9/z  owiLfa3eq pund-qns pue pund Aq 3e9ys aauejeg Aq 393YS dueeq 1Aq pajeany
projmen) epey ] uogeInp] Jo pacog A3una) 3usaln pauyag D97 :oweN Rejdusy



(35°8SZ'91C) LT TL SI’EZ0'00F {Sz'9297/86) 00'0S9°/8E'T 00°0 00°0S9°Z8E T 1=0L
IV EEL Z1) UolU BES Eo P1928) _ \eOPL0Z01) 0O 000 UL 000 00 000 02 INNIASE 1V001 BIH10 1VIOL _ O00FF
000 120png oN (S0°E61ST) (SO°E61°ST) 000 000 0070 SpUNJY 25t OLTHY
(T'EET’LT) %IT'Z9% (85 1Tv'eL) {85°TCHT6) 0000002 000 00°000'0Z pawseg 3sa.a3u] OlTHp
10T 521660 ToVE BELOL0Z8F O L0088 U0 US9 Z9E T GO0 OOUSO Z0E T SIXVL IVOO1 1V10L _ OU0UF
000 00 0 D000 & (50)] DO GO0 € 000 00000E — DX Ueg  0ZE0v
000 %I TL YTTSE (9£°£68) 0005Z°T 000 00°057'T JauQ Sexe] Jo nan L) JUSWARG £970%
(s'0LT) %86'Z1T {18'621) (18'621°1) 00°000°T 00°0 00°000°T AWEN {207 S9XB] JO NI Ul JuatlARd 970
(£2'28) %80T (Z9'sT) {z9°59¢) 00°0SE 000 00°0SE VAL $9XeL 40 N3l Ul SJuSWAR] 19104
(6T°26£°T) %5601 (81°129) (8T'1£1°8} 00°005°Z 00°0 00°005'Z AYeUSq g ISBUa] ob10%
(8€°002°T) %06°ZT1 (86°906) (86'906°¢) 00000 000 00°000°L B AN 0€TOV
09°0) %92'22 £9°'8€ {3049} 00°0S 000 00705 foydnnjueg uopsloD asIsN1L 5ZTOb
(c2°865'E) %ILELT (69°€€E"S) (69°€€8°£T) 00°005°22 00°0 00°005°2Z 1es\ Joud-Suoia|[oD 5933511 0z10%
{99°500°261} %T6T9 SS"HOE T6b (5+'569°€£8) 00°000°S2E’T 000 00°000°s2€’1 X AY00Jd JWBLIND o110V
SNUIAIY Jua.In) pazijesy paztjeasufn poxeay dLA pajewinsy jejol Sjuslupustiuy pLx | _ﬂ:_—u._._o
% spaloy |eyae) uoneonpy (T :pund
140 T abed 70T Aenuer pund gns Aq
UaU2)e]S INUBAIY
Wd ZEE $T0T/9T 2wl /a3eq PUnJ-qns Aq SINUIASY JO JUSWATEIS 291 iAq pajean)
plojmes) EIARY HE uogeonp3l Jo paeog AJUNo) UBIH pauyag Do eweN aje|dwsay,



%560 (69°€SVTVL'LT) ST THE'LOT 9" 6H0’E9 £T°20T'S (00'Sh¥’eT6°LT) 000 (00'stp'e16'sLT) LLx punyg Jod |30
%E6'0  (GO'ESPTVLLT) SBTIV6LOT 9 6¥0'E9 E1'TOT'S (00°SYY’ET6LT) o000 (00°St'€16°2T) le3oL
%56°0  (69°ESH'TvL'L1) S8'TH6'LOT oV 6¥0’E9 ET'TOT'S (00°SrP'eT6'2T) 00°0 (00°S¥'ET6°LT) =078
%56'0  (69°ESY'TYLLI) S8'TH6'L0T 9H'6+0°EY ET'T0T'S (00'spv'eT6’2T) 00°0 {00"SPY'ET6'LT) 00ET6 |=830L
%00°0 (00°000'095) 00°0 00°0 00°0 {00°000'095) 00'0 {00°000°095) juswdinb3 uoneyedsues]  62Z
Y%bb'0 (00°505'¢v2'91) S8°TY6'79 51°86601 9£°ZS0'L (00'sbb’1Z8'91) 000 {00'stt'128'91) sjusliaAosdwy buiping  £0ZL
%6285 (69'8vE'ET) 600 1£°159'91 LL6bT'Y {00°000°25) 000 (00°000°Z€) voisspo) samsnil 1S
%B89'ST  (00'009'12h) 00°000'sY 00°00b"€E 000 (00°000°00S) 00'0 {00°000'005) spayyay  H0E

spoloid [ezide) uonednpl  00E16
%00°00T 00°0 00'0 000 00'0 000 000 000 OIEZL 1BY0L
%00°00T 000 000 000 000 000 00’0 000 uoissiwwod spaysnyy - 0TS
0TETL
ax3 aouejeg sesuRiquINOUI  sasnyipuddxy  saImpusdxy 1ebpng SUBWPUSWY  Junowy Jabpng uondidsoQ JUNO3DY  JAGWNN JUNODY

386png pasequndudun Bujpuesing  3jeg-03-1ESK  33RA-03-YIUOKW papudwy 19bpng

0%
spafosd |eyjde) uoneonpy LLT :pund
T jo T abeq 20T Aenuer

Wd 85:€ 202/9/Z Bwl feyeq Pund Aq [qO Aq Atewwng saan)ipuadxyg Jo JUBWIRIS 91 :Aq pajeau)
plomels epfey JJosn uoneonp3 jo pleod AJuUno) susady pauys@g D91 eweN ajejdway



Ul pauiny Hodal Alenuer Joe palas||od syunowe =44|d NVI

0 98¢61T L9V 81'8¢ T9¢€¢ 059 S06T 9819 0c0Le 004421 0008 0L€T €029 09 9 £S°S0EE  |TV'6EST Sivi0l
SIVO Sa1 Sg1 sd1 SNOL # S1vO Sa1 Sg1 Sq1 Sl Sd1 g1 SNOL # # SNOL SNOL

9929V 0S¥C 1€'96- €5°0vC 88'TT- 3410 NVl
18'TT LT0T 079 07911 50°S LT S¢ 8TLYT 6575 6C
08ce L9V 8L'T 70T S06T 9T/ 0078 0LET ve9 8T (X4 66651 [4 %14 8¢
08¢l 00¢ 8S°L 8¢ SE ¥0°6ST 67°69 LT
0019 v6'T 69T 0s€ 0046 00¢e 89'1T [44 8S 6881 vl TET 9C
08¢€¢ €T 00¢ or8 090TT e 8T SC C1ET 68'€L €¢
90 6€ L6°L ST EC Y611 SS'TL [44
00TS 660 98 078 07901 IaT’'s T 144 5E°68 58°0¢ TC
0868 )[474 ET'S CE 43 £5°691 8865 0T
000¢ 098¢T (97TT 6T 8€ LS'T9T 9€'LET 6T
orte 00v6 £L0'61 LT ve 99'S0T 89179 9T
oviE 6v'C 61T (X4 [4%44" vL'19 ST
080T 15¢C 6T¢C 0¢10T <091 V1 £C L9'TVT LSy 1
089S 0Lt v0'v [44 LT 59°SVT 6°€9 €1
ovi8 L0°C 9.1 008VT oveT LT0T oy 1S 9'9T¢ 9L'9TT [4"
096 98t 0T 9T [4Y24" 86'69 6
0971 ov. T6'v 6T 6C veSPT 9089 8
0v81 6L'T SET 00¢L L9 ST €C LL79TT 61799 L
098¢ ovee €E'6 143 8€ vT'S8T 9¢°0S 9
00€TT 0cevt v8'el [43 Ly €8T 78891 S
0901 6€°C 80¢ 0918 (N4 9T [44 T'6TT 899 4
00rST [4{°%% 6T 8T 67811 8C'LS T

3Z33Y4INV|  JHIM 1331S 19Mm 1INNOD 10 SSvyg NOILVLS ¢, 934
aisn 3ON3d HOIT /NIL|HOLVIavy L JYIL aisn 1lva NNV ‘d'N'O 200 JILSY1d | /43dd0D | OW3Q 'Sng Savon SNVYL NOL jlva

31SVM dIT10S ALNNOJ IN3IFUD




HOSING3IdNS oLy 1'9¢ S0v8¢C G66.¢C ayod f4404 LE
"INIYW d3LN3O 0ot £y 48901 18201 adod [4AVA 9¢
440 T110d g6l 162¢ 8'98v L8Y9S 78115 MOVIN (444 13
440 7110 90°¢L 8502 A<t G799 PAYAZ) AOVIA zcoe e
HIMONW S8y €16 Z'Sy 00vScC YXA2ZA 05€4 aH0od (4404 €e
{3AVY0T LNOYH4 9y'0€ 186¢ 7°6€9 L€S6L 06692 NOVIA (44074 e
MONYL AddVyHO TVLIW /ON3A 88'S 8.6 [914% 89185 06v.S TVNOILYNYILNI Lzcoc 3%
H3AvOT1 1LNOYS 44 891 L'ce 1S.8S1 £895S1 AOVIN €102 0o
d3AavOT1 LNOY4 l 6¥¥E8E 8P E8E MOVIN 10¢ 6¢C
"INIVIN /OINVHO3IW 109 8'GS ¥2202¢ €1961€ 0GS-4 100¢ 8¢
IVL13IW/ON3A ¥L'9 9.€1 il 05192 VilvL 05¢e-4 0c0¢ Yi4
"INIVIN /OINVHO3INW 0 €1895¢ €1859S¢ 0se-d4 €00¢ 14
IvL13IW/ONEA 180 el (743 80 00et9 8.1¢€9 05¢-4 0c0c 14
(dIVd3 NI) ¥3av01 LNOYA 0 G.8vEY G.8VEY MOVIN 100¢ x4
"INIVIA /OINVHOIW 2¢.9 [4) S0.€0¢€ £20€0e 05e-4 1002 r44
d3dv0O1 LNOY4 0 000002 000002 MOV 2002 74
SILVINI NVA 2l L¥062CL 00621 NVA AASHO 1002 0¢
"INIVIN /OINVHOIW 99Y €18 6SY¥eEC £66€£€2C X v 05¢-d 200C 6l
440 71710y YXAVA 9S¢i G'9€T 712951 85¥SS1L MOV 10¢ Ll
440 710d S8TL 1291 8°9/¢ 0€6.S1L £0€9s1 MOV 710¢C 9l
440 710Y 159 9oL [4i4 200641 196421 AOVIN 14574 Sl
440 770d 00l 961 99/2 Yx AVl 282691 MOVIN ¥10¢2 vl
MONYL I1ddVeD TVLIW /ON3A cl 08¢l 89¢l TYNOILYNYSLNI 20¢ el
"INIVIN /OINVHO3IN 122 8'06 9sv.61 G89961 X ¥ 0S¢-4 800¢ cl
MONYL dOHS 28l ce0e 0S8¢ MOVIA €c0c ol
440 110y L0} 65898 26198 MOVIA 900¢ 6
F1OADIY /43AVY0OT LNOHS 96'GC £68¢ 65 6LELL 98¢0/1 MOV 810¢ 8
AHIAITEA HINIVINOD SOL S'Le Zhiv 100% TYNOILYNYILNI 600¢ pA
"INIVIA /OINVHOIW 0 [AYI N4 cLiLie 05e-4 1661 9
"INIVIN 931N3D 455} €¢L 0.¢.61 8G€961 0S4 100¢C S
{(DONIZITILN SI Ld3A S.441MTHS) YONY_ MO0 0 6'9¢ 88€0.L¢C 88€0.¢ dANa HI G861 14
HOSIAY3IdNS %% 1'8¢ 12747 ]" LYEV9L 0Sc-4 €102 €
H3IAvVO1 INOY4 0 €9818¢ €9818¢ MOVIN 00¢ Z
¥3AVOT LNOYS Gl'cc 0L6¢ €009 Leveol 1156S1 MOVIA 6102 I

¥OL103dId 09v 6’67 9evie 92602 adod (44074 ""00

s|eb 9laAel s|eb s|eb abeajt obesj
asn A“__mov P w_o__s_ - x1S0Q [ond _me__E_mwsn_ me_\_mw‘u_ m:__o"u_ m:_::__ww_m IMYIN Hv3A #MONYL

AYVNYE3d vT, YV3A TvISId
140d3Y 39VITIA /SYD JLSYM AIT10S ALNNOD INIFYD




{@3asn 41} SQ¥YD XIM Y04 NMOHS AINO LNNOINY 1503 :3L0N«

¥9°8¢€¢ £588¢C 0 L0169 L'cee STV.LOL
13Nd dOHS 6L°LL '99 445
SHONYL NOILVLS d34SNVHL 9'9vve
ATDIHIA SLUVd /XINNY 1zl 1'Sc ovyL eLel ayod [4dir4 8¢

140434 I9VITIN /SYD ILSVM AI10S ALNNOD IN3IYD

AYVNY93d v, ¥v3IA TVISId




¥T1°68 69°0S 6v'8€ 1VLOL ANVYD
0 SINId 1SIM
IS'LT TS°LT INIIYD 1SIM
T YT NMOLYINTVM
789 789 JAISANNNS
LT9 LT'9 SIINVT “1S
0 O3NOY
0 INVE3IYO
1€V TEY a1VNOQ N
v’ 'S 334D ISYOH
SY'TT 8St'TT QYVN3H TVH
0 ANOLSAIYD
€6'TT €6'TT ¥sngaa
0 YOHDONY SSOY)
0 SONIYAS VI
8T'S 8T'S NOLATIVE
68°8T 68°8T NOLdv
VL0l AVAIYd| AvaASYNHL| AVASINQIM AVasant AVANOW YILNID
veoz/e/e veoe/1/t v2/1/2 40 3Im

AVA ¥3d SNOL HO1DVdINOD

HALSVA AT'TOS ALNNOD ANTHID




€6°78¢ LEES 656V Ve 95°02 ¥0°9TT 1VLOL1 ANVYD
1T a8t 959 SANId 1SIM
S9°0b 95°8T 60°2¢ INIIYD 1SIM
9'vT 259 80°'8 NMOLYINTVM
LE'TT S9'9 s JAISANNNS
¥6'L v6°L SANVT '1S
8S'vT SL'S €8'8 O3noY
69°L 69°'L MNVEIHO
€8'T1 Sy €€°L a1vNOa N
LO'6T 9'g A% €€'6 M33YD ISHOH
LET 80°ZT ¥9° 1T QYVN3H 1VH
LS'VT LZ'9 €8 INOLSAIYD
S6'6C 9€'L 6'C 9T'9 €5°ET sngia
v9'vT 9€'9 87'8 YOHINV SSOYD
1S 1T'S SONIYdS ¥VITD
8E'ET ve's v1'8 NOlAITIvVE
E'TY 66T LL'8T NOLld4v
1v10L AVAIYd| AvASYNHL| AVASINGIM Avasint AVANOW Y3ILNID
v20z/6/ veoz/8/t veoz/L/t vzoe/9/t veoe/s/T ¥2/s/T 40 )3Im

AVAd ¥3d SNOL YO1OVdINOI

HLSVAA dI'TOS ALNNOD ANATID




AN A2/ Tards 29’1V St'0€ v0' TP LLSL 1V101 ANVYD
8'9 8'9 SANId 1SIM
STYE 2561 ELYT INIIYO 1SIM
Iv'v1 vZ'9 LT'8 NMOLYINTIVM
€8'6 vE9 6t°€ JAISANNNS
6°CT L9'S €TL SANVT °LS
€EET LL'S 95/ 030y
259 r4y:) MNVE3IHO
LS'6 ITv 9'S alvNOQ@>N
vT 8T ST'9 vTv SLL M33Y4D ISYOH
9'€T (VA4 68°0T AY¥VYN3H 1VH
L L ANOLSAIYD
25°S¢T 8€'CT PT'ET Msng3ia
1T°L 1T°L YOHINV SSOYD
€St €SV SONIYS VI
91T 82'S T€9 NOLAITIVE
15°9€ 29'1¢ 68't7T NOL4V
VY10l AVAlYd| AvASYNHL| AvASINGIM AVasini AVANOW YIINDD
v20e/9T/¢  |vToe/st/T  |veoz/vi/T |veoz/€r/T veoe/er/e v2/2T/2 40 )3IM

AVQ Y3d SNOL YO1DVdINOD

HLSVA dI'TOS ALNNOD ANAHID




9.2 L6°8S 2S°€S 61°CC 75°8€ €0T 1V101 ANVYD
8T'€T LT°9 10°L SANId 1SIM
9t°LE €61 9T'8T IN3IYO 1SIM
YTy 59°9 65°L NMOLYINTYM
87'CT 69'L 65t JAISANNNS
1€'8 1€'8 SANVT LS
8S°VT ¥S'9 ¥0'8 O3noY
S0'S S0'S MNVEIUO
v1°eT LTS L6'9 a1vNOQN
£9°0C 129 I8'€E v1°0T N3FYD ISYOH
€2°92 96'0T LTST QYVYN3H 1VH
686 €SV 9€°S ANOLSAIYD
6t7°6C 9T°€T vL'8 65°L sngia
9€'ST 6'C ST'€E 1€°6 YOHINV SSOY)
68'S 68'S SONIYJS HVYI1D
Tt Q'S 9T'9 NOLATIIVE
90°0v vETT LT NOl4VY
1viol AVAIY4| AVASYNHL| AVASINAIM Avasani AVANOW VETTYER)
veoz/€z/t  |vzoz/ee/t |veoe/iz/e |vezoe/oz/t  |veoz/61/t ¥2/6T/7 40 X3IM

Ava ¥3d SNOL ¥01OVdINOD

HLSVA dI'TOS ALNNOD ANTHAD




GL'86T 0 ¥S°8€ ZL0E €9'vp 98't8 1VLOL ANVYD
L6'9 L6'9 SANId L1SIM
LO'8€E 18°LT 97'02 INIIYD L1SIM
G°'ST ra 8€'8 NMOLYINTVM
a3 A3 JAISANNNS
959 959 SIS "1S
62°CT LL'Y ¢S O3NOoY
€69 €6'9 MNVEIHO
69°0T v st'9 a1vNoOaIN
4} 8€'€E 206 M33YD ISHOH
1444 20'TT Q1T QY¥VN3H 1VH
€0°'6 €0°6 ANOLSAIYD
6C°ST 62'ST Nsngia
6,9 6,9 YOHINVY SSOYD
L0'S L0°S SONIYS V31D
S8'1T LS 8€'9 NO.LAT1IVE
GE'ST GE'ST NOLd4V
vioL AVAIYd| AVASYNHL| AVASINGIM Avasanit AVANOW RETTNE R
veoe/ee/c |veoz/se/e  |veoz/Lt/T vzoe/9t/t v2/92/7 40 )3aM

AVQ d3d SNOL 4O1OVdWOI

HLSVAA AI'TOS ALNNOD ANTHID




91°6801 TV1OL ANVYD
9¢°'8¢€ S3INId 1SIM
S6°L91 ANIFYO LSIM
61°09 NMOLYINTVM
vivy AAISANNNS
88°'TY SINVT "LS
8L°'PS O3INOY
61°9¢ MNVEIHO
vs'8y JTvNOQ2N
8L°'SL A33¥D ISHOH
SS°L0T QYVN3H 1VH
16°01 ANOLSAIYD
8T'CTIT isngia
6'tV HJOHINYVY SSO¥H)
99°0¢ SONIYdS 4V3IT1D
r'es NOlAI1IVE
ET°est NO.ldv

¥20Z AHVYNHA3d Y04 STVLOL HOLOVdINOD

HLSVA dI'TOS ALNNOD ANTHED




Greene County Budget and Finance Committee
Meeting-Minutes February 7th, 2024
Greene County Annex Conference Greene County Annex Conference Room, Greeneville,

Tennessee
MEMBERS PRESENT:
Mayor Kevin Morrison- Budget & Finance Chairman Robin Quillen — Commissioner
Tim Smithson — Commissioner Brad Peters — Commissioner
Paul Burkey-Commissioner
ALSO:
Danny Lowery — Director of Finance Erin Eimore — HR Director
Roger Woolsey- County Attorney Gary Rector- Highway Dept.
Kevin Swatsell - Road Superintendent David Beverly — Chief Deputy
Nathan Holt- Trustee Jim Greene-Solid Waste
Matthew Elmore-Solid Waste Max Lowe-Solid Waste

P4
OTHERS:
Jennifer Castilio Gervasi- Greeneville Radio Spencer Morrel- Greeneville Sun
Jeff Taylor — Greene County Partnership Director John T. Johnsaon -CANUP, Chairman of the Board

Kayla Crawford -Greene County Schools Budget Director

CALL TO ORDER:
Mayor Kevin Morrison called the Budget and Finance committee meeting to order on Wednesday, February 7th, 2024
at 8:30 AM in the Greene County Annex Conference Room. A quorum was present.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
Motion to approve the Budget & Finance minutes for the January 3rd, 2024 meeting was made by Commissioner
Quillen and was seconded by Commissioner Burkey. Motion was approved with no opposition.

BUDGET AMENDMENTS:
For their review, the Committee received budget requests that had already been previously approved by Mayor
Morrison.

BUDGET AMENDMENTS NEEDING APPROVAL BY THE BUDGET & FINANCE COMMITTEE

Greene County Soil Conservation requested that in the Soil Conservation, the amount of $34 from
Paraprofessionals (133), be transferred into Overtime Pay (187) to cover shortages. Motion to approve
the budget request was made by Commissioner Quillen and seconded by Commissioner Burkey. All
were in favor.

Greene County Clerk Lori Byrant requested that in the County Clerk, the amount of $1500 from Part-
Time Personnel (169), be transferred into Overtime Pay (187) to cover shortages. Motion to approve the
budget request was made by Commissioner Peters and seconded by Commissioner Smithson. All were
in favor.

Greene County Highway Department Kevin Swatsell requested that in the Highway Bridge Maintenance
department that the amount of $22,479.00 from Truck Drivers (147), and $411 ,294 from Laborers, (149)
and $87,067 from Bridge Construction be transferred into Equipment Light Operators (145) to move
money for implication of salary scale. Motion to approve the budget request was made by Commissioner
Peters and seconded by Commissioner Burkey. All were in favor.

Also, Greene County Highway Department Kevin Swatsell requested that in the Operation &
Maintenance of Equipment department that the amount of $11,067.00 from Labors (149), be transferred
into Supervisor (105) to move money for implication of salary scale. Motion to approve the budget
request was made by Commissioner Peters and seconded by Commissioner Quillen. All were in favor.



Greene County Budget and Finance Committee
Meeting-Minutes February 7th, 2024

Greene County Annex Conference Greene County Annex Conference Room, Greeneville,

Tennessee

RESOLUTIONS:

A.

A Resolution to amend the Greene County Schools General Purpose Fund budget for changes in revenues
& expenditures for the fiscal year 2023-2024. Motion was made to approve by Commissioner Quillen and
was seconded by Commissioner Smithson. Motian carried.

A Resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body authorizing submission of an application for a Litter
and Trash Collection Grant FYE 2024-2025 from the Tennessee Department of Transportation and
authorizing the acceptance of said grant.

Motion was made to approve by Commissioner Peters and was seconded by Commissioner Quillen. Motion
carried.

A Resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body to appropriate $61,000 in collections from the title and
registration fee set by § T.C.A. 55-6-104 for the addition of one full-time Clerical position for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2024. Motion was made to approve by Commissioner Peters and was seconded by
Commissioner Burkey. Motion carried.

A Resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body appropriating $1 170 to the Drug Recovery Court for
funds received as contributions for Recovery Court graduates for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024.
Motion was made to approve by Commissioner Quillen and was seconded by Commissioner Smithson.
Motion carried.

A Resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body appropriating $1,170 to the Drug Recovery Court for
funds received as contributions for Recovery Court graduates for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024.
Motion was made to approve by Commissioner Quillen and was seconded by Commissioner Burkey. Motion
carried.

A resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body to appropriate$386,450 from the Solid Waste Fund #116
unassigned Fund Balance for the purchase of equipment and increased labor costs for the FYE June 30,
2024. Motion was made to approve by Commissioner Peters and was seconded by Commissioner Quillen.
Motion carried.

A Resolution authorizing the Greene County Legislative Body to re-appropriate $259,000 from the Highway
Fund-#131 Asphalt Plant Operations to Capital Outlay for the purchase of an Asphalt Paver for the FYE
June 30, 2024. Motion was made to approve by Commissioner Quillen and was seconded by Commissioner
Smithson. Motion carried.

Mr. John Johnson, Ph.D. Chairman of the Board with the CANUP (Coalition addressing the needs of unhoused
people of Greene County) ask the Budget Committee for a recurring expense of $150,000 to contribute to his
organization establishing a community village for the homeless. A 2024-2025 non-profit contribution request had
already been sent to his organization.

NEXT MEETING:
The next regular scheduled Budget & Finance Committee meeting will be on Wednesday, March 6th, 8:30 AM

Held in the Greene County Annex Conference Room, Greeneville, Tennessee.

AJOURNMENT:

Motion to adjourn was made by Commissioner Burkey at 10:20 A.M. seconded by Commissioner Peters.

Respectfully submitted,
Regina Nuckols
Budget & Finance Secretary



Greene County Insurance Committee
Regular Meeting-Minutes Open Session
January 24, 2024
Greene County Annex Greeneville, Tennessee

Members Present:

Kevin Morrison-Mayor Danny Lowery-Budget Director William Dabbs-Comm.
Brad Peters-Comm. Kathy Crawford-Comm. Roger Woolsey- County Atty.
Wesley Holt-Sheriff David McLain-School Director Kevin Swatsell-Road Sup.

Also, Present:

Kim Peterson-TSC Leslie Jones- Clinic Tammy Cutshall- Atty Assist.
Chris Poynter -Trinity Gary Rector John Mcinturff — MM&B
Call to Order:

Mayor Morrison called meeting to order in the conference room at the Greene County Annex.
Quorum was present.

Minutes:
Motion was made by Commissioner Dabbs and was seconded by Commissioner Crawford to
approve the minutes from December 27, 2023. Motion was approved with no opposition.

Reports:

Leslie Jones gave the clinic reports for December 2023. There was a total of 199 patients seen,
of those patients, 137 were provider visits and 62 were nurse visits. There were 22 biometric
physicals. There were 4 no show provider visits. There were 858 prescriptions given out. The
Mayor commended Leslie on what an excellent job the clinic is doing. Roger inquired as to how
many biometric physicals have been completed. Leslie and | were unsure but | was asked by
Sheriff Holt to email each Department Head with alist of employees that have not completed their
biometrics to date. Kevin Swatsell wanted to confirm that all biometric physicals for the purpose
of our health insurance must be done at the clinic and Leslie did confirm that. Kevin Swatsell also
asked what if the clinic disagrees with the care the employee is getting at their regular doctor.
Attorney Woolsey stated the employee can determine their own medical care. The DOT training
for Leslie, Kelly and Allison is scheduled for the end of February.

The March Insurance Meeting was changed to March 20t @ 8:30 a.m.

Danny Lowery gave the financial reports for December 2023. Liability and Workers Comp
continues to improve. There was a slight delay in premium deposits for the health insurance due
to the holidays. Danny asked if there were any questions. Mayor stated overall things looked
pretty good. Danny stated he feels we are back on track after having a rough year. Attorney Roger
Woolsey stated the committee should think about investing the excess. He suggested keeping
one million in the account and investing the excess. It was discussed for Roger to check with
Nathan about investing the excess (4 million). A motion to approve Attorney Roger Woolsey to
talk with Trustee Nathan Holt about investing the Liability and Workers Comp excess was made
by Danny Lowery. Motion was seconded by Commissioner Crawford. Motion was approved with
no opposition.



Greene County Insurance Committee
Regular Meeting-Minutes Open Session
January 24, 2024
Greene County Annex Greeneville, Tennessee

A motion to approve the financial reports was made by Attorney Roger Woolsey. Motion was
seconded by Commissioner Dabbs. Reports were approved with no opposition.

Discussion:
Other Business.

Wind Damage at Kinser Park.

There was wind damage at Kinser Park on January 12, 2024. Kim Peterson went to Kinser Park
to assess the damage. Pavilion 1 (30 X 40) collapsed completely. There are no estimates yet
The tennis and basketball courts have approximately 12-20 feet of fencing blown toward the road.
Seven poles and the fencing will have to be fixed. Pavilions 6 and 7 have tin torn off that will have
to be replaced. The clubhouse and the maintenance shop had tin torn off. The main bath house
had shingles blown off. Kim has pictures of all the damage. There were 30+ trees that were blown
down. One blew over on an electrical panel that provides power for 12 different camping spaces
and the tree totally crushed the panel. The park was extremely blessed that the damage wasn’t
worse than it was. John Mcinturff doesn't think there is coverage for the trees. Attorney Roger
Woolsey asked the committee to help him remember if Anthony Carter (Park Manager) was
suppose to put insurance back on the buildings after he couldn’t get insurance previously because
of 2 old cabins (of which the county has since torn down). Roger stated he called Anthony and
Anthony stated he didn't remember it that way. Roger states that as per the Lease Agreement,
Anthony is suppose to carry insurance on the buildings. Roger then asks the committee.....is he
suppose to be carrying insurance on the buildings? Tammy pulled up the files and Roger has
copies of the certified letters sent to Mr. Carter concerning being in breech of contract because of
not carrying insurance on the buildings. Anthony Carter has said he could not get insurance
because of the 2 cabins (county then added insurance on buildings to their policy and tore down
2 old cabins) and then Anthony stated he couldn’t afford to get insurance because the premiums
were too high. Attorney Woolsey assumed that once the cabins were town down that Anthony
would resume carrying the insurance on the buildings. However, John continued the insurance
for the county because he was never advised anything different. Mayor Morrison and John
remembered that it was decided that the county would put the buildings on the county policy and
Anthony would be responsible for any other insurance, but not sure of the exact date of that
decision. Woolsey did not remember that decision. Possibly 2021. The general consensus with
the committee was to cover the buildings on the county policy in case of a catastrophic event at
the park. Now that something catastrophic has happened, Attorney Woolsey believes Anthony
should be paying a higher percentage to the county. Attorney Woolsey restates that the Lease
Agreement says Anthony is to provide insurance on the buildings and pay 10% of gross revenue
to the county. John stated that Anthony had insurance with MM&B but didn’t want to pay the
premiums (due to the high cost) and tried to get insurance somewhere else but the other company
would not insure because of the cabins. Woolsey says the committee needs to discuss how to
proceed. Sheriff Holt inquired if Anthony Carter was in fact paying his 10% of gross receipts to



Greene County Insurance Committee
Regular Meeting-Minutes Open Session
January 24, 2024
Greene County Annex Greeneville, Tennessee

the county. Danny would have to go back and check to confirm. Attorney Woolsey inquired how
many more years to pay on the sewer system at the park. Attorney Woolsey said to the Mayor
that we need to decide if the committee will require Anthony Carter to cover the insurance on the
buildings going forward. Attorney Woolsey stated the committee has three choices: 1. Require
Anthony to provide insurance on the buildings; 2. The county carry the insurance and then
Anthony reimburse the county; and 3. The county carry the insurance at no cost to Anthony Carter
and then increase the percentage that he would pay to the county of his gross revenue. John will
get quotes to cover the building. If any changes are made then a new contract will have to be
drawn up. John thinks if the county decides to pay and then increase the percentage would be
the easiest but with that decision, the actual contract (Lease Agreement) would have to be
changed. Danny Lowery stated it would definitely be cheaper for the county to carry the insurance
and then go to 12.5% to make up the difference. Attorney Woolsey stated again that Anthony
Carter said the county agreed to pay the insurance on the buildings and he would carry liability
insurance, however, that is not what Attorney Woolsey remembered. John Mclnturff stated he
was not getting any verification from Anthony Carter that he was carrying liability insurance on
the park. He should at least be providing verification to the county that he carries liability insurance
on the park. The Lease Agreement is in the name of Anthony Carter, individually. The committee
continued discussing the pros and cons of the three different options proposed by Attorney
Woolsey. David McLain inquired if this is a revenue source for Anthony Carter and Woolsey
confirmed, yes it is. McLain then stated we should stick it to him if he is not carrying the right
insurance. Sheriff Holt asked Danny Lowery if he could look to see how much Carter was turning
in @ month to the county. Danny stated it varied but for example in August of 2022, he turned in
$6,000.00 and then other months could range from $2,500 — $3,500, which means if he turns in
$3,500.00 then he has made $35,000.00. The advantage for Anthony is he doesn’t have to pay
any interest on improvements or pay any land taxes or hotel/motel tax. Continued discussion
within committee members how to proceed and options. The committee stated they need to
confirm and verify with Anthony Carter that he does, in fact, have liability insurance on the park.
Anthony Carter is to provide 1 million dollar liability policy on the park, as per the contract. Attorney
Woolsey reviewed the contents of the contract with Anthony Carter the day before this meeting.
It was also discussed due to Anthony’s breech of contract to replace him with someone else.
Sheriff Holt requested Attorney Woolsey to bring in copies of the prior minutes and certified letter
where these particular Kinser Park issues were discussed to the next meeting. A motion to table
any decision concerning Kinser Park issues until next month was made by Sheriff Holt. Motion
was seconded by Commissioner Peters. Motion was approved with no opposition.

Health Insurance.

Chris Poynter with Trinity presented the Committee with a Plan Performance Summary. The
Greene County plan has outperformed both National and Blue Cross trends over the last several
years. The culture around wellness with the clinic continues to drive results with trend well below
the norm. Pharmacy is driving the increase in costs. Humira is the largest increase. GLP1
(Ozempic, Mounjaro, Wegovy, etc.) drugs are the next increase. Pharmacy was around 45% of
costs in 2022-23 plan year, where we have traditionally been around 30%. Year to date shows



Greene County Insurance Committee
Regular Meeting-Minutes Open Session
January 24, 2024
Greene County Annex Greeneville, Tennessee

35% but that is because of a large pharmacy rebate that hit in October. The good news is that we
have been relatively flat over the last 4 years on medical which somewhat affects the ratio. Month
over Month is very predictable because of the monthly prescriptions with GLP1 drugs and also
Humira. These two drug classes have been the main reason we have seen a shift in the last two
to three years. For the moment pharmacy trend has leveled off but we need to continue to focus
on this as the monthly PEPM cost is well above where we would like it to be. Also, don’t forget on
July 1%t BCBS put a hard stop on getting the GLP1 drugs unless you were a Type-2 Diabetic.
Pharmacy claims are slowly climbing. Chris says we have a great plan and it's ran well. Leslie
informed Chris of how Mounjaro works at the clinic (outside of insurance) and Chris stated that
none of his other clients are doing what the clinic does with Mounjaro. He has 700 corporate
clients. He also stated it's the county’s call as how to proceed since it's not filed with insurance.
Chris thinks Mounjaro is a great drug but it's too expensive. He believes that there’s a lot of people
who aren't diabetic that it will do a lot of good for. It's a financial decision since it's not covered
with insurance and how people do that is up to them. It can be paid for with manufacturer’s
assistance (coupon) or get a compound. Either way it will cost the individual around 200 dollars
a month. Chris says that the GLP1 drugs will be the most profitable drug class that has ever come
out. Commissioner Peters’ concern is that Sherry Cobble, the employee that was at last month’s
meeting, stated her doctor advised that she would need to be on this drug the rest of her life.
However, Leslie said at the clinic the patient only stays on the drug for 6 months. Chris stated the
drug really works but the financial decision would be up to the county. Chris stated it's a super
drug for weight loss but not preventative. Kevin Swatsell stated he knows someone that the drug
has changed his life. Chris also stated that it takes a lifestyle change along with taking the drug
to get the full benefit. Because once you're off the drug you have to make changes with diet and
exercise to be able to keep that weight off. Chris inquired as to where the BMI protocol came in.
Leslie stated that Kara Lankford made those protocols. Leslie said the patients at the clinic have
to come weigh in every month and learn about lifestyle changes and diet and exercise. They can
only do it for 6 months and they have to loose so much in the first 2 months or they can’t continue.
Chris suggested that after the 6 month period the clinic could then help the patient find an
alternative, such as find a pharmacy that would compound for the patient. Leslie checked with Mr.
Corley and they do not compound, but Chris stated that there are many other pharmacies that do
compound. Chris also stated the county has the ability to do what it wants at the clinic but not
everybody has that ability. Leslie stated that Sherry has tried everything else and the fact that the
drug helps with cravings and feeling full is why her doctor is treating it as a maintenance drug
because nothing else has worked for her. The bottom line is that the county has to decide how to
proceed. Chris knows of some pharmacies that do compound and he will figure out the logistics
about it and get back with information on that. Chris stated that the way the clinic is monitoring
and administering the Mounjaro is going to keep it from being a waterfall of expense. Chris
inquired if there may be a way to get manufacturer’s assistance (coupon) with the way the clinic
is administering Mounjaro. He said he would have to check into that. The committee members
continued to discuss the possibilites and options with potentially getting manufacturer’s
assistance through Corley’s. Leslie tried getting Mounjaro directly through Lilly but they would



Greene County Insurance Committee
Regular Meeting-Minutes Open Session
January 24, 2024
Greene County Annex Greeneville, Tennessee

not sell directly to the clinic. Chris will work on getting some information about the compounding
pharmacies and also possibly working with Corley’s to get manufacturer’s assistance.

Renovation at Takoma — Electric Panels.

John Mclnturff of MM&B stated that some of the electrical panels (Federal Pacific) were over 40
years old and some of those were found to be defective and unsafe. John said Cincinnati
recommended to remove and replace all Federal Pacific electrical equipment that was over 40
years old (prior to 1980). This could cost as much as $150,000.00 for new equipment. However,
Brad Peters said those panels can be rebuilt. The concern is for the electrical equipment that is
over 40 years old not the new equipment being installed. The county electrician, who has
extensive commercial experience, says the Federal Pacific switch gear problems are more in the
residential products not the commercial products. John stated if the county electrician could give
him a letter stating the panels have been inspected and are not a problem then that could satisfy
the issue. John said again that it is recommended and not required and if they get inspected and
one is not safe then that panel be replaced. Mayor Morrison’s main concern s that at some point
if the panels aren't replaced and are just rebuilt or inspected (and approved) and then we come
to the end of the project and Cincinnati says we won't insure because they were not replaced.
John will get an answer on that. Mayor says our commercial electrician questions why are we
even thinking about replacing these? He has extensive commercial experience with these panels
and has checked them out and he would be happy to have a conversation with anyone about it.
He said it would take a lot of time and money to replace the switch gears and the county wouldn't
be any safer forreplacing them with new equipment than they would be with the current equipment
because they didn’t have any problems with this equipment. Again, John said if he could get a
letter from the commercial electrician stating that all the Federal Pacific equipment and switch
gears in the building have been inspected and are commercial grade and will continue to be
monitored and if one needs to be replaced it will be. The hospital load was a lot more of a load
than the county will use. Mayor states this is a very big decision for the county. John said if he
could get that letter then he could present it to Cincinnati. John will email report from Cincinnati
to Attorney Roger Woolsey along with Jacob’s response to that report.

Motion to adjourn and go into closed session was made by David McLain. Motion was seconded
by Commissioner Peters.

Claims:
Motion was made by Commissioner Dabbs and was seconded by Sheriff Holt to approve TSC-
0001970. There was no opposition.

Motion was made by Commissioner Dabbs and was seconded by Kevin Swatsell to approve TSC-
0002022. There was no opposition.

Motion was made by Commissioner Dabbs and was seconded by Commissioner Peters to
approve TSC-0002026. There was no opposition.



Greene County Insurance Committee
Regular Meeting-Minutes Open Session
January 24, 2024
Greene County Annex Greeneville, Tennessee

Motion was made by Commissioner Dabbs and was seconded by David McLain to approve TSC-
0002023. There was no opposition.

Motion was made by Commissioner Dabbs and was seconded by Sheriff Holt to approve TSC-
0002031. There was no opposition.

Motion to adjourn was made by Attorney Roger Woolsey and seconded by Commissioner Peters.
There was no opposition.

Respectfully Submitted,
Beth McNeese



Greene County Commission Education Committee
5 February 2024
Regular Meeting

The Greene County Commission Education Committee met at 3:30 PM at the Greene County Schools Central Office
for its regular December meeting.

Committee Members in Attendance: Chairman Bill Dabbs, Lloyd Bowers, Kathy Crawford, Larkin Clemmer, Jan
Kiker, and Paul Burkey. Director David McLain was present as well.

Others in Attendance: Kayla Crawford, Chris Malone

The Committee reviewed the minutes from 11 December meeting. Mr. Bowers made the motion to accept the
minutes. Ms. Kiker seconded. The motion to approve the minttes passed unanimously.

Mr. McLain presented a draft resolution to amend the 2023-2024 School budget to reflect an increase in revenue
from a Tennessee Investment in Student Achievement (TISA) incentive-based increment known as TISA Fast
Growth, which will be used to plus up the number of K-5 teachers. Mr. Bowers moved to recommend that the
County Comimission approve this resolution. Mr. Clemmer seconded. The motion passed unanimously.

Mr. McLain also provided a summary listing of all the HVAC upgrades and replacements the County Schools were
able to accomplish with Federal ESSER funding of the last few years. The oldest HVAC units in the system were
installed in 2005 and are at Chuckey, Nolachuckey, Mosheim, and Chuckey-Doak High School.

Mr. McLain also provided a brief update on the néw CDMS wirig construction as well as the bid winner for the CTE
wings at WGHS and CDHS. The winning bid was from Path Construction Northeast, Inc out of Arlington Heights,
Illinois

Meeting adjourned.

The next Education Committee meeting will be at 3:30 PM on Monday, March 4, 2024.

fout

‘Respectfully submitted,
Paul Burkey
Secretary




911

1/912024
Tuesday 3:30 PM

Kevin Morrison
Jerry Bird

Pamela Carpenter
John Waddle
Hoot Bowers

Tim Ward

Dustin Jeffers
Danny Green
Teddy Lawing
Roger Woolsey
Calvin Hawkins
Heather Sipe
Kelly Dabbs

TJ Manis

David Beverly
Nelson Morales (Grvn Sun)

Absent: Josh Ferguson
Balance in bank at the end of Dec. 2023 is $1,740,362.25
Motion: Approve Minutes Hoot 1st Dustin 2nd

Treasure Report: Up $300,000.00 since June 2023

John gave run down on 911 over past ears growth

He is giving the reason to hire 4 new dispatchers in place

Motion: for 4 new dispatchers at the cost of $260,000.00 per year
Treasure Report Passes Hoot 1st Teddy 2nd

Jerry explained Rave has all county schools have been accepted

Roger discussed that the schools are moving along with Rave

Tuesday Next meeting 2/13/2024

Roger has contacted Hyper Reach about giving our information back to us
Heather is working on more people signing up to Rave

Tim suggested contact Roby center smart911.com

Only warnings can be sent out through Rave

Moving money from General fund $5,000 to Advertising Acct# 14232 to get out Smart911
Jerry called GEA about the internet

Quotes on steel doors at 911 building from Jerry

Buford Davis is giving a new quote of $15,000 (estimate) so far on the gate
Advisory building update by David Beverly

Most were really pleased with the outcome of this meeting

Kevin attended the Advisory meeting

solutions were worked out at the meeting

17 people attended

John makes motion to add 4 dispatchers John 1st Hoot 2nd

Hoot makes motion to adjourn Hoot 1st John 2nd



Minutes of the Greene County Regional Planning Commission

A meeting of the Greene County, TN Regional Planning Commission was held on Tuesday,
December 12, 2023, at 1:00 p.m.

Members Present/Absent Staff Representatives Present/Absent
Sam Riley, Chairman Kevin-Merrison—County- Mayor

Gwen Lilley, Vice-Chairman Roger-Woolsey, County-Atterney

Gary Rector, Secretary Amy Tweed, Planning Coordinator
Lyle Parton, Alternate Secretary Tim Tweed, Building Official

Edwin Remine Kevin Swatsell, Road Superintendent
Stevi Misener Debbie-Collins-Building Department
Phillip Ottinger John Stills, Building Department
TesenTeskble

Becky Rideout

Also participating: Interested citizens

The Chairman called the meeting to order and welcomed attendees. The Chairman asked if members
had received the draft minutes of the November 14, 2023 meeting. A motion was made by Edwin
Remine, seconded by Lyle Parton, to approve the minutes. The motion carried unanimously.

Rezoning request for 29 Cherokee Street and 175 Cherokee Street. The Planning Commission
reviewed and considered recommending a rezoning request for 29 Cherokee Street and 175 Cherokee
Street (tax parcel 084-036.01), from A-1, General Agriculture District, to B-3, Arterial Business
District. = The proposed use of the 8.2 acre property, which contained two vacant
commercial/manufacturing structures, was as a storage yard.

The Planning Commission was informed the property was long and relatively narrow, measuring
approximately 255 feet at its widest point, tapering down to less than 50 feet wide at the north end of
the tract. The areas containing the two buildings had been relatively leveled out, but much of the
property had a slope in excess of 30%, which greatly limited its use. Information was provided from
The Greene County Land Use and Transportation Policy Plan (LUTP) concerning use of properties
with steeper grades.

The Greene County zoning map, as well as the official GIS base map provided by the State, showed
that the rear 410 feet of the property had been annexed by Mosheim. This was not reflected on the
Mosheim GIS maps, which showed the entirety of the propetty to be outside the city limits.

After discussion, a motion was made by Gary Rector, seconded by Lyle Parton, to recommend
rezoning the property to B-3, Arterial Business District, as it:

1



1, Would permit legal commercial uses in the existing structures on the property, though a
front yard setback variance would be needed for Building 2.

2. Would increase the potential for the buildings, which were in poor condition, to be
rehabilitated or replaced.

3. Would meet a policy of the Greene County Land Use and Transportation Policy Plan
(LUTP), specifically: there was adequate infrastructure to support potential development

The motion carried unanimously.

RV parks and campgrounds discussion. Aimee Eucce of 110 Woolsey College Road presented the
Planning Commission with research she had conducted on campground/RV regulations in other areas
in Tennessee. Ms. Eucce stated she selected Sullivan and Washington County’s because they were
Jocal, and chose six other communities based on land area; population, and unemployment rate. She
compared and contrasted campground/RV regulations for the eight communities, and stated that, of |
the communities selected, none permitted campground or campground resorts in the A-1, agriculture
zoning designation. Ms. Eucce was thanked for her work and provided physical copies of regulations
from the eight communities.

Lauren Gruber spoke about existing requirements in the Zoning Resolution and the Greene County
Land Use and Transportation Policy Plan, and questioned how Greene County was complying with
the documents. Dwayne Gibson stated that businesses, such as the proposed RV resort, shouldn’t
locate so far from the cities, and that agricultural land needed to be preserved. Kathy Fairchild spoke
about potential problems created by the size and number of RV’s and campers that would be using
Woolsey College Road, which was too narrow for regular vehicles.

After conclusion of public speaking on the topic, staff stated they were beginning work on a proposal
to revise the campground/RV regulations, which would be presented to the Planning Commission at
a later date.

Concept plan for addition to White Sands RV Resort, LLC. The Planning Commission reviewed
and considered approving the concept plan for an addition to White Sands RV Resort, LLC, located
adjacent to White Sands Road. The addition, as tentatively approved at the November 14, 2023
meeting, was for 12 campsites, 6 proposed cabins and a new proposed interior road. A motion was
made by Gwen Lilley, seconded by Phillip Ottinger, to approve the concept plan for the development,
with the understanding that a complete plan would have to be submitted and approved before
construction could take place. The motion carried unanimously.

Carol Loesche subdivision. The Planning Commission reviewed and considered approving the
Carol Loesche subdivision for two lots totaling 9.30 acres, located adjacent to Redgate Road in the
23" civil district. Staff recommended approval subject to the addition of signatures, as the plat met
all other applicable regulations. A motion was made by Lyle Parton, seconded by Stevi Misener, to

2



approve the plat subject to the addition of signatures, as it met all other applicable regulations. The
motion carried unanimously.

Combination Plat of Lots 3 and 4 of the Tweed Property (aka Kenneth & Elizabeth Ray). The
Planning Commission reviewed and considered approving the combination plat of lots 3 and 4 of the
Tweed property subdivision (aka Kenneth & Elizabeth Ray), for one lot totaling 2.73 acres, located
adjacent to Silver Leaf Lane in the 1% civil district. Staff recommended approval subject to the
addition of a signature by the Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation (TDEC), as
the plat met all other applicable regulations. A motion was made by Gwen Lilley, seconded by Edwin
Remine, to approve the plat subject to the addition of a signature by TDEC, as it met all other
applicable regulations. The motion carried unanimously.

Georgia West property plat. The Planning Commission reviewed and considered approving the
Georgia West subdivision, for seven lots totaling 20.15 acres, located adjacent to Iron Bridge Road
in the 23" civil district. Staff recommended approval as the plat met all applicable requirements. A
motion was made by Phillip Ottinger, seconded by Gwen Lilley, to approve the plat as it met all
applicable regulations. The motion carried unanimously.

Replat of Lot 6, David C. Hampton plat. The Planning Commission reviewed and considered
approving the Replat of Lot 6, David C. Hampton plat, for two lots totaling 2.11 acres, located
adjacent to Greystone Road. Staff recommended approval subject to the addition of a signature by
TDEC, as the plat met all other applicable regulations. A motion was made by Lyle Parton, seconded
by Gary Rector, to approve the plat subject to the addition of a signature by the TDEC, as it met all
other applicable regulations. The motion carried unanimously.

John R. Carter, Sr. Property plat. The Planning Commission reviewed and considered approving
the John R. Carter, Sr. property subdivision, for three lots totaling 2.99 acres, located adjacent to
Holly Creek Road. Staff recommended approval subject to the addition of signatures by TDEC and
the Greene County Highway Department, as the plat met all other applicable regulations. A motion
was made by Gary Rector, seconded by Edwin Remine, to approve the plat subject to the addition of
signatures by TDEC and the Highway Department, as it met all other applicable regulations. The
motion carried unanimously.

Administrative minor subdivisions. The Planning Commission was informed the following
subdivisions had been approved since the last meeting.

e Survey of a portion of tract 3R of the Doyle Shepherd subdivision, for one lot totaling 0.69
acre, located adjacent to East Fork Road in the 24" civil district.

e Dart of the Teresa Davenport property subdivision, for one lot totaling 2.59 acres, located
adjacent to Martin Road in the 15" civil district.



e Division of a portion of the C&C Millwright Maintenance Company Inc. Property
subdivision, for one lot totaling 0.09 acre, located adjacent to Gravel Woods Road in the 19t
civil district.

* Survey of a portion of the Christine and Tommy Barker property subdivision, for one lot
totaling 0.806 acres, located adjacent to Old Midway Road in the 5 civil district.

» Division of the Billye Nelson Property subdivision, for two lots totaling 2.57 acres, located
adjacent to Elmwood Road and Sinking Springs Road in the 19" civil district.

e Replat of Lot 1 of the Jay Dee Frye property subdivision, for two lots totaling 3.39 acres,
located adjacent to Goodman Loop in the 11 civil district.

¢ Combination plat of Lots 21 and 22 of Links Meadow, Phase 3 subdivision, for one lot
totaling 1.03 acres, located adjacent to Emperor Lane in the 9" civil district.

¢ James and Deen Bowers subdivision, for one lot totaling 1.039 acres, located adjacent to
Browns Circle in the 3" civil district.

A motion was made by Lyle Parton, seconded by Gwen Lilley, to accept the list. The motion carried
unanimously.

Monthly activity report for Building/Zoning/Planning Office. Tim Tweed discussed the monthly
department activity report. A motion was made by Edwin Remine, seconded by Gary Rector, to
accept the report. The motion carried unanimously.

Other Business. The Planning Commission set a work session for 1:00 p.m. on January 4, 2024, in
the Conference Room at the Courthouse Annex, to discuss proposed solar regulations.

There being no further business, a motion was made by Edwin Remine, seconded by Lyle Parton, to
adjourn. The motion carried unanimously. The meeting adjourned at 2:05 pm.

Approved as written: W i - Q

Secretary: q%‘-/ J y / Zg

Chairman/Vice Chairman:




Minutes of the Greene County Board of Zoning Appeals

A meeting of the Greene County Board of Zoning Appeals was held on Tuesday, January 30,
2024.

Members Present/Members Absent Staff Representatives Present/Absent
Kathy Crawford, Chairman Tim Tweed, Building Commissioner
Beth Douthat, Vice-Chairman Amy Tweed, Planning Coordinator
Heby-Brooks—Neeretary Deberah-Collins; Building Dept:
Jason A. Smith, Member Kevir-Merrson-County Mayor
Robert Wilhoit, Member Roger Woolsey, County Attorney

Bill Dabbs, Associate Member
David Crum, Associate Member

Also Present: Interested citizens
The Chairman called the meeting to order and welcomed attendees.
Approval of Minutes. The Chairman asked if members had received the draft minutes of the

November 28, 2023 meeting. A motion was made by Beth Douthat, seconded by Bill Dabbs, to
approve the minutes as written. The motion carried unanimously.

Swearing in of witnesses. Chairman Crawford swore in Chris Gonzalez, Terry Dawson, Lowanda
Dawson, Craig Emenaker, Susan Miller, and Building Commissioner Tim Tweed.

Domique Lane. The Board considered a request to grant a front yard setback variance for Lot
15 of the River Shoals Subdivision (tax parcel 135-1-A-015.00), to decrease the front yard
setback requirement from 30’ to 15’, and to grant a side yard setback variance decreasing
the requirement from 12’ to 6’. Tim Tweed stated that approving the variances would permit
the home to be constructed on a more level portion of the property and further from the
flood zone located along the rear property line. Staff reported that the Tennessee Department of
Environment and Conservation (TDEC) had designated the front and left side yards for the septic
system, which provided a justification for the side yard setback. Mr. Tweed stated that variances
have previously been granted in this subdivision. David Crum asked if notifications and public
hearing had been sent out, and staff verified they had. Mr. Crum asked if staff agreed that there
were three reasons for granting the variance (topography, location for the septic system, and the
presence of a flood zone to the rear of the property), and asked if there were any reasons to deny
the requests. Staff stated the justifications met the requirements of both Greene County and state
law, and did not believe there were reasons to deny approval. Beth Douthat asked when the
subdivision was approved, and was informed it was 1998. The contractor stated that the owners
bought the property in 2004, but, as it was fully covered with trees, they didn’t realize how steep
the property really was until it was cleared. A motion was made by Beth Douthat, seconded by




Bill Dabbs, to grant the variances as the requests met all three requirements for approving a
variance as listed in Section 1004.

1. The lot had exceptional topographical conditions or other extraordinary or exceptional
situations or conditions that would result in exceptional practical difficulties to or
exceptional and undue hardship upon the owner of such property; and

2. Relief could be granted without substantial detriment to the public good and without
substantially impairing the intent and purpose of the zoning resolution; and

3. Special circumstances were attached to the property which did not generally apply to other
property in the neighborhood (topography of the property, presence of a flood zone which
limited use of the lot, and location of the approved septic system area)

16375 Horton Highway. The Board considered a request to grant a variance decreasing the front
yard setback for a closed/former gas station located at 16375 Horton Highway (tax parcel 008-
012.00), from 55 feet from the road centerline to 13 feet from centerline. The Board was informed
that the structure, if used, would be in violation of 501.3, which stated: “When a nonconforming
use of any building or land has ceased for a period of two years, it shall not be reestablished or
changed to any use not in conformity with the provisions of this ordinance”. The desire to keep a
canopy on the front of the structure, which violated the front yard setback requirement, is what
kept the building from being in conformity with the regulations.

Mr. Tweed stated the property owner wanted to change the use of the property from commercial
to residential, to leave the canopy and structure as it stood, and to not make any additions to the
building. Staff stated they had contacted the Greene County Highway Department, whose
information showed the canopy to be on the right-of-way. An unrecorded survey of the property
showed the canopy to be located three feet from the front lot line, which took precedence over
Highway Department information. The narrowness of Horton Highway, the likely widening or
possible moving of the road closer to the building after it was built (circa 1940’s), and the general
lack of adequate right-of-way on the road was discussed.

Mr. Tweed asked Roger Woolsey if a stipulation could be added to wording for the variance that
the canopy could not be lowered or enclosed, as those actions would create an obstruction within
three feet of the roadway/yellow line. Mr. Woolsey stated attaching conditions, which must be
met by both existing and any future property owners, was permitted, and asked Mr. Lawson if he
understood the canopy could not be changed in any way. Mr. Lawson also stated he understood
that the no more than 25% of the building could be used for a home occupation, if he decided to
operate one on the property, and he would be limited as to number of employees.

Staff stated both the building and the canopy had been there for many years, and granting the
variance would not change the existing situation, other than to permit use of a vacant structure.



David Crum asked Mr. Woolsey for guidance as to reasons for approval, who stated:
1. The existing structure, which had been in the community more than 80 years, would not be
modified.
2. There would be no change in the structure, even going from a business to a residential use,
which was permitted in the A-1, General Agriculture District.
3. Even if a home occupation was established in the structure, it would generate less traffic
and congestion than a straightforward commercial use.

Reasons to deny the request would have to be based on the canopy location and the non-recorded
survey of the property, although that could be tricky since there was no dedication of right of way.

Beth Douthat asked if the canopy support structures were located within the right of way, and was
told that the survey showed the posts twelve feet outside of the right of way.

Mr. Emenaker (buyer) asked if he could replace the existing wire mesh that’s on the underside of
the canopy with soffit, and Mr. Tweed stated that was allowed as long as the height of the canopy
did not change and it wasn’t enclosed. A motion was made by Beth Douthat, seconded by Jason

Smith, to approve the variance as it met all three requirements for approving a variance as listed
in Section 1004.

Construction of the structure in the 1940°s, which predated setback requirements and minimum
right-of-way standards, created an extraordinary or exceptional situation or condition that resulted
in exceptional practical difficulties to or exceptional and undue hardship upon the owner of such
property; and

Relief could be granted without substantial detriment to the public good and without substantially
impairing the intent and purpose of the zoning resolution; and

The existing situation involving an 80 year-old building and a historical lack of adequate right-of-
way in the area constituted a special circumstance that was attached to the property but did not
generally apply to other property in the neighborhood.

Additionally, state law and local regulations permitted the Board to attach conditions regarding
the location, character and other features of the building, structure, or use, as it may deem advisable
in furtherance of the purpose of this resolution. To this end, the canopy would be permitted to be
updated, but it would not be enclosed, raised, or otherwise changed so as to increase infringement
upon the right-of-way of Horton Highway or otherwise interfere with sight distance.

The motion carried unanimously. Mr. Woolsey informed Mr. Emenaker and Susan Miller (realtor)
they would need to record the document prepared by staff that summarized the ruling of the Board
and listed the conditions of approval.



Other Business. Mr. Woolsey asked staff if the survey had been completed on the garage located
at 2100 Jones Bridge Road, a variance request that was presented to the BZA at the November 28,
2023 meeting. Amy Tweed replied that a survey had been turned in, and showed the structure was
7.8 feet from the property line, which was more than the variance approved for an eight (8) foot
setback. Mr. Woolsey recommended that the board amend their motion to grant the variance based
on the survey showing the variance needed to be for 7.8 feet, not eight feet. Mr. Crum made a
motion to increase the amount of the variance for the attached garage located at 2100 Jones Bridge
Road, from twelve feet to 12.2 feet, based upon the survey completed after November 2023. Mr.
Wilhoit seconded the motion, which carried unanimously.

There being no further business, a motion was made by Mr. Wilhoit, seconded by Jason Smith, to
adjourn the meeting. The motion carried unanimously.

The meeting adjourned at 9:02 a.m.

Approved as written (date) &? ;ﬁ 7‘52,570’? /7[’

A 7

Secretary 2 z 2
4 7 B

Chairman/Vice Chaitman W WAQ/

[ / i




3lva

....f......_ff WJN... .Tum,
mmmwmzzmtm_zmwmw 40 ALNAOD JHL 40 M¥I1D
= Vo <\ {(3¥n1vNSI
- ua . L
[’
/ /

8SV1-18.-€C

£815-6£9-€2v

£815-6£9-€2%
LELo6E9-eCy

9Civ-52Zs-eTy

POV0-LS9-E2Y
6¥1i-609-50¢
8115-248.-¢2Y

L651-8L2-€2V

LELO-6ET-ETP

LrLELZ8LE NL THOJMIN

1S NIVI 3 LOE

£56£5¥22€ NL ITTIAINITUO
7 31S 1S NILSNV ¥ZL

102250858 Ni ITVYANT1D
JAV HL66 N €285

Zz6vevLL€ NL ITIAINITND
1S NIVIN S 00}

£€6¥9192€ NL NOLIV

QY M3IAYIVS Szee

€v2.£ N1 3TUAINIIYO

z._ 10044339 vﬁ

Z26verL.E NL ITUAINTTHD

1S NIV S 00}

£8016+22€ N1 ITUAINITHD
AMH NOSNHOP MENANV 3 y£9¢
ZzoyerLLe NL ATIAINTINO

IS NIVIN S ZLi

20v98182¢ N1 WIFHSOW

N LS ONINdS L}

£v2/¢ NL ITHAINTIUD

ay AITIVA NOLSNOH S99¢
6.2¥SY.L.LS NL ITUAINITYD
. GATE NNINOSNL 0zvi
9909¢v2.¢ NL I TUAINITIYD

_ NTATINVLS 06
816¥EY.IE NL ITIAINITUO
1S HSIHI S 902

€80L6¥.LIE NL 3TUAINIIED
AMH NOSNHOT M3YANY 3 p£9¢

..Mm.wu-mmm-_‘mm
8¥69-99.-£Z¥
1208-81£-598
LE68-62C-CTY
hwm—. mwmrmmw

9€£90-6€9

ommm-wvw moN

qum.cmclmwu.
8ELe-L6L-CTY

808¢E-029-€Z¥

60.l1-226-¢Tv

126¢-029-€2v

6v11-609-50¢

cocL-zev-eey

882Z-0.1-¢ZP

852Z-609-€Z¥

CLPS-6ZEETY

Z51PEYLLE N1 FTIININTTND
.G 39ai¥g SIANOT 5627
71£95¥2/¢ NL ITUAINIIUO
JAV ITHAIJOH 10}
81SvEbL/e N1 STIIASNGIUD
__1SVvani18st

v0£v8182¢ NL WIIHSOW

ay NVTTINOW 00
££6¥91L9/¢ NL NOLAV

QY MIAAMIVA §ZEC

£v2.¢ NL ITIIAINIIUD

Q¥ 390149 SNITIV I 0bL)

ZO0vEEYLIE NI ITHAINITND

NT.1004¥330a vZL
00926+ N1 ITIAINIIHS
AMH FTTATHSY 6518
£8045v2L€ NL INOLSIWIT

_ AMH NOSNHOF MINANV 3 ¥£9¢

0¥6.Sv.2.€ N1 ITIAINIIHO
Q¥ SANIM ST}

£v22€ NL ITUAINTIND

1S 1S3NO4 524

LLEESY2LE NL FTUAINIIHD
1S NIGHVH N £02

£v22¢ NL FTIIAINISND

a¥ ATTIVA NOLSNOH §99¢
$05¢818.€ N1 WISHSOW
____ H0 SONRIdS DIg 908
£6606v.2/€ N1 ITUAINTIND
MO IV 56

96.95v.2.€ N1 ITIAINITUO
a¥ WYHONIONE 0902
962€¢v14€ NI ITIUAINTIHD

QY DUNGSNIAAYM 094¥

Z>><M_.rw m¥<_.. ‘el
.._.N_<>>W.,_“w J1993a 21
ZO._.<._.w N>I._.OS=F ‘91
NOLT3dHS VIORILVd 'SL

Zml_n__DC Nz<~0 Z_-Om 41
ATIVNNANN 11098 WVITIIM €1
|_<>M_OZ <I._.z<_z<m N—..
ASVAN 3rnNr- _‘r.
Z_h—3<—2 >_>—< ‘oL
AVATIA ' NIHYNA 6
ZAMVOC SIXITV 8
TIH NVAY "2
Zomm_w Zm.._ua Xm—w_ 9

NNNQ V 401 'S

SnoNia
3LIANIOINY VIIONY ¥ |
aNolsyvaa

3IX00¥d IITIVH ¢

YIAMOUD TOYVD T

e €722 N1 ITIAINITUD Py £v22¢ NL IT1IASNIIHO )
v£22-0z9-c2¥ Siatie e e v£Z2-029-€2 T e 34009 VIAINO NILSIHY °L
ALFaNS INOHd SSaNIsng SS34aqV SS3INISNg INOHd IWOH $S3¥aav IWOH INYN

2009 ONINJHAOD HHL J0 ONILAIW #2028

d0 HOIHH0 HHL OJ JQHEIDHETH HYAM SNIMOTTIOI FAHL ILVHI HIVIS J0 X¥NVIENOES HHIL

OL A4TLIHD X9TIHH I FASSHNNAL ‘INIATED A0 AINAOD HTHI J0 MIIATID ¥ SY
OI'TdNd SHUIYVILON 40 NOILOATH J0 ALVYDIIAILIAD

‘8T HOYYW FTHI SNI¥YNA OITINd XWVYION



A RESOLUTION TO REZONE CERTAIN TERRITORY OWNED BY MICHAEL | EYES
FROM A-1, GENERAL AGRICULTURE DISTRICT TO B-3, ARTERIAL BUSINESS DISTRICT
WITHIN THE UNINCORPORATED TERRITORY OF GREENE COUNTY, TENNESSEE

WHEREAS, the Greene County Commission has adopted a zoning resolution establishing zone districts
within the unincorporated territory of Greene County, Tennessee and regulations for the use of property
therein; and

WHEREAS, the Greene County Commission realizes that any zoning plan must be changed from time to
time to provide for the continued efficient and economic development of the county; and

WHEREAS, Michael J Eyes has requested that this property be rezoned from A-1, General Agriculture
District to B-3, Arterial Business District; and

WHEREAS, the Greene County Regional Planning Commission did review a request on December 12,
2023 that the Michael J Eyes property be rezoned and recommended that the Greene County Commission
approve the request to rezone the property.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Greene County Legislative Body meeting in regular session
on the 18 day of March 2024 a quorum being present and a majority voting in the affirmative to amend the
Greene County Zoning Map to show the following property to be zoned B-3, Arterial Business District.

Being the same property identified as Greene County tax map 084, parcel 036.01, as shown on the
attached tax map.

This change shall take effect after its passage, the welfare of the County requiring it.
Sponsor Greene County Regional

Planning Commission December 12, 2023
Date

Date of Public Hearing
by the Greene County Commission: March 18, 2024
Date

Decision by the Greene
County Commission:

Approved or Denied

Signed in Open Meeting:

County Mayor

Attest:
County Court Clerk
F\\
Approved as to Form: c‘ ; S e Q k-/ =
(".euﬂty Attorney

AA.



Greene County - Parcel: 084 036.01

1

1S :!?s‘o: m.;q

o,

eaine
N~

Poca hontas St

S fﬂf“

Date: February 26, 2024

County: Greene

Owner: EYES MICHAEL J
Address: CHEROKEE ST 175
Parcel Number: 084 036.01
Deeded Acreage: 8.43
Calculated Acreaae: 0

1:4,514

0 0.03 0.06 0.12 mi
{ 4 I e II Lr L i’ b |
0 0.05 0.1 0.2 km

State of Tennessaa, Compiroller of the Treasury, Esrdl Community Maps
Contributors, State of North Carolina DOT, Tennesses STS GIS, ©
OpenStreetMap,  Microsoft, Esrd, TomTom, Garmin, SafeGraph,
GeoTechnologies, Inc, METUNASA, USGS, EPA, NPS, US Ceneus Bureay,
USDA, USFWS

- o . e . - . .



RECEIPT/ORDER CONFIRMATION

BILLING DATE: ACCOUNT NO:

The Greeneville Sun

P. O. Box 1630
Greeneville, TN 37744

Phone: 423-638-4181 AMOUNT DUE UPON RECEIPT

G CO PLANNING OFFICE
129 Charles St Ste 2
Greeneville, TN 37743-0830

AD#  DESCRIPTION START STOP PUBS TIMES AMOUNT
217688 NOTICE OF PUBLIC 2/29/2024  2/29/2024 GS, 2.00 $86.00
HEARING The Gsl

Greene Coun

Discount: $0.00 Gross: $86.00
Surcharge: $0.00 . .
Credits: $0.00 Paid Amount: $0.00
Amount Due: -  $86.00

We Appreciate Your Business!



NOTICE OF PUBLIC
HEARING

The Greene County Commis-
sion will meet on March 18,
2024, at 6:00 p.m. at the Crimi-
nal Courtroom in the Greene
County Courthouse located at
101  South Main  Street
Greenavilie, TN, to hold a public
hearing on the following rezon-
ing request:

Properlr Owned by Michael J
Eyes, located on Cherokee
Street being parcel 036.01, map
084 Greene County Tax Maps
from A-1 General Agriculture
District (Existing Zone) to B-3
Arterial Business District (Pro-
posed Zone) for a storage yard.

A copy of the proposed rezoning
will be on file at the Greane
County Zoning, Building and
Planning Office, 129 Charles
Street, Suite 2, Greensville, TN
37743 for public viewing.
2.29.24



To:
From:

Date:
Subject:
Tax parcel:
Size:

Existing zone:

Request:
Owner:
Existing use:

Proposed use:

Description:

Notes:

MEMORANDUM

The Greene County Regional Planning Commission

Amy Tweed, Planning Coordinator

Tim Tweed, Building Commissioner

Lyn Ashburn, Research/Special Projects

December 7, 2023

Rezoning request for 29 Cherokee Street and 175 Cherokee Street

084-036.01

Deeded acreage: 9.2; Calculated acreage: 8.2

A-1, General Agriculture District

B-3, Arterial Business District

Michael J Eyes

There are two vacant commercial/manufacturing structures on the property.
Storage yard

The property lies adjacent to the westerly right-of-way of Cherokee Street,
beginning at East Andrew Johnson Highway and continuing for approximately
1,900 feet. The Greene County zoning map, as well as the official GIS base
map provided by the State, shows that the rear 410 feet of the property has been
annexed by Mosheim. This is not reflected on the Mosheim GIS maps, which
shows the entirety of the property to be outside the city limits. Staff is of the
opinion that the County/State maps are correct.

While the property is long it is relatively narrow, measuring approximately 255
feet at its widest point, tapering down to less than 50 feet wide at the north end
of the tract. The areas containing the two buildings has been relatively leveled
out, but much of the property has a slope of 32%, which will greatly limit its
use.

The Greene County Land Use and Tramsportation Policy Plan (LUTP)
specifically addresses how steeper properties should be developed. “There is a
direct relationship between degree of slope and development capability.”
Though not conclusive, “there is a definite tendency for areas containing
extreme topographic slopes to also contain soil associations that poorly
accommodate ... development in terms of slippage, shrink-swell potential, poor
permeability, etc.” This can result in a greatly increased risk of soil erosion
issues, both during and after construction, increased stormwater runoff onto
adjoining roads and properties, and difficulty finding soils that are appropriate
for subsurface sewage disposal. For these reasons, “it is strongly recommended
that development be discouraged on slopes exceeding 25 percent”. (p. 25-26).

Slopes between 15 percent and 25 percent also offer severe
limitations for various types of suburban development. These areas
can, however, accommodate limited development with careful
mitigation measures. Intensive urban types of development are
definitely limited due to the erosion and runoff potential thereof and
the cost to maintain facilities once constructed such as roads. These



Options:

areas are more suited to the agricultural uses of pastureland,
livestock, hay-cropping and forestry production than the road work,
driveways and parking areas needed by residential development.
Farm units, rural, low-density residential dwellings, and their
associated outbuildings can also be accommodated within this range
of topographic slopes. (p. 26).

“Slopes of less than 15 percent can accommodate more intense residential
and light commercial types of development with care taken to adequately
construct and maintain supporting public facilities. It is howewver
recommended that intense commercial and industrial development be
directed to areas of 5 percent slope or less.”

Rezoning the front portion of the parcel for commercial use makes sense, as the
existing building fronts on and is visible from East Andrew Johnson Highway,
and has good access to Cherokee Street. The attached topographic map shows
the building (Building 1) in blue, surrounded by a circular blue area which
represents a gravel/graded area and its connection to Cherokee Street. (The
contour interval is twenty (20) feet, i.e., each line represents a change in grade
of twenty (20) feet.)

Determining the appropriate zoning for the remainder of the property is
problematic, given the grade of the site and the presence of a stream/drainage
area which bisects the entire length of the property. These factors so greatly
limit the number of building sites on the tract that the second building (Building
2) on the property, a manufacturing/industrial-type structure, was built less than
twenty (20) feet from the front lot line. This structure is located across
Cherokee Street from Sequoyah Street, and the drainage way is located
immediately behind the building.

There is also the issue of extending a commercial zone approximately 1,200
feet (the area outside of Mosheim) from the highway, well into the single family
residential area of Indian Hills. The land abutting this parcel to the west is still
used agriculturally but is zoned for single family residential use by Mosheim.
Even if the frontage of the adjoining parcel is rezoned for commercial purposes,
the remainder of the property is an ideal area for future residential development.

I. Recommend rezoning the entire parcel to B-3, as it:

e  Would permit legal commercial uses in the existing structures on the
property, though a front yard setback variance would be needed for
Building 2.

e Willincrease the potential for the buildings, which are in poor condition,
to be rehabilitated or replaced.

¢ Will meet a policy of the Greene County Land Use and Transportation
Policy Plan (LUTP), specifically: there is adequate infrastructure to
support potential development



2. Recommend rezoning the front portion of the property (the arca containing
Building 1) to B-3, but leave the remaining property A-1.

This would permit legal commercial use in one of the existing structures
on the property.

It will increase the potential for the building, located adjacent to East
Andrew Johnson Highway, which is in poor condition, to be
rehabilitated or replaced.

It appears that structures cannot be placed on the remainder of the
property without violating the setback requirement.

It will meet several policies of the LUTP, specifically: there is adequate
infrastructure to support potential development; commercial
development can be designed so as to minimize potential negative
impacts to the existing transportation system; this portion of the site is
located immediately adjacent to a state highway and will have
controlled ingress or egress points; and stopping the commercial zone
at this point will minimize negative impacts to residential development
in the immediate area.

The topography and presence of a drainage way on the remainder of the
property makes it inappropriate for development (reference the LUTP).

Recommend denial of the rezoning request, as:

The topography and drainage of the site is such that the only area
appropriate for any type of development is where Building 1 is
located...

Building 2 requires approval of a front yard setback variance, and
nothing else can be built along Cherokee Street without benefit of a
variance.

The topography and presence of a drainage way on the remainder of the
property makes it inappropriate for development (reference the LUTP).



THE GENERAL PURPOSE SCHOOL FUND

A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE GREENE COUNTY SCHOOLS BUDGET FOR
CHANGES IN REVEUNES & EXPENDITURES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024

WHEREAS, the Greene County School System is amending the 2023-2024 Budget for the General Purpose

School Fund to budget changes in revenues and expenditures of $  33,645.65
THEREFORE, the following appropriations will be amended:

REVENUES

Account
Number Description Increase Decrease
46981 Safe Schools Carryover 33,645.65

TOTAL REVENUES $ 33,645.65 | $ -

EXPENDITURES

Aceount
Number Description Increase Decrease
72130 123 888 Guidance Personnel 33,645.65
72620 790 PSSG | Maintenance-Other Equipment $ 17,875.00
72210 399 PSSG Other Contracted Services 17,875.00
71200 171 Speech Pathologist 50,000.00
72210 399 Other Contracted Services 50,000.00
72220 124 Psychological Personnel 11,000.00
72220 355 Travel 10,000.00
72220 524 In-Service/Staff Development 1,000.00
71100 722 Equipment 31,000.00
72410 701 Equipment 31,000.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $  143,520.65 | § 109,875.00

Greene County Education Committee

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Greene County Legislative Body meeting in regular session, this 18th day of
March 2024, a quorum being present and a majority voting in the affirmative, that the funds be appropriated as shown

| above.
‘ County Mayor Sponsor
r} r}
Q peo Sl /e

County Qtjjrnay

l—‘.a

County Clerk




A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE 2023-2024 FISCALYEAR
GREENE COUNTY SCHOOLS GENERAL PURPOSE BUDGET FOR
CAPITAL OUTLAY PROJECTS

WHEREAS, the Greene County Board of Education has approved budgeting
$1,378,500 from our Unassigned Fund Balance for capital outlay projects (List
attached),

WHEREAS, the following appropriations will be amended:

DECREASE BEGINNING BUDGETED GENERAL FUND BALANCE

39000 Unassigned Fund $1,378,500
Total adjustment to beginning budgeted fund balance: $1,378.500
CAPITAL OUTLAY

76100 707 Building Improvements $1,378,500

INCREASE IN APPROPORATIONS $1,378,500

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Greene County Legislative Body
meeting in regular session, this 18th day of March 2024, a quorum being present
and a majority voting in the affirmative, that the funds be appropriated as shown °
above.

Greene County Education Committee
County Mayor Sponsor

R ores O Ol

County Attorney | County Clerk




CAPITAL OUTLAY 2024

2/15/2024

School Capital Request Total
Baileyton Concrete Pad Dumpsters $4,000.00
Fence at Dumpsters $8,000.00
Mobile Roof $6,000.00
Camp Creek Cafeteria-Drop ceiling for Sound Barrier $15,000.00
Lighting - Football $11,000.00
Chuckey Shed $7,000.00
Doak Reseal Parking Lot & Paint $20,000.00
Carpet Front Office $6,500.00
McDonald Exterior Doors Classrooms $21,000.00
Blinds in 4 Rooms $3,000.00
Mosheim New Ceiling tiles in Kitchen $21,000.00
Heat - Pre-K Hallway/Bathroom Area $3,000.00
Nolachuckey Flooring $15,000.00
Exterior Doors Classrooms $24,000.00
CDMS New Speakers for Fire Alarm $4,000.00
Floors - Dressing Room $18,500.00
NGMS Soffit $5,000.00
New PA System $25,000.00
SGMS Gym Floor Repairs $25,000.00
WGMS Roof - 1/2 New $180,000.00
CDHS Mower $17,000.00
Concrete Pad at Dumpster $6,000.00
Roof - 1/2 New $425,000.00
NGHS Football Bleacher Repairs $10,000.00
Interior Door Locks $8,000.00
Field House Roof $54,000.00
SGHS Additional Office Space - Locker Area $35,000.00
Roof - Field House $54,000.00
WGHS Re-Key Facility $25,000.00
Security Cameras (10) $10,000.00
Drop Ceiling (Stage, Gym Entrance, Copy Room) $7,500.00
Ag Barn * Reimbursable Grant $82,000.00
Glenwood Ed Reseal Walking Track $3,000.00
Repair Walking Track $9.000.00
Cameras (6) $6,000.00
Skirt on Mobile Unit $5,000.00
Technology Technology Equipment $100,000.00
System Painting $100,000.00
TOTAL: $1,378,500.00

ExhibiA




A RESOLUTION TO APPROPRIATE UP TO $3,310 FOR A MULTI SOURCE ANALYSIS
TOOL (MSAT) FROM THE DRUG TASK FORCE ESHARE RESTRICTED FUND FOR
THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

WHEREAS, the Drug Task Force (DTF) collects proceeds from fines and shared forfeitures

to establish and maintain a restricted account to support the Drug Task Force and its
operation, and;

WHEREAS, the DTF wishes to use funding from its restricted account in the amount of three
thousand three hundred ten dollars ($3,310) to allow member of the division and the
Sheriff's Department to acquire an MSAT license for case investigation, and;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Greene County Legislative Body meeting
in a regular session on this 18" day of March, 2024 a quorum being present and a
majority voting in the affirmative, that the budget be amended as below:

DECREASE IN FUND BALANCE

34526 Committed for Public Safety-E-Share DTF $ 3,310
Total Decrease in Fund Balance $ 3,310

INCREASE IN APPROPRIATIONS

54110 Sheriff's Department
709 Data Processing Equipment $ 3,310
Total Increase in Appropriations $ 3,310
Budget and Finance Committee
County Mayor Sponsor
) 7]
? Cx "(._ =15 (0‘. (‘____'_/ [ 4
County Clerk | County Attorney

r

C.



A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY TO
APPROPRIATE $5,825 IN COLLECTIONS FROM THE OFFICE OF THE STATE
CHIEF MEDICAL EXAMINER FOR REPORTS OF INVESTIGATION FOR THE
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

- WHEREAS, the Greene County EMS Department submits Reports of Investigation to
the Office of the State Chief Medical Examiner every two weeks, and

WHEREAS, the Office of the State Chief Medical Examiner reimburses the County
twenty-five dollars ($25) for each Report submitted, and

WHEREAS, the County requests that all funds collected for these Reports be

appropriated back to Fund 101 — General Fund - County Coroner Department
(#54610), and

INCREASE IN REVENUE

46990 Other State Revenue $ 5,825
Total Increase in Revenue $ 5,825
INCREASE IN APPROPRIATIONS
54610 County Coroner
790 Other Equipment $ 5,825
Total Increase in Appropriations $ 5,825

NOW, THEREFORE; be it resolved by the Greene County Legislative Body meeting
in regular session this 18" day of March, 2024, a quorum being present and a
majority voting in the affirmative, that the budget be amended as above.

Budget and Finance

County Mayor Sponsor

County Clerk County Attorney




A RESOLUTION TO APPROPRIATE $2,000 TO PURCHASE EQUIPMENT FOR THE
K-9 UNIT FROM THE SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT RESTRICTED FUND FOR THE
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

WHEREAS, the Sheriff's Department collects fees and donations to establish and maintain
a restricted account to support the purchase of law enforcement equipment and
support of the K-9 division (division), and;

WHEREAS, the Greene County Sheriffs Department wishes to use funding from its
restricted account in the amount of two thousand dollars ($2,000) to purchase
equipment for the new K-9 unit, and;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Greene County Legislative Body meeting
in a regular session on this 18" day of March, 2024 a quorum being present and a
majority voting in the affirmative, that the budget be amended as below:

DECREASE IN FUND BALANCE

34625 Committed for Public Safety $ 2,000
Total Decrease in Fund Balance $ 2,000
INCREASE IN APPROPRIATIONS
54110 Sheriff's Department
716 Law Enforcement Equipment $ 2,000
Total Increase in Appropriations $ 2,000

- Budget and Finance Committee
County Mayor Sponsor

R o0 @ Do

County Clerk ’ County Attorney

E.




A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY APPRORIATING
$208 TO THE JAIL FOR FUNDS RECEIVED FROM SALE OF RECYCLED
MATERIALS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

WHEREAS, the Jail received two hundred eight dollars ($208) from the sale of recycled
materials, and;

WHEREAS, the Jail requests to use those funds to offset expenditures within the
department, and;

NOW, THEREFORE; be it resolved by the Greene County Legislative Body meeting in
regular session this 18" day of March, 2024, a quorum being present and a majority voting
in the affirmative, that the budget be amended as below.

INCREASE IN REVENUES

44145 Sale of Recycled Materials $ 208
Total Increase in Revenues $ 208
INCREASE IN APPROPRIATIONS
54210 JAIL
435 Office Supplies $ 208
Total Increase in Jail Appropriations $ 208

Budget and Finance Committee

County Mayor Sponsor
County Clerk ' County Attorney

F



Greene County Attorney

Roger A. Woolsey
204 N. Cutler Street
Greeneville, TN 37745
Phone: 423-798-1779
Fax: 423-798-1781

RESOLUTION TO APPROPIATE THE CURRENT YEAR’S OPIOID SETTLEMENT
PROCEEDS RESULTING FROM THE 2021 OPIOID ABATEMENT COUNCIL ACT

WHEREAS Greene County is scheduled to receive additional settlement proceeds
allocated to Greene County by the Opioid Abatement Council pursuant to a judgment in opioid-
related claims, a recovery in bankruptcy on opioid-related claims, or a settlement of opioid-
related claims; and

WHEREAS, as part of the settlement agreement, Greene County agreed to use the
money for approved opioid abatement and remediation outlined in the agreement (attached as
Exhibit “A”; and

WHEREAS, Greene County is scheduled to receive Three Hundred Thirty-Three
Thousand Sixty-Four Dollars and fifty cents ($330,064.50) estimated, in March of 2024 which
the County is required to utilize pursuant to the requirements and guidelines contained in
Exhibit A.; and

WHEREAS, after consideration and review of the requirements and guidelines
contained in Exhibit A and the request for (unding [rom Strong Futures, the Budget Committee
has recommended the actual settlement proceeds received for 2024 from the Opioid Abatement
Council be appropriated to Strong Futures to assist in its efforts to combat drug addiction and to
ensure Greene County Government’s compliance with the requirements issued by Opioid
Abatement Council:

Strong Futures $330,064.50 (estimated)

WHEREAS, Strong Futures, as a condition of receiving funds from Greene County is

required to comply with all utilization ahd reporting requirements and guidelines established by

the Opioid Abatement Council or otherwise mandated by statute of regulation; and




Greene County Attorney

Roger A. Woolsey
204 N. Cutler Street ‘
Greeneville, TN 37745
Phone: 423-798-1779 ‘
Fax: 423-798-1781

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Greene County Legislative Body,
meeting in regular session on the 18" day of March, 2024, a quorum being present and a
majority voting in the affirmative, that the additional Opioid litigation settlement funds
received by Greene County for calendar year 2024 from the Opioid Abatement Council be
allocated and appropriated when received from the unassigned fund balance to the Greene
County General Fund 101, as follows.

** The funding expected is 3330,064.50. However, the actual amount received will

be allocated as described below.

DECREASE IN UNASSIGNED FUND BALANCE
39000 Unassigned Fund Balance $330,064.50
Total Decrease in Unassigned Fund Balance $330,064.50

INCREASE IN APPROPRIATIONS
58500 Contributions to Other Agencies $330,064.50
Total Increase in Other Agencies $330,064.50

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that from the Greene County General Fund 101 the
Opioid litigation settlement funds above referred be allocated to the following entity for uses as
mandated and permitted by the Opioid Abatement Council:

Strong Futures $330,064.50 (estimated)

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the allocation above is subject to the entity’s
agreement to comply with all utilization and reporting requirements and guidelines established

by the Opioid Abatement Council or otherwise mandated by statute of regulation.




Greene County Attorney

Roger A. Woolsey
204 N, Cutler Street
Greeneville, TN 37745
Phone: 423-798-1779
Fax: 423-798-1781

Budget and Finance Committee

Sponsor

County Clerk

County Mayor

R0 Ul

County Att(ﬁ*ney

(




Tennessee Opioid Abatement Council
Revised & Adopted September 30, 2022
EXHIBIT E

Tennessee’s Opioid Abatement
Remediation Uses

Schedule A
Core Strategies

A, NALOXONE OR OTHER FDA-APPROVED DRUG TO REVERSE
QPIOID OVERDOQSES

1. Expand training for first responders, schools, community support groups and
families; and

2. Increase distribution to individuals who are uninsured or whose insurance
does not cover the needed service,

B. MEDICATION-ASSISTED TREATMENT ("MAT")
DISTRIBUTION AND OTHER OPIOID-RELATED
TREATMENT

. Increasc distribution of MAT to individuals who are uninsured or whose
insurance does not cover the needed service;

2. Provide education to school-bascd and youth-focused programs that
discourage or prevent misuse;

3. Provide MAT education and awareness training to healthcare providers,
EMTs, law enforcement, and other first responders; and

4. Provide treatment and recovery support services such as residential and
inpaticnt treatment, intensive outpatient treatment, outpatient therapy or
counseling, and recovery housing that allow or integrate medication and
wilh other support services.

C. PREGNANT & POSTPARTUM WOMEN

1. Expand Screening, Brief Intervention, and Referral to Treatment (“SB/RT")
services lo non-Medicaid eligible or uninsured pregnant women;

2. Expand comprehensive evidence-based treatment and recovery services,

Tennessee Opioid Abatement Council’s Approved Remediation List I

=
a
L
>
f




including MAT, for women with co- occurring Opioid Use Disorder ("OUD")
and other Substance Use Disorder ("SUD")/Mental Health disorders for
uninsured individuals forup to 12 months postpartum; and

3. Provide comprehensive wrap-around services to individuals with OUD, including
housing. transportation, job placement/training, and childcare.

D. EXPANDING TREATMENT FORNEONATAL ABSTINENCIE
SYNDROME (“"NAS")

1. Expand comprehensive evidence-based and recovery support for NAS
babies:
2. Expand services for better continuum of care with infant- need dyad; and

3. Expand long-term treatment and services for medical monitoring of NAS
babies and their families.

E. EXPANSION OF WARM HAND-OFF PROGRAMS AND RECOVERY
SERVICES

1. Expand services such as navigators and on-call teams to begin MAT in
hospital emergency departments;

2. Expand warm hand-off services to transition to recovery services;

3. Broaden scope of recovery services to include co-occurring SUD or mental
health conditions;

4. Provide comprehensive wrap-around services to individuals in recovery,
including housing, transportation, job placement/training, and childcare; and

5. Hire additional social workers or other behavioral health workers to facilitate
expansions above.

E. TREATMENT FOR INCARCERATED POPULATION

1. Provide cvidence-based treatment and recovery support, including MAT
for persons with QUD and co-occurring SUD/MIT disorders within and
transitioning out of the criminal justice system; and

2. Increase funding for jails to provide treatment to inmates with OUD.

G. PREVENTION PROGRAMS

|. Funding for media campaigns to prevent opioid usc (similar to the FDA's
"Real Cost" campaign to prevent youth from misusing tobacco);

Tennessee Opioid Abatement Council’s Approved Remediation List 2



2. Funding for evidence-based prevention programs in schools:

3. Funding for mcdical provider education and outrcach regarding best
prescribing practices for opioids consistent with the CDC’s Updated Clinical
Practice Guidceline for Prescribing Opioids, the Tennessee Department of
Health Chronic Pain Guidelines, and current evidence;

4.  Funding for community drug disposal programs; and
5. Funding and training for first responders to participate in pre- arrest diversion

programs, post-overdose response teams, or similar strategies that connect
at-risk individuals to behavioral health services and supports.

H. EXPANDING SYRINGE SERVICE PROGRAMS

1. Provide comprehensive syringe services programs with more wrap-around
services, including linkage to OUD treatment, access to sterile syringes and
linkage to care and (reatment of infectious diseases.

1. EVIDENCE-BASE
ANALYZING THE EFFECTIVENESS OF THE ABATEMENT
STRATEGIES WITHIN THE STATE,

Tennessee Opioid Abatement Council’s Approved Remediation List 3



g

‘BUIUIS]| BLOM AL0IS UNOA 5,1

‘:,__ooIvu__um

Soueuld R 1@bpng AjunoD auaau9 404 paledald

saJ4nin4 buoJls




(¢ HieeHPRjIPE
“

‘Alsnoauej|nwis Ajlwel aldiua

23 JO spasau ayj buissalppe uodn bulieljuaduod
JUSWUOJIAUD AISA0D3I Paseq-pPaduspIAd
‘Adijlenb-ybiy e uaapjiyo Jiayl pue ‘siayiey

‘siayjow buipinoldd [spowl AiaAoDad paseq-Ajiuie)

‘anewwelboud aAneAOUUl UB SI S2J4NnIN{ BuoJls




‘.f_om:_ou__uu

swiea)] juauilesal]
Aseuldiosipiaqul paylienb AjlybiH -

S9JIAJI3S punode deam Isnqoy -
Ajlenads juswabeuew Jobuy

19juad bulAll Juspuadapul papoddnsg .
(dOI) Jud13edINo DAISUDT -

(dO) juanedino jeduld Ajjwed -

:suoisuswiIqg XIS

31LL UO[IRIUSSLd %207 '9 pIew £

|leyde) |epos -
spuoddng Jlwouod3 .
uoneonpy .
buiaqgiism pue yjjesy -

:sjusuodwon) a40)

|9PO|Al S@.4n3ind buo.lls



(€zoT

‘snadn)) ‘sz0z ‘HIN) (2zoz) sduis 1sa] |Auriudy Jo uonezieba| mojs ayj pue ‘sbelsae

|[euoneu ayy ueya saed buiquosaud pioido 4aybiy ‘sabus|jeyd ssadoe adedyljesy ‘sajel
Ayanod Jaybiy ‘uoisuedxa-uou piedipay Aq paziusioeldeyd st uoibad uelyoejeddy ayl .

(Z0z ‘uoissiwuwo) jeuoibay ueiyoejeddy) A1qunod ayj Jo 1sad ayd
ueys uolbad ay3 ul IsYbIY 9%zZ S! $5-G¢ sobe sjdoad 10J sajed Ajijeliow pale|al-9SOpPJaAD -

(dO ‘dOI “493ua) BuIAIT) AJUN0D BUDBIS WO} SWOI SJUBI[D INO JO 04HG8 -
(Al daAag JaiyD 924nos) (A3d Buiunod jou) sysaude bnup z9g pey AJuno) ausaudn ¢zog Ul -
SUleap 9SOpJIaA0 8€ pey Ajuno) ausaln .

uawioM buiaqg $1Z'T YlIM Syjeop 3SOpPJaA0 9Z8'E pey 93SSauua]

LZ0Z ‘Y1/ea Jo jusuwiliedag 28ssauuUa |

(@ ¥ePoion 2C0¢ 104 saidjjod pue s3i3s13e31S




suazip bulAed xey a|qisuodsaa Ajjenos buiealds SNyl S|9A3] [eUO}RINPS pasealdul ‘asnge |esnods pue pliyod
paonpaJ ‘Auanod paseatoap ‘uopeiedald |ooyds aienbape ‘sajjiwe) payiun sajelljoe) Juswieany Ajjend

sawilD pale|al-bnup Joj uoneladiedul ‘Apoisnd 93e3s ul UaIpjiyd ‘syMiq SYN ‘S1s00 jejidsoy ‘s}ISIA g3 ‘Syiesp 3SOPJaAQ -

1ul suononpad ybnoayy Ajlunwiwiod ay3 03 §T$ suaniad 3 Juswiead) bnup uo juads tejjop AlaAs 104

(OHWV.L) suoneziuebio
Ul|eSH [BIUBN JO UOIIRIDOSSY 99SSaUUd) ) S3S0D 2213sn[ [eulwild J3Yjo pue JusawadJdojus mej Ul /$

pue S1502 2J4edyjjeay Ul $$ S9ARS jJuaLIIeal} 9SNge adUrRISgNs uo juads Jejjop AJaAS Jey) SMOUS Udieasoy

Ajjenuue suejjop uol||iq Z$

uey) 240W D93SSOUUI| SIS0 3SNGe ad2URISANS 1Byl PUNOS SeY 93SSaUUI| JO AHSIDAIUN SY) WOl SISAjeue uy

(g voorpouns 99SSoUUd] Ul uondIppy bnug Jo s3s00 ay3 buinjen




1207 Ae uado aouls sal|iie)
paiedldnpun /Gt POAJDS DABY M o

sAep €T Jo sAels
abelone paAolua sioyjow InQ .

(Tz0g aunr)
u9do 22UIS 193U Y] Ul PaAl|

SARY UBJP|IYD T7 pue siayiow 5 -

POAJDS UBJIP|IYD pue SIaylopn



€202 ‘1€ 320 Jo se (Mou seybiy ‘ejep 1500 GT0Z) WS T < SBUIAES 150D pua-mo| NBET-NE6ST 20Ukl 53500 ,SYMIG SYN xxx  /

‘'salqeq 934) SYN PaJaAl|ap
weusboud 7 ay3 parejdwod
oym 6T JO 6T "uondadul
2ouls wedbouad ayy ui pajjoiud
aAeYy sJtayjow jueubaid g

94/ € Ul PaA3IYDOR Sem
uopedIuNa Ajlwe; “JUBWSA|OAUL

SOA Yaum J1aua) butan
343 ui pajjodus siayow ayl JO

‘uondadul

20OUuls paje|dwod Ajnjssaidns
SJUdID HNOD sauningd buons 40j
(%/£9) suoisiaalp (el 90€ Jo +0T

12Y30

(¢ 4:°5-polIog
"ﬂl\\

120Z Ael ul

Buiuado aoulIs SSIA $/GEZ JBAQ -

%¢S 40 el Apnys

HIN 03 patedwod a1e1 uopaduwod
%%6G e — uondasul weiboud
9DUIS SADIAIDS dO WO} pajenpelb
10 saseyd pasinbad pajsjdwod

aney sjuedpiped 4O TET 40 G9 -

%%/ 40 91ed Apnis

VSHWYS |euopjeu e 03 paiedwod
a]e. JUDW||0JUBSIP %6E B

- pope)s weaboud ayy

aouis weaboud ayj uy pajjoluasip

aAey syuedpiped dOI 85 40 €7 -
d0/dO1I1

shep 6£1 Aeis
J0 y3bus obeusay .

%SPy

JO abeuane YSHIWVS
031 paJtedwod

93ed uona|dwod 9,45 -

(%+S) buisnoy
jJuauewsad ul

paoe|d uswom 94/57 -
snjels abueyosiq -

193u’d) BUIAI

$Z0C "T€ Ue[ JO Sy

S9WO0DIN0 109|295




LUSIAIPIDaJ Judwilead) pue ‘syieap 3sOopldA0 ‘symiq SYN ‘AuaAod pedwl 03 anupRuo) .

uonediunald Ajjwej pue ‘suolsiaalp el
|NJSS220NSs ‘sajed uonenpeldb 4O1/d0 ‘auswadse|d buisnoy jusuewldad asealdul Jayping e

suoljeJauab
AJunod 3uldalL) auNIN} pue Jualind 4o bulAl Juspuadapul Buojajl] bulialso) 2NURUOD) .

Sal|lwe) JNo J10J UoIIDIppe |oyodje pue bnip jJo Juswiead) pue uoijuaAald panuiuod
Hoddns 03 AJUN0D 2U3IID UIYIIM ISIAUIDL 03 SJejjop jusawaieqe ploidQ asn papJeme JI

paau Ajlunwiwiod UlIM alelnsSuswiiluod a4k S9JIAUSS kY] adnsSua 0] anuijuo) .

AJuno) audaJn Ui saaningd BuoJls uielad 01 USIM 9\ o

(¢ 4i0°HpoIIog s|eob saining buouls

e

«




Greene County Attorney

Roger A. Woolsey
204 N. Cutler Street
Greeneville, TN 37745
Phone: 423-798-1779
Fax: 423-798-1781

RESOLUTION TO DECLARE COUNTY OWNED PROPERTY SURPLUS,
OBSOLETE, OR UNUSABLE PURSUANT TO T.C.A.§ 5-14-108

WHEREAS, various departments and agencies of Greene County Government
from time to time have personal property that has become surplus, obsolete, or
unusable; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to T.C.A.§ 5-14-108, upon request of the office holder or
department head to the Greene County Legislative Body to declare specific personal
property as surplus, the Legislative Body by resolution at a regularly scheduled
meeting, shall if appropriate, declare said property as surplus which in turn authorizes
the County Purchasing Director to sell said surplus property by public auction
(including internet auction) or by sealed bids.

WHEREAS, the Greene County Solid Waste Department has determined that
certain property of the Greene County Solid Waste Department is no longer needed by
the department, said being surplus, obsolete, or unusable by the Department and has
requested that the property attached to this resolution as “Exhibit “A” be declarcd
surplus property; and

WHEREAS, after consideration of the request from the department head to
have the various items of personal property identified in the attached list be declared
surplus, the Greene County Legislative Body finds that it is in the best interests of the
County and its citizens to declare those items of personal property surplus; to be sold by
the Purchasing Director as provided in T.C.A. § 5-14-108 and pursuant to the
established policies and procedures for the sale and/or disposition of County owned

property, the intent being that the Legislative Body will, at a future commission

H.




Greene County Attorney

Roger A. Woolsey
204 N. Cutler Street
Greeneville, TN 37745
Phone: 423-798-1779
Fax: 423-798-1781

meeting, in most instances would authorize the proceeds received from the sale of each
item of personal property retuned to the department requesting that the items be sold.
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Greene County Legislative
Body meeting in regular session on the 18" day of March, 2024, a quorum being
present and a majority voting in the affirmative, that the listed personal property shown
on the attached Exhibit, “A”, be declared surplus property pursuant to T.C.A. 5-14-108

to be sold by the Greene County Purchasing Director as mandated by statute.

Budget & Finance Committee

Sponsor b(;mty Mayor
@ & e Cl b _x}V/mz_
County Clerk County Atforney




EXHIBIT A

1. Truck #2 - 2004 Mack MR690S Front Loader (VIN#: 1M2K185C44M009544;
TAG#: GW-7431)

2. Truck #21 — 2007 Mack MR6 Front Loader (VIN#: 1M2K185C57M009816;
TAG#: 9225-GC)

3. Truck #23 — 2001 Mack MR690S Front Loader (VIN#: 1M2K185C51M008303;
TAG#: GU-3900)

4. Truck #25 — 2003 Ford F350 Super Duty (VIN#: IFDWW36F53EA16591;
TAG# GV-6965)

Greene County Attorney

Roger A. Woolsey

204 N. Cutler Street
Greeneville, TN 37745
Phone: 423-798-1779 |
Fax: 423-798-1781




Greene County Attorney

Roger A. Woolsey
204 N. Cutler Street
Greeneville, TN 37745
Phone: 423-798-1779
Fax: 423-798-1781

RESOLUTION TO ASK THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY TO REPEAL OR MODIFY
THE PROVISIONS OF T.C.A. § 41-2-152 AS IT RELATES TO ELECTRONIC
MONITORING FOR WORK RELEASE
WHEREAS, on January 1, 2024, Governor Bill Lee signed into law new legislation,
T.C.A. § 41-2-152, mandating that a prisoner of a county workhouse or jail who is released
from custody on work release or otherwise allowed to leave the grounds of the county
workhouse or jail for employment or to perform work in the community, whether the work is
paid or unpaid, must use an electronic monitoring device at all times when said prisoner is not
on the grounds of the county workhouse or jail; and
WHEREAS, the statute further requires that the entity employing the prisoner or
utilizing the prisoner for work shall pay all costs of the electronic monitoring device; and
WHEREAS, the statute further provides that this legislation does not apply if the
prisoner, at all times while not on the grounds of the county workhouse or jail, is supervised by
an armed law enforcement or correction officer, and remains in the direct eyesight of the armed
law enforcement or correction officer; and
WHEREAS, Greene County with the cooperation of the Sheriff’s Department has
utilized inmate labor to perform various functions for the various departments of County
Government a various times, including but not limited to, Greene County Road Department,
Greene County Solid Waste Department, Greene County Animal Control Department, Greene
County Maintenance Department, and Greene County Building and Zoning Department to
perform work under the direct supervision of the various department’s employees saving.

Greene County and its taxpayers, hundreds of thousands of dollars.

L.




Greene County Attorney

Roger A. Woolsey
204 N. Cutler Street
Greeneville, TN 37745
Phone: 423-798-1779
Fax: 423-798-1781

WHEREAS, the Sheriff of Greene County or his designee has always ensured that only
non-violent, low risk prisoners are released to perform this valuable work, and that all of this
use of inmate labor for county government functions has been accomplished over the years
without any significant incidents; and

WHEREAS, the legislation mandating electronic monitors for all prisoners working
outside the grounds of the Greene County Detention Center and Greene County Workhouse
would require the expenditure by County Government of tens of thousands of dollars to pay a
third party entity that would provide the monitoring for these inmates who are performing
valuable work for Greene County; and

WHEREAS, at various times in the past the county has had 20-50 inmates working
outside of the facility each day for the various county departments; that the cost of providing
electronic monitoring for each prisoner in the future to allow Greene County to utilize inmate
labor has been quoted to be $250.00 per inmate for the initial setup and $10.00 per inmate per
day for monitoring, meaning that if Greene County working an average of 25 prisoners each
day, would spent in excess ol $70,000.00 at the bare minimuin.

WHEREAS, the citizens and taxpayers of Greene County greatly appreciate the effort
of the Sheriff of Greene County as well as the various departments who utilize this inmate labor
to provide essential services for the citizens of Greene County and the prisoners generally
volunteer to do the work because of the credits they receive for sentence reduction for the work
they perform for Greene County; and

WHEREAS, recognizing that the use of inmate labor over the years by Greene County




Greene County Attorney

Roger A. Woolsey
204 N. Cutler Street
Greeneville, TN 37745
Phone: 423-798-1779
Fax: 423-798-1781

have been without any serious issues saving the County thousands of dollars, the Greene
County Legislative Body on behalf of the citizens and taxpayers of Greene County are
requesting that the General Assembly and the Governor revisit and amend this legislation to
allow the Sheriff of Greene County to continue to implement and operate a program where
non-violent low risk prisoners can perform work and services for Greene County Government
and its citizens under the supervision of the responsible employees of Greene County
Government without the necessity of paying a third party provider tens of thousands of dollars
for electronic monitoring for these prisoners to be able to work outside the grounds of the
Greene County Workhouse or Greene County Detention Center; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Greene County Legislative Body
meeting in regular session on the 18" day of March, 2024, a quorum being present, a majority
voting in the affirmative that they sponsor and support that a request be made to the Honorable
Senator Steve Southerland, the Honorable State Representative David Hawk, the legislators
who represent Greene County to submit for reconsideration by the General Assembly the
repedl or amend the provisions of T.C.A. § 41-2-152 (o allow the Sherill of Greene Counly to
continue to allow prisoners of the Greene County Detention Center and Greene County
Workhouse to volunteer and work for the various departments of Greene County Government,
performing necessary and essential services for the citizens and tax payers of Greene County
under the direct supervision of responsible employees of Greene County, without the necessity

of wearing electronic monitoring devices paid for by Greene County and its taxpayer citizens.




BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk forward a copy of this
. Resolution to State Senator Steve Southerland, State Representative David Hawk, Speaker of
‘ the House Cameron Sexton, Speaker of the Senate Randy McNally and to the Office of
! Governor Bill Lee requesting the repeal or amendment of T.C.A. § 41-2-152 as requested

{| above.

Law Enforcement Committee

Sponsor County Mayor
. County Clerk County A{Aomey

| <D

Greene County Attomey

Roger A. Woolsey
204 N. Cutler Street
Greeneville, TN 37745
Phone: 423-798-1779
Fax: 423-798-1781




A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE GREENE COUNTY
ZONING RESOLUTION SITE PLAN REQUIREMENTS WITHIN THE
UNINCORPORATED TERRITORY OF GREENE COUNTY, TENNESSEE

WHEREAS, the Greene County Legislative Body has adopted a zoning resolution
establishing zoning districts within the unincorporated territory of Greene County, Tennessee and
regulations for the use of property therein; and

WHEREAS, the Greene County Legislative Body realizes that any zoning plan must be
changed from time to time to provide for the continued efficient and economic development of the
county; and

WHEREAS,; site plans are needed to ensure that developments are constructed to meet the
requirements of the Zoning Resolution; and

WHEREAS, the Greene County Legislative Body recognizes the need for site plan
regulations; and

WHEREAS, a proposal has been submitted to and studied by the Greene County Regional
Planning Commission on the 13" of February, 2024 which recommended that the Greene County
Legislative Body amend the zoning resolution; and

WHEREAS, Public Notice requirements pursuant to T.C.A. §13-7-105(b)(1) have been
met;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Greene County Legislative Body
meeting on March 18, 2024, in regular session, a quorum being present and a majority voting in

the affirmative, to amend of GGreene County Zoning Resolution as follows:

Revise Article II Definitions of Terms Used in Ordinance to add the following:

Site plan: A graphic representation of how a site is proposed to be developed
which includes information on existing and proposed site layout, landscaping,
construction, paving, utilities, drainage, soil erosion control, topography, and
the like. The particular information required to be shown depends upon the
existing condition/use of the site, the proposed use, and the potential impact to
off-site roads and properties.

Replace Section 512. Site Plan Requirements with the following:

1

3



512. _ Site Plan Requirements. Site plans are required for all non-single-family
residential development, though, at the discretion of the Enforcement Officer,

specific requirements may be waived.
A. Conceptual Site Plans. A conceptual site plan meeting the following
standards may be required to be submitted with rezoning requests.

1.

General information, such as: north arrow; name and address of the
property owner(s) and contractor(s); existing and proposed zoning
and land use; property address; tax parcel number for the site.

A scaled map of the site with the accurate location and description
of the property boundary, drawn at a scale of not less than one inch
equals one hundred (100) feet, with the accurate location and
dimensions of all existing and proposed structures, driveways,
lighting locations, walkways, parking areas, loading areas,
landscaping, buffering, easements, and other relevant natural or
manmade elements that may affect site design or layout;

Setbacks for the property, either shown on the drawing, or noted on
the plan, with distances between proposed structures and the
property line.

Other elements deemed necessary by the Zoning Administrator to
determine compliance with all applicable regulations.

B. Standard site plans. Standard site plans shall contain the following
information:

L.

General information, such as: north arrow; location map drawn to a
scale no smaller than 17:2,000’; name and address of the property
owner(s) and contractor(s); existing zoning and land use; property
address; tax parcel numbecr for the site.

A scaled map of the site with the accurate location and description
of the property boundary, drawn at a scale of not less than one inch
equals one hundred (100) feet, with the accurate location and
dimensions of all existing and proposed structures, signs, driveways,
lighting, walkways, parking areas, loading areas, landscaping,
buffering, easements, utility connections, drainage ways, drainage
structures, and other relevant natural or manmade elements that may
affect site design or layout;

Setbacks for the property, either shown on the drawing, or noted on
the plan, with distances between proposed structures and the
property line.

Landscape/buffering information where required elsewhere in this
resolution, including: location, width, and design of buffer zones
and buffer strips; location, diameter, height, and type of existing
trees proposed to be retained on the site; detailed information on

2



the design, width, height, opacity, growing period to maturity, time
schedule for installation, and responsibility for perpetual
maintenance, for required plantings.

A topographic map at contour intervals no less than two (2) feet if
a drainage plan is required.

. A drainage plan with calculations of discharge and plans for

discharge and detention if the site is greater than one (1) acre, if
more than forty percent (40 %) of the site is to be covered in non-
permeable surface, or for all commercial and industrial uses.

. An erosion control plan.
. A detailed soils map and location of septic facilities if the site is to

be served by on-site septic disposal.

. Modified site plans. The Enforcing Officer may permit the submission
of modified site plans when an existing structure will be reused.

This change shall take effect after its passage, the welfare of the County requiring it.

Sponsor Greene County Regional

Planning Commission

Date of Public Hearing by

the Greene County Commission:

Decision by the Greene
County Commission:
Approved or Denied

Signed in Open Meeting:

Attest:

Approved as to Form:

Date

Date

County Mayor

County Court Clerk




A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE GREENE COUNTY ZONING
RESOLUTION SOLAR FARM/SOLAR ENERGY REGULATIONS WITHIN THE
UNINCORPORATED TERRITORY OF GREENE COUNTY, TENNESSEE

WHEREAS, the Greene County Legislative Body has adopted a zoning resolution
establishing zoning districts within the unincorporated territory of Greene County, Tennessee and
regulations for the use of property therein; and

WHEREAS, the Greene County Legislative Body realizes that any zoning plan must be
changed from time to time to provide for the continued efficient and economic development of the
county; and

WHEREAS, the Greene County Legislative Body recognizes the solar farm regulations
adopted in 2017 should be revised to better control the size and number of potential solar energy
systems; and

WHEREAS, solar energy systems shall be classified as high impact developments, not
only for the potential visual impact they create, but the fire hazard they present that most fire
departments do not have the necessary equipment or appropriate training to effectively contain;
and

WHEREAS, the M-2, High Impact Use district was created for uses with the potential to
negatively impact the air, traffic, noise, odor, safety, or vistas of a community; and

WHEREAS, a proposal has been submitted to and studied by the Greene County Regional
Planning Commission on the 13" of February, 2024 which recommended that the Greene County
Legislative Body amend the zoning resolution; and

WHEREAS, Public Notice requirements pursuant to T.C.A. §13-7-105(b)(1) have been
met;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Greene County Legislative Body
meeting on March 18, 2024, in regular session, a quorum being present and a majority voting in
the affirmative, to amend of Greene County Zoning Resolution as follows:

Revise Article II Definitions of Terms Used in Ordinance by removing the identifying
numbers for definitions.

Revise Article II Definitions of Terms Used in Ordinance, 209 B. Buffer strip, solar farm,
by replacing “solar farm” with “solar energy system”, to read as follows:

1

K.



209B. Buffer strip, solar energy system. An evergreen landscaped strip located
within a buffer zone intended to conceal required fencing within five years of
planting.

Revise Article II Definitions of Terms Used in Ordinance, 209 C. Buffer zone, by replacing
“solar farm™ with solar energy system, to read as follows:

209C. Buffer zone. An area of green space located around the fenced perimeter of
a solar energy system.

Revise Article II Definitions of Terms Used in Ordinance by removing 253E. Solar panel
farm.

Revise Article II Definitions of Terms Used in Ordinance to add the following:

Agrivoltaics: a solar energy system co-located on the same parcel of land as
agricultural production, including crop production, grazing, apiaries, or other
agricultural products or services.

Brownfield: abandoned, idled, or underused industrial or commercial facilities
where expansion or redevelopment is complicated by the presence or potential
presence of a hazardous substance, pollutant, or contaminant.

Renewable Energy: Energy from sources such as the sun, water, and wind, that
are naturally replenished and do not run out.

Site Reconnaissance Inspection: an early investigation of property including
information such as topographical and geological features that is intended to

eliminate sites which are impractical or unfeasible to develop for a particular use,
and to identify more promising areas for development.

Solar Energy System (SES): any device, mechanism, structure, apparatus, or part
thereof, whose primary purpose is to collect solar energy and convert and store it
for useful purposes including heating and cooling buildings or other energy saving

processes, or to produce generated power by means of any combination of
collecting, transferring, or converting solar-generated energy. SES’s includes all
components of the electricity generating facility (inverters, transformers,
switchgear, substations, communications infrastructure, and other ancillary or
related equipment), but does not include transmission lines or generation tie lines
connecting the SES to a utility-owned substation.



Solar_energy system, Battery Energy Storage System: an electrochemical
device that charges (or collects energy) from the electrical grid or an electricity
generating facility, such as a community scale or utility scale installation, and then
discharges that energy at a later time to provide electricity or other grid services
when needed.

Solar Energy System, Building Integrated (BIS): SES’s where solar materials

are incorporated into building materials, such that the two are reasonably
indistinguishable, or where solar materials are used in place of traditional building
components, such that the SES is structurally an integral part of a house, building,
or other structure. An ISES may be incorporated into, among other things, a
building fagade, skylight, shingles, canopy, ground mount system, light, or parking
meter. It does not describe systems where solar panels are installed on a roof.

Solar Energy System, Building-Mount (BMS): Includes “roof-mount”. An SES

that is structurally mounted to a house, building or other structure on property
where the principal use is not related to the production of energy. Though the
system shall be designed to only provide energy for the property upon which it is
located, excess energy may be sold as permitted by state and federal law.

Solar Energy System, Fixed Tilt: Solar panels/arrays that, as they do not adjust
their position in relation to the sun, remain at a constant height, a measurement
needed to ensure compliance with maximum height requirements.

Solar Energy System, Footprint: the footprint of a ground-mounted solar energy
system (SES) is calculated by drawing a perimeter around the outermost SES panels
and any equipment necessary for the functioning of the SES, such as transformers
and inverters. The footprint does not include any visual buffer or perimeter fencing.
Transmission lines (or portions thereof) required to connect the SES to a utility or
consumer outside the SES perimeter shall not be included in calculating the
footprint.

Solar Energy System, Ground Mount (GMS): An SES that is structurally
mounted on a rack or pole that rests on or is attached to the ground. Ground-

mounted systems can be either accessory or principal uses.

Solar Energy System, Ground Mount, Accessory (AGMS): An SES that is
structurally mounted to the ground and accessory to the principal use on the
property. Though the system shall be designed to only provide energy for the
property upon which it is located, excess energy may be sold as permitted by state
and federal law.




Solar _Energy System, Photovoltaic (PV) Selar: PV materials and devices
convert sunlight into electrical energy. A single PV device is known as a cell, and
several cells linked together form a solar panel, which in turn are linked to form a
solar array.

Solar Energy System, Solar Array: a collection of multiple solar panels wired
together and used to generate electricity.

Solar Energy System, Tilt: also known as s “Solar Tracking System”, they are
solar panels/arrays that are on a single or dual axis which permits them to move to
“follow the sun”. The height of the array can change as it moves, and the maximum
possible height attained by the arrays shall be used to determine compliance with
maximum height requirements.

Solar Energy System, Utility-Scale (USGMS): A ground-mounted SES where

energy generation is the principal use of the property and the power generated is
sold directly into the electric grid.

Superfund site: a site, larger and more heavily contaminated than a brownfield that
may pose a threat to life. For the purposes of these regulations, a superfund site is

not classed as a brownfield.

Add Section 516. Solar Energy Facilities as follows:

516. Solar Energy System (SES). It is the intent of these regulations to: facilitate
the construction, installation, and operation of solar energy systems in Greene
County in a manner that promotes economic development while also avoiding
adverse impacts to important areas such as agricultural lands, endangered species
habitats, conservation areas, and other sensitive lands; to preserve land located near
existing population centers, as well as land lying within the urban growth
boundaries of the municipalities of Greene County, identified during the Growth
Plan process as being necessary for accommodating future residential growth of the
County; encourage the use of brownfields for use as a solar development, which

can boost the local economy and increase local tax revenues while directing solar
development away from farmland, forested land, or other undeveloped lands; and
to protect the health, safety, and welfare of Greene County residents and property
owners.
516.1 General Information.
A. Building integrated systems (BIS’s) are permitted in all zones
and for all uses, provided the applicable provisions of these
regulations are met.

4



B. Panels shall be repaired or replaced as soon as feasible when
either nonfunctional or in visible disrepair.

C. Installers shall coordinate with emergency services staff to
provide materials, education and/or training to the department(s)
serving the property in how to safely respond to on-site
emergencies.

D. To ensure the structural integrity of any SES, the operator of the
system shall ensure that it is maintained in compliance with
standards contained in applicable local, state, and federal
building codes and regulations that are in force at the time of the
permit approval.

E. Glare.

1. Exterior surfaces of solar collectors and related equipment
shall have a non-reflective finish and solar panels shall be
designed and installed to limit glare to a degree that no after-
image or other visual nuisance would occur off-site.

2. Glare studies shall be as required by local, state and/or
federal regulations.

F. Building permits shall not be issued for any types of SES’s until
written confirmation is provided to the Zoning Administrator
that the electric utility has a signed interconnection agreement
with the permittee.

G. The standards and regulations of the Federal Aviation
Administration (FAA) and any other agency of the local, state,
or federal government with the authority to regulate such
facilities that are in force at the time of the application, shall be
met or exceeded.

H. When applicable, easements for transmission lines and related
items shall be obtained prior to submission of an application to
the County.

I. All SES’s for uses other than single family shall have readily
visible signage on the site that identifies the facility owner,
provides a 24-hour emergency contact phone number, and
conforms to the requirements set forth in the sign provisions of
the Greene County Zoning Resolution.

J. Weed control or mowing shall be performed routinely for
ground-mount systems.

K. Lighting shall be, in the opinion of the Zoning Administrator,
the minimum necessary for safety and security purposes, and
shall be located so as to decrease “spill” off-site.

516.2 Accessory Building-Mount System (ABMS).

5



A. ABMS’s are permitted in all zones and for all uses, provided the
system is accessory to the principal use and designed for
generate electricity for use on the same property.

B. Uses other than single family are required to submit the
following information as part of the approval process:

1.

Photovoltaic installation plans which include panel layouts
and details affixed with the seal of a licensed architect or
engineer.

For roof-mounted systems on structures with flat roofs, a
signed and sealed letter from an architect or engineer must
be submitted to verify the proposed fixture method complies
with applicable safety measures such as a wind resistance
and is otherwise safe and suitable for the subject building
design and structure.

An electrical diagram/worksheets which shows photovoltaic
system configuration, wiring system, overcurrent protection,
inverter, disconnects, required signs, and connection to the
building.

Specification sheets and manuals (if available) for all
manufactured components such as photovoltaic modules,
inverter(s), combiner box, disconnects, and mounting
system.

Verification that the Greeneville Energy Authority has
approved the interconnection of the system to the grid.

An estimated construction schedule.

A decommissioning plan, including information on the
dismantling of equipment, an evaluation of the PV system
components, and logistics of handling and disposal;

516.3 Accessory Ground-mount systems (AGMS’s).
A. General Information.

1.

AGMS’s are permitted as of right in all districts, provided

they are:

a. Placed in the rear yard;

b. Meet the minimum setback requirement for principal
structures in the zone governing use of the site; and

c. Screened from adjoining residential uses.

AGMS’s may be permitted as a special exception over

parking areas, driveways, walkways, and other impermeable

surfaces in the front and/or side yard of the property,

provided:



a. The request is for a conforming commercial use located
in a commercial or industrial district; or

b. The request is for a conforming industrial use located in
the M-1, Light Industry District, or M-2, Heavy Impact
District.

. AGMS’s shall not be located below the flood storage zone

elevation (500-year flood zone) as identified the latest Flood

Insurance Rate Map (FIRM);

. A building permit must be obtained within 12 (twelve)

months of obtaining approval, and commencement of

construction shall begin within six (6) months of building
permit issuance.

. The maximum height of solar arrays shall be seven (7) feet,

as measured from the finished grade at the base of the

structure to its highest point, including appurtenances. The

BZA may approve a greater height based upon the

demonstration of a significant need where the impacts of

increased height are mitigated.

. Fencing is required for AGMS’s (other than single-family

systems) as follows:

a. To decrease the potential for deer being trapped in a SES,
fences shall be at least 96 inches in height.

b. The top of fences shall be made more visible to wildlife
by use of a top rail, high-visibility wire, flagging, or
other proven method.

c. The bottom of fences should either be buried or erected
tight to the ground, and any gaps should be filled with
rip rap or other barriers (except at purposeful wildlife
crossings.

d. Barbed wire cannot be installed on any fence measuring
less than ninety-six (96) inches in height.

e. The use of a larger mesh fence at ground level (i.e.,
“wildlife-permeable fencing”), may be required if so
recommended in the Wildlife Impact Analysis.
Accessory ground-mount systems (AGMS’s).

. Landscaping/Buffering.

a. For single family uses, proposed buffering shall provide
screening to adjoining residential uses, and shall be
reviewed and approved by the Zoning Administrator.

b. All other AGMS’s shall meet the following
requirements.

7



i.  The required setback area shall be used to buffer
and screen the arrays and associated structures
from adjoining property.

ii. The area of the SES located inside required
fencing, with the exception of access driveways,
building pads, utility facilities and necessary
equipment supports, shall be planted with native
vegetation (i.e. grass or groundcover) and
maintained in accordance with established
performance measures or permit conditions.

iii. Grass/groundcover/landscaping is not required to
be placed over paving or other impervious surfaces
which existed prior to planning for the installation
of the system.

iv. Buffer strips measuring at least ten (10) feet wide,
with evergreen trees planted in staggered pattern at
a maximum distance of 10 feet on center, shall be
provided adjacent to required fencing. Trees shall
measure at least six (6) feet tall when planted, and
shall be capable of obscuring the fence within five
(5) years of planting.

v.  The Zoning Administrator may approve agrivoltaic
plantings as an alternative to grass or groundcover.

4. Single family AGMS’s. The following information is

required to be submitted in order to obtain approval for a

single-family AGMS.

a. A completed application and permit fee.

b. A site plan, in addition to meeting the requirements of
Section 512.B, that shows the: location and dimensions
of the solar array; distance from property lines; proposed
panel layout; and location and type of landscape or other
screening material.

c. Written verification that the Greeneville Energy
Authority has approved the interconnection of the
system to the grid.

d. Photovoltaic installation plans which include panel
layout plans and details, to the satisfaction of the Zoning
Administrator.

e. An electrical diagram/worksheets which shows
photovoltaic system configuration, wiring system,



overcurrent protection, inverter, disconnects, required
signs, and connection to the building.

5. Two-Family, Multi-Family, Commercial, and Industrial
AGMS’s. In order to obtain approval for these uses, the
following information is required to be submitted.

a.

b.

A permit fee.

A completed application submitted by a contractor
licensed and bonded with the State of Tennessee’s
Department of Commerce and Insurance.

A site plan, in addition to meeting the requirements of
Section 512.B, with the addition of the following:
location and dimensions of proposed area of solar arrays;
distance between solar arrays and the closest residential
dwellings; existing land use and zoning for adjoining
properties; and information on the type of plantings to be
placed under the solar arrays.

Information on the design, width, height, opacity,
growing period to maturity, time schedule for
installation, and responsibility for perpetual maintenance

- of the buffer strip shall be submitted to and approved by

the Enforcing Officer.

A detailed drawing of the solar panel arrays, including

spacing between arrays.

A soil erosion and stormwater plan, prepared as per the

requirements of Section 512. B., containing:

i. A signed and sealed statement that pre-
development drainage patterns shall be maintained
and post development surface water run-off shall
not exceed pre-development surface water run-off
for a 25-year storm event.

ii.  Information on how soil shall be retained on-site
through the appropriate use of silt fencing, straw
bales, or other effective manner.

Photovoltaic installation plans which include panel

layout plans and details affixed with the seal of a licensed

architect or engineer.

An electrical diagram/worksheets which shows

photovoltaic system configuration, wiring system,

overcurrent protection, inverter, disconnects, required
signs, and connection to the building.



Gt o

Verification that the Greeneville Energy Authority has
approved the interconnection of the system to the grid.
An estimated construction schedule.

A decommissioning plan, including information on the
dismantling of equipment, an evaluation of the PV
system components, logistics of handling and disposal,
and land remediation and restoration.

516.4 Utility-scale ground-mounted systems (USGMS’s)
A. USGMS’s are permitted as of right in the M-2, High Impact Use
District, provided:

1.

Sk

The site is on a list of brownfields maintained by the
Greene County Office of Inspection and Regulation.
The system must be shielded from the view of nearby
residences, designated scenic highways, and significant
vantage points using landscaped buffers.

Contractors shall provide field monitors to ensure
mitigation practices are sustained throughout the
construction process and into the maintenance period.
They shall be limited to the phases and conditions set
forth in the plan that constitutes part of the application,
notwithstanding any other state or federal requirements.
No additional phasing or change in facility size shall be
permitted, and no extensions beyond the initial period
shall be granted without amending the plan.

B. A pre-application meeting is required to be conducted between
the property owner/developer and Building/Planning staff, to
discuss the location, scale, and nature of the proposed use and
what will be expected during the approval process. This often

results in a better, more complete application and a smoother
process once an application is submitted.

C. Minimum development standards for USGMS’s.
1. Fencing.

a.

b.

C.

Fencing shall meet the requirements set forth in Section
516.3 A. 6.

The maximum fenced area for a SES is forty (40) acres.
Developments larger than this shall be divided into
multiple fenced areas, to lessen the impact to wildlife.
The openings between fenced areas should be placed
where animals naturally travel.

2. Buffer zones are required around the perimeter of each
USGMS and shall:

10



Contain a buffer strip and fencing, and be maintained as
green space for the entire width of the buffer zone,
except for necessary intrusions for vehicular or power
access, fencing, drainage system components, ot other
required structure;

Measure at least fifty (50) feet in width from external
property lines to a fence surrounding the SES, and shall
screen all elements of the SES (arrays, structures,
fencing, etc.), from the ground-level view on adjacent
properties;

Preserve, where possible and practical in the opinion of
the Zoning Administrator, existing trees capable of
meeting the intent of screening requirements;

Be considered for a variance reducing the width or
requirements of the buffer zone only if the proposed
alternative provides a level of buffering and screening
that meets or exceeds the requirements.

Buffer strips shall be located inside the buffer zone and shall:

a.
b.

Be located outside required fencing.

Be planted with evergreen shrubs and/or trees that are a
minimum of six feet in height at the time of planting and
are staggered no more than ten (10) feet on center.
Capable of providing an obscuring screen which shall
conceal required fencing within five years of planting.
Be maintained even if the solar farm is no longer
operational and/or falls into disuse, unless and until the
solar farm is dismantled and removed from the parcel(s)
upon which it was constructed.

Be required where lease lines overlay exterior property
lines, provided that separate tax parcels under the same
ownership are considered one property for the purposes
of this sub section.

Not be required within the interior of a SAS where arcas
leased from different property owners abut one another.
Be shown on plans submitted to and approved by the
Enforcing Officer, who shall approve the design, width,
height, opacity, growing period to maturity, time
schedule for installation, and responsibility for perpetual
maintenance.

On-site vegetation. The area of the SES located inside
required fencing, with the exception of access driveways,

11



building pads, utility facilities and necessary equipment
supports, shall be maintained with native vegetation as a
ground cover, and maintained in accordance with established
performance measures or permit conditions.

Setbacks.

a.

The minimum setback between any building or solar
array and required fencing is twenty (20) feet.

A setback between any building/solar array on the site
and any off-site permanent residential dwelling existing
at the time of approval of the GSES shall be five hundred
(500) feet from the nearest comer of the residential
property line to the closest solar array.

Requirements for obtaining approval for a USGMS.

a.

Submission of a completed application and permit fee
shall by a contractor licensed by the State of Tennessee,
accompanied by:

Completion of a site reconnaissance inspection report,
involving a review of both the underlying land and any
physical improvements on the site, to identify potential
environmental risks and/or any protected natural habitats
associated with the property.

Submission of an environmental impact statement,
including a wildlife impact analysis. The WIA shall
contain an evaluation and summary of the beneficial and
adverse impacts of the proposed SES on natural
resources, and a description of how these impacts will be
mitigated.

Submission of a site plan which meets the requirements
of Section 512. Site Plans, with the addition of the
following: location and dimensions of proposed area of
solar arrays; distance between solar arrays and the
closest residential dwellings; existing land use and

zoning for adjoining properties; and information on the
type of plantings to be placed under the solar arrays;
Documentation that the site is not located below the
flood storage zone elevation (500-year flood zone) as
identified the latest Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM);
Evidence of ownership of the subject parcel(s), or proof
that the applicant has authorization to act upon the
owner’s behalf.

Submission of an estimated construction schedule.

12



g. Traffic study modeling the construction process.
h. Completion of a decommissioning plan containing the
following:

i. A reliable and detailed cost estimate for the
decommissioning of the facility prepared by a
professional engineer or contractor who has
expertise in the removal of solar facilities.

ii.  Explicit detail of how the estimate was determined,
including a mechanism for calculating increased
removal costs due to inflation, without any
reduction for salvage value.

iii. A proposed method of providing appropriate
escrow, surety, or security for the cost of the
decommissioning plan;

iv. The decommissioning cost plus five percent (5%)
shall be guaranteed by cash escrow at a federally
insured financial institution approved by the
County before any building permits are issued.

v.  The statement: “If the owner or operator of the
solar facility fails to remove the installation in
accordance with the requirements of this permit or
within the proposed date of decommissioning,
Greene County may collect the surety and County
employees or a hired third party may enter the
property to physically remove the installation.

vi. Traffic study modelling the decommissioning
processes.

vii. The statement: “Utility-scale solar facilities which
have reached the end of their useful life or have not
been in active and continuous service for twelve
(12) months shall be removed at the owner’s or
operator’s expense. The timeline may be extended
if the project is being repowered, or a force majeure
event has or is occurring.” Greene County may
require evidentiary support that a longer repair
period is necessary.

viii. The statement: “Decommissioning shall include
removal of all solar electric systems, buildings,
cabling, electrical components, security barriers,
roads, foundations, pilings, and any other

13



ix.

xi.

associated facilities, to a depth of at least thirty-six
(36) inches”

The statement: “The site shall be graded and
reseeded to restore it to as natural a condition as
possible within a reasonable time frame after
equipment removal, unless the land owner requests
in writing that the access roads or other land
surface areas not be restored, and this request is
approved by the Planning Commission.”

The statement: “The owner or operator shall notify
the Building Commissioner by certified mail,
return receipt requested, of the proposed date of
discontinued operations and plans for removal.
Decommissioning shall be performed in
compliance with the approved decommissioning
plan on file, or in compliance with any amended
plan approved by the Planning Commission”.

The statement: “Hazardous material from the
property shall be disposed of in accordance with
federal and state law”.

Revise Section 601.1 S. (Uses Permitted in the A-1. General Agriculture District) to

remove:

S. Solar panel farms.

Revise Section 601.1 (Uses Permitted in the A-1. General Agriculture District) to change:

T. Tiny homes, to S. Tiny Homes.

Revise Section 601.1 (Uses Permitted in the A-1, General Agriculture District) to change:

U. Campgrounds, to T. Campgrounds.

Revise Section 601.1 (Uses Permitted in the A-1, General Agriculture District) to change:

V. Limited-yield custom slaughterhouses to U. Limited-yield custom

slaughterhouses

Revise 609.1 (Uses Permitted in the M-2 High Impact Use District) to add:

14



M. Utility-scale ground mount solar energy systems, as per the requirements of
Section 516.

This change shall take effect after its passage, the welfare of the County requiring it.

Sponsor Greene County Regional
Planning Commission

Date
Date of Public Hearing by
the Greene County Commission:

Date
Decision by the Greene
County Commission:
Approved or Denied
Signed in Open Meeting:

County Mayor
Attest:
County Court Clerk

?\
Approved as to Form: i E Oc 2 J Q_ &_/)(i_,

Courl)y Attorney

15



A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE GREENE COUNTY ZONING
RESOLUTION REGULATING WIND ENERGY FACILITIES WITHIN THE
UNINCORPORATED TERRITORY OF GREENE COUNTY, TENNESSEE

WHEREAS, the Greene County Legislative Body has adopted a zoning resolution
establishing zoning districts within the unincorporated territory of Greene County, Tennessee and
regulations for the use of property therein; and

WHEREAS, the Greene County Legislative Body realizes that any zoning plan must be
changed from time to time to provide for the continued efficient and economic development of the
county; and

WHEREAS, increased interest in renewable energy systems, such as wind energy
facilities/wind farms, increases the potential of such a facility locating in Greene County; and

WHEREAS, regulations should be in place to direct and enable the appropriate siting,
construction and operation of wind energy facilities; and

WHEREAS, a proposal has been submitted to and studied by the Greene County Regional
Planning Commission on the 13% of February, 2024 which recommended that the Greene County
Legislative Body amend the zoning resolution; and

WHEREAS, Public Notice requirements pursuant to T.C.A. §13-7-105(b)(1) have been
met;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Greene County Legislative Body
meeting on March 18§, 2024, in regular session, a quorum being present and a majority voting in

the affirmative, L amend ol Greene County Zoning Resolution as follows:

Revise Article I1 Definitions of Terms Used in Ordinance to add the following:

Immissions: the sound heard by an observer that, outdoors, can be influenced by,
among other things, the terrain, sound absorption by the ground, and wind and
temperature gradients

Nonparticipating landowner: a landowner not under a lease or other property
agreement with the owner or operator of a wind turbine facility.

Personal use: In regards to wind energy, the on-site generation of electricity only
for the site/parcel where the wind turbine is located.

1

L



)
Large Wind Energy System: wind turbine(s) and all associated equipment,
machinery and structures utilized to convert wind to electricity for use off-site of
the property where they are located. The system includes, but is not limited to,
towers, transmission, storage, collection and supply equipment, substations,
transformers, and service and access roads; does not include equipment that, when
installed in connection with a dwelling, transmits or uses wind energy to produce
energy in a useful form for residential purposes.

Small Wind Energy System: wind turbines that are accessory to the principal use
on-site, sized to generate electricity for personal, on-site use only, and are generally
comprised of a rotor, a generator or alternator mounted on a frame, a tail (usually),

a tower, wiring, and the "balance of system" components (controllers, inverters,
and/or batteries). They are not permitted in the R-1, Low Density Residential
District; R-2, Medium Density Residential District; or platted and recorded
residential subdivisions, regardless of zone.

Revise Section 609. M-2 Heavy Impact Use District) to add:

609.2. Uses permitted as a special exception.
A. Large wind energy facilities, provided that:

1. The site is on a list of brownfields maintained by the Greene
County Office of Inspection and Regulation.

2. A minimum setback for any wind turbine of a wind energy facility
from any non-participating landowner's property line shall be
equal to three and one-half (3.5) times the total height of the
turbine structure as measured from the ground at its base to the
maximum height of the blade tip.

3. Structures on the site that do not generate vibration or noise shall
meet the minimum setback requirements for the district.

4.  The facility shall meet the requirements of T.C.A. § 65-17-105 in
place as of the adoption date of this resolution.

5. The immission limit measured at the property line of a
nonparticipating owner shall be thirty-five (35) dB.

6. Consideration and approval of a site plan by the Greene County
Planning Commission, which is required, shall not occur until a
special exception has been approved by the Board of Zoning
Appeals.

7.  Nothing in these regulations shall be interpreted to remove or
reduce the buffering standards required for industrial uses abutting
a residential use or zone.



8. Lighting.

a.

Wireless transmission facilities shall not be artificially lighted
unless required by the Federal Aviation Administration or
other governmental authority. Applicant shall utilize “dual
lighting” to the extent permitted by the Federal Aviation
Administration or other regulating governmental authority.
While zoning standards must comply with FAA
regulations, local officials may include provisions that limit
the amount of obstruction lighting used if possible, or
require alternative approved lighting systems.

Alternative lighting systems that have been approved by
the FAA are Aircraft Detection Lighting Systems for wind
turbines. These reduce persistent lighting for wind
turbines by using obstruction lights that only activate
when radar systems detect an approaching aircraft.

9.  Outside lighting, if required for safety and security purposes, shall
be arranged so as to minimize glare and reflection on adjacent
properties and public roads. The Enforcing Officer may require
the submission of a lighting plan by a qualified professional
engineer to ensure that the illumination of outside lighting as
designed and installed does not exceed 0.4 foot candles. Wireless
transmission facilities shall not be artificially lighted unless
required by the Federal Aviation Administration or other
governmental authority.

Renumber Section 609.2 Area Regulations to 609.3 Area Regulations.

This change shall take effect after its passage, the welfare of the County requiring it.

Sponsor Greene County Regional
Planning Commission

Date of Public Hearing by
the Greene County Commission:

Decision by the Greene
County Commission:
Approved or Denied

Date

Date




Signed in Open Meeting:

County Mayor

Attest:

County Court Clerk

Approved as to Form: Q (M Q \_)r‘

(’1} unty Attorney




A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE GREENE COUNTY
ZONING RESOLUTION REGULATING DATA CENTERS AND
CRYPTOCURRENCY MINING WITHIN THE UNINCORPORATED TERRITORY OF
GREENE COUNTY, TENNESSEE

WHEREAS, the Greene County Legislative Body has adopted a zoning resolution
establishing zoning districts within the unincorporated territory of Greene County, Tennessee and
regulations for the use of property therein; and

WHEREAS, the Greene County Legislative Body realizes that any zoning plan must be
changed from time to time to provide for the continued efficient and economic development of the
county; and

WHEREAS, “hi-tech” uses such as data centers and cryptocurrency mining are evolving
from traditional computer technology into high-impact facilities that create noise and vibration at
levels that can impact area residents’ use and enjoyment of their property; and

WHEREAS, noise and vibration from these facilities can impact wildlife and livestock,
which are vital to Greene County’s interest of agriculture and tourism; and

WHEREAS, the potential impact of these facilities should be determined on a case-by-
case basis; and

WHEREAS, a proposal has been submitted to and studied by the Greene County Regional
Planning Commission on the 13" of February, 2024 which recommended that the Greene County
Legislative Body amend the zoning resolution; and

WHEREAS, Public Notice requirements pursuant to T.C.A. §13-7-105(b)(1) have been
met;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Greene County Legislative Body
meeting on March 18, 2024, in regular session, a quorum being present and a majority voting in
the affirmative, to amend of Greene County Zoning Resolution as follows:

Revise Article II Definitions of Terms Used in Ordinance by removing the identifying
numbers for definitions.

Revise Article II Definitions of Terms Used in Ordinance to add the following:

m.



Ambient noise level: [or the purposes of these regulations, the background sound
pressure level at a given location, measured prior to introduction of a new intrusive
noise source.

Cryptocurrency mining: A process which uses immense amounts of power to run
numerous computers, generating an excessive amount of heat that must be
dissipated by cooling systems. The facilities, which often operate twenty-four
hours a day, seven days a week, are typified by high electricity and water use, high
noise levels, enhanced safety and security needs, and low employment densities.

Data center, or data storage center: a facility used primarily for the storage,
management, processing, and transmission of digital data, which houses computer
or network equipment, systems, servers, appliances, and other associated
components related to digital data storage and operations. There are different types
of data centers, and depending on the ownership and precise requirements of a

business, a data center's size, shape, location and capacity may vary.

Data mining: the process of searching and analyzing a large batch of raw data in
order to identify patterns and extract useful information.

Decibel “dB”: the unit used to measure the intensity of a sound, measured on a
logarithmic scale, which corresponds to the way our ears interpret sound pressures.

Decibel A “dB(A)": a measurement of sound that has been adjusted to consider the
varying sensitivity of the human ear to different frequencies of sound, where low
and very high frequencies are given less weight than on the standard decibel scale.
This measurement shall not be used in determining maximum noise levels required
in these regulations, because they underestimate the perceived loudness, annoyance
factor, and stress-inducing capability of noises with low frequency components,
especially at moderate and high volumes of noise.

Infrasound: sound with a vibration frequency that, although it is lower than the
detectable limit for humans, has been found to have a negative impact on humans

and animals.

Intrusive neise: noise which intrudes over and above the existing ambient noise at

a given location. The relative intrusiveness of a sound depends upon its amplitude,
duration, frequency and time of occurrence, and tonal or informational content as
well as the prevailing ambient noise level.



Noise: any sound that annoys or disturbs human beings or that causes or tends to
cause an adverse psychological or physiological effect on human beings.

Noise barriers: a form of engineered noise control measure in the form of a fence,
wall, an earth berm, or a combination of these.

Noise disturbance: means any sound which: endangers or injures the safety or
health of human beings or animals, annoys or disturbs a reasonable person of
normal sensitivities, or endangers or injures personal or real property.

Noise impact assessment: a study which establishes the noise and vibration
impacts of a regulated use, including actions needed to mitigate noise and vibration
to required levels.

Vibration: to shake slightly and quickly, or to cause something to do this, in a way
that is felt rather than seen or heard. It is commonly associated with low frequency
noise and can be transmitted both through the ground (ground-borne) and through
the air (air-borne).

Vibration _isolation: a technique used to suppress and minimize unwanted
trembling caused by a vibrating device or system that can help effectively interrupt
the transmission of vibration from the source to another structure.

Vibration perception threshold: the minimum ground or structure-borne

vibrational motion necessary to cause a normal person to be aware of the vibration
by direct means as, but not limited to, sensation by touch or visual observation of
moving objects. The perception threshold will be presumed to be a motion velocity
of 1/100 inches per second over the range of one to 100 Hz.

Revise Article V. General Provisions to add:

518. Data mining centers, cryptocurrency mining, and like uses.
A. General information.

1. Minimum lot size shall be determined by the results of an
environmental noise assessment of the proposed use, as specified in
Section 518.B.

2. The facility shall be set back a minimum of two-hundred (200) feet
from all property lines, though the actual setback will be determined
by the findings of the environmental noise assessment.

3. Consideration and approval of a site plan by the Greene County
Planning Commission shall not occur until a special exception has
been approved by the Board of Zoning Appeals.

3



4. Nothing in these regulations shall be interpreted to remove or reduce

the buffering standards required for industrial uses abutting a
residential use or zone.

B. Environmental Noise Assessment. Because the above listed uses
commonly operate twenty-four hours a day, seven days a week (24/7),
they create a constant source of noise and vibration that is more intrusive
than businesses operating on an eight- or 12-hour workday. For this
reason, an environmental noise assessment meeting the following

standards is required to be completed before applying for a special
exception permit.

1.

The applicant shall employ and compensate a qualified third party
acoustical engineer who has experience in modeling and
noise/vibration abatement at the expense of the permit applicant.

The study shall be performed to generally accepted standards and shall

include, but not be limited to, the following:

a. A record of the ambient noise and vibration levels of the
surrounding area.

b. A map with the projected noise and vibration levels at the exterior
of the proposed structure, at points on the property line, and at the
exterior of adjoining residential uses.

c. Documentation that the study area includes all areas anticipated to
experience an increased noise level of five dB or more over
ambient levels if the development occurs.

d. Modeling showing the results of using recommended attenuation
methods to decrease the noise level at each property line to a
daytime level no greater than five dB over the ambient level
recorded at that point.

e. Modeling showing how the noise at the property line will be
attenuated to a nighttime level no greater than the ambient level
recorded at that point.

f. A qualitative description of what effect this increase in noise and
vibration level, including frequency noise and infrasound, would
have on people, wildlife, livestock, and structures.

g. Specifications on noise barriers, including height, location,
material, and construction method.

h. Description of methods recommended for vibration isolation, if
needed, to decrease vibration below the perception threshold at the
property line.

After noise barriers and vibration isolation measures are installed, the

acoustic engineer shall verify their construction, location, height,

material, and quality of workmanship, and certify that they are
performing as anticipated.

4



4. If the County finds probable cause that the use is operating in
violation of these regulations, the property owner or their
representative shall hire a third-party acoustic engineer to
determine compliance with the regulations. The information shall
be provided to the Enforcement Officer for review and
determination of action, if any, to be taken.

Revise Section 609. M-2 Heavy Impact Use District) to add:

609.2. Uses permitted as a special exception.

B. Data centers, cryptocurrency mining, and like uses, as per the requirements of
Section 518.

This change shall take effect after its passage, the welfare of the County requiring it.

Sponsor Greene County Regional
Planning Commission

Date
Date of Public Hearing by
the Greene County Commission:

Date
Decision by the Greene
County Commission:
Approved or Denied
Signed in Open Meeting:

County Mayor
Attest:
County Court Clerk

Approved as to Form: E ; o S Q/ \) Cre
County Attorney /



